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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of SIS Ltmited (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Servlces (India)
Lrtmtted')

Report on the.Eudit of the Standalone Flnanclal Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone finansial statements of SIS Lrimited (formerly known as

'Security and Intelllgence Services (India) Lrimited') (the "Gompany"), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31,2024, the Statement of Profit and L,oss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herelnafter referred to as the "standalone financlal statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the

"[ct") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2024 and its profit & other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing (,,SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards

are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key trudlt Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters

below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.
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.[,uditor's ResponseKevAudit Matter
S,ccuracy of recognltlon, measurement,
presentatlon & dlsclosures of revenue

The Company's revenue for the financial year
ending March 3l ,2024, is INR 45,4 I 2.58 million.
A significant proportion of the Company's
revenue is derived from contracts with

Our audit procedures on recognition, measutement,
presentation & disclosures of revenue included but
not limited to the following:

. We performed testing of revenue transactions to
conDx6"-tf-ffitransactions had been appropriately

.Eudit Procedures

I

www.sskmin.com



S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Key Audit Matter Audltor's Response
customer which consist of the rendering of
senrices.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable
consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation.

Revenue is recognized when the Company has
completed its performance obligations under
the contracts and/ or the control is transferred
to the customer.

Revenue is recognized in a manner that depicts
the transfer of goods and/ or senrices to
customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to be
entitled to in exchange for those goods or
senrices.

Further, the contractual terms also underpin the
measurement and recognition of revenue and
profit. The Company is therefore required to
make operational and financial assumptions &
various judgements.

The nature of the Senrices provided by the
Company also gives rise to a significant amount
of work which is recorded as accrued/ unbilled
income with corresponding profit recognition.
Accrued/ unbilled income as on March 31,
2024, aggregated to INR 2,903.29 million.

recorded in the statement of profit & loss and
verified the satisfaction of performance obligation
to recognise revenue by analyzing the contract and
terms of the sale and determining whether the
management has appropriately identified the
separate performance obligations, where relevant;
compared the terms with the revenue recorded by
management to determine whether the Company's
revenue recognition policies had been properly
applied and has been appropriately measured; and
testing management's calculations.

. We tested the effectiveness of controls relating to
contract monitoring, billings and approvals and
related IT controls used to generate the
information. The basis for the evaluation of internal
control has been Company's internal control
framework for financial reporting. The testing of
controls and amounts has been performed on a

sample basis.

We obtained and read customer contracts and
confirmed our understanding of the Company's
sales process from initiation to collection of
receivables, including the design and
implementation of controls and tested the
operating effectiveness of these controls.

. We read and understood the Company's accounting
policy for the recognition of revenue as per Ind AS

I 15.

. We requested independent balance confirmations
from the Company's customers on a sample basis.

. Tested a sample of accrued unbilled income balance
with supporting documentation which includes
attendance records, customer acceptance,
reviewing customer correspondence where
necessary and ensuring cut-off had been
appropriately applied.

Uncertain tax positions and deferred tax
assets

The Company operates in a complex tax
environment and is subject to a range of tax
risks during the normal course of business.
Where the amount of tax payable is uncertain,
the Company establishes provisions based on

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
Uncertain tax position and deferred tax
assets/liabilities included, but were not limited to the
following:

.Eudit Procedures
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Informatlon Other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion andAnalysis, Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the is materially inconsistent with the

Key Audlt Matter .Euditor's Response
management's judgment of the probable
amount of the future tax liability, The Company
has material certain tax positions including
matters under disputes which involves
significant judgement to determine the
possible outcome of these disputes.

In addition, the Company has recognized INR
1,680.38 million of deferred tax assets on March
3l,2024. The recognition of deferred tax assets
involves judgment by management regarding
the likelihood of the realization of these assets.
The expectation that these assets will be
realized is dependent on a number of factors,
including whether there will be sufficient
taxable profits in future periods to support the
utilization of these assets.

For details: - Refer to Note No 8 to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Discussion with the management on the
development of tax litigations during the year
ended March 31,2024.

. Verification that the accounting and/or disclosures
as the case may be in the standalone financial
statements is by the assessment of management./
tax practitioners.

Obtaining a representation letteq from the
management on the assessment of those matters as

per SA 580 (revised) - written representations.

. Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls implemented by the
Company over recognition of deferred tax assets
based on the assessment of the Company's ability
to generate sufficient taxable profits in the
foreseeable future allowing the use of deferred tax
assets.

. Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the calculations
performed by the management.

. Evaluated management's assessment for adjustment
of such deferred tax assets as per provisions of the
Income-tax Act, 196 I and appropriateness of the
accounting treatment with respect to the
recognition of deferred tax assets as per
requirements of Ind A,S 12, Income Taxes.

. Evaluated the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements in respect of
deferred tax assets.
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standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or othernrise
appears to be materially misstated.

Whenwe read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilittes of Management and Those Gharged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind A,S and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting resords in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

standalone finansial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so'

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilitles for the Audit of the Standalone Flnancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in ascordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordanse with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve sollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

a

(r)
(o NEW
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abitity to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
company to cease to continue as a going concern.

r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, andwhether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we havb complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Iregal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Ordel") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section I43 (l l) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

a

b)
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act readwith Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3l, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
3l , 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure 8". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements. {Refer Note 34 (b) to the financial statements}.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded inwriting
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenrrrise, that the Company

e)

0

t.

11.

tii.

lv.

shall, whether, directly or
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identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I I (e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company had not declared and paid any dividend during the year and until the
date of this report is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility. The Audit trail feature has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and has not been
tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(l) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable fromApril
1,2023, reporting under Rule I l(g) of the Companies (Audit andAuditors) Rules,2014
on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is

not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2024.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.000756N/ N500441

b-
NaveenAggarrval
Partner
Membership No.094380

UDIN : 24094380BKBEYH6939

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May Ol,2024

NEWDELH'
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.trNNEXURE 'IA'' TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under'Report on Other Lregal and Regulatory Requirements'section of
our repori to the Members of SIS timited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

a. (L) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right
ofuse assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

b. According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Property, Plant & Equipment
and right of use assets have been physically verified by the management in phased manner
according to designed process, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. The discrepancies, noticed on such physical
verification had been properly dealt with in the books of account.

c According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, we report that, the title deeds of all immovable properties disclosed in the financial
statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right- of- use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 3l,2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) As explained to us, physical verification has been conducted by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year in respect of inventory i.e. uniforms and the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable in relation to the size of the
Company and nature of its business. As far as we could ascertain and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no discrepancies of l0% or more in the aggregate were noticed between
the physical stock and book records.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has been sanctionedworking capital limit against current asset in excess of Rs. 5 Crore,
in aggregate, from banks. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Companywith such banks
are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

tii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has made investment in, provided guarantee or security,
granted unsecured loans to companies, firms, limited partnership or any other parties during

d.

e.

tt
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the year in respect of which the requisite information is set out below. However, there were no
advances in the natuxe of loans given during the year:

(a) (A) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans. However, the
Company has given loans or guarantee to subsidiaries which are disclosed hereunder:

ln

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no loans or advances and guarantees or
securities to parties other than subsidiaries, joint venture. Further the Company is not having
any associates during the year.

(b) In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees provided and security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or
receipts are regular,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no amount overdue in respect of the loans as per the
respective loan agreements.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan which has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to same parties. Hence reporting
under clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable.

(f) fire Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence the
reporting under clause s(iii)(D is not applicable.

iv According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of Section 185 are not applicable
to the Company. However, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees provided, to the
extent applicable.

v According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor any deposits are outstanding during the year. There are no
deemed deposits under the provisions of Gompanies Act, 2Ol3 and rules thereunder. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

vt. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement of
maintenance of cost records pursuant to Companies and Audit) Rules, 20 I 4 prescribed

Particulars Guarantee Lloans

Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year to subsidiaries 25.00

1,635.26 t23.46Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
to subsidiaries.

NTJW
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by the Central Government in terms of sub-section (l) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are

not applicable to the company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion:

the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of
provident fund, employees'state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, senrice tax,

sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory

dues as applicable, with the appropriate authorities with slight delays. There were no

undisputed amounts outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable.

a

b. Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as

on March 31,2024 on account of disputes are given below:

(ft

Period to
whlch the
Amount
Relates

trmount
INR (tn
mtllton)

Nature of Dues Fonrm where Dispute is
Pending

Name of the
statute

ry* 201l-12 0.l8Appellate Authority - upto
Commissioners level (at

Madurai)

FinanceAct,1994
Service tax

1.55ft* 20tt-12

Senrice tax

Appellate Authority - uPto
Comm. Appeal level

(Commissioner Appeal allowed,
however sent back to

commissioner)

Finance Act, 1994

FY* 2014-15 &
FY 2015-r6

0. t9Appellate Authority- upto
commissioner levelSewice taxFinance Act, 1994

3.46Appellate Authority- upto Pr
Commissioner Level

FY* 2014-15,
ry* 2015-16 &
FY* 2016-17

Senrice tax
Finance Act, 1994

FY* 2015-16 32.49
Service tax

Appellate Authority - upto
commissioner level

Finance Act, 1994

FY* 2012-13 4.22Appellate Authority- CIT (A)Income taxAct, 196 I Income tax demand
4.ZtAppellate Authority - CIT (A) FY* 2015-16Income tax demandIncome taxAct, 196l

FY* 2016-17 4.t2Income tax demand Appellate Authority - CIT (A)Income taxAct, 196 I

208.73Appellate Authority- CIT (A) FY* 2018-I9Income tax demandIncome tax Act, l96I
r'Y* 202t-22 160.89Income tax demand Appellate Authority- CIT (A)Income taxAct, 196 I

FY* 2017-18 7. l9
GST

Appellate Authority - upto
Assistnat Commissioner

GSTAct,20I7

o.t2Appellate Authority - upto
Deputy Commissioner (ST- III)

FY* 2017-18
GST

GSTAct,2017

FY* 2017-18 2.6t
GST

Appellate Authority - upto Joint
Commissioner State Tax

GSTAct,2017

Appellate Authority - upto
Assistant Commissioner

-.-.l|ilff,,i.:*

FY* 2017-t8 &

ry* 2018-19
27.t3GSTAct,2017

GST

NEW
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Name of the
statute

Nature of Dues Forum where Dlspute is
Pending

Perlod to
which the
.Emount
Relates

Amount
INR (tn
million)

GSTAct,2017
GST

Appellate Authority - upto
Superintendent

tY* 2017-18 &
FY* 2018-19

3.40

GSTAct,2017
GST

Appellate Authority - upto
Assistant Commisioner

FY* 2018-19 5.01

GSTAct,2017
GST

Appellate Authority - upto
Deputy Commissioner (ST- III)

ry* 2018-19 0.76

GSTAct,20I7
GST

Appellate Authority - upto
Deputy Commissioner of State

Tax

tY* 2018-19 9.57

GSTAct,20I7
GST

Appellate Authority - upto Joint
Commissioner of State Tax

tY* 2018-19 4.06

GSTAct,2017
GST

Appellate Authority -
Superintendent (Gr-Z5)

FY* 2018-t9 &
ry* 2019-20

3.43

GSTAct,2017
GST

Appellate Authority - Deputy
Commissioner of State Tax

FY* 2019-20 2.t6

GSTAct,2017
GST

Appellate Authority - State Tax
Officer

rlrt 2020-21 0.05

* FY = Financial Year

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously uruecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 I (43 of
r 96l ).

lx. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of Interest

thereon to any lender and hence, reporting under clause s(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the Company has not been declared
witful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the irformation and explanation given to us and based on our examination of tecords,
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries or joint venture. Company is not having any associate. Accordingly, the reporting
under this clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
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(Q According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,
the Company has not raised loans on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries and Joint
Ventures. The Company is not having any associate companies during the year and hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix) (D of the Order is not applicable.

x. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause s(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or sonvertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (x)(b) of para 3 of the order is
not applicable.

xl (a) As per the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of such case by the
management.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

no report under sub-section ( 12) of section I 43 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) We have been informed that there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company

during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures. Accordingly, the reporting under the clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not

applicable.

Ttre Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

xllt In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party

transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
Ind JLS (Refer Note No. 39 to the financial statements).

xtv (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

in our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and

the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date of our report, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

According to the irformation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(:rv) of the Order is not applicable.

)ctri. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Resenre Bank of India Act

xtl

xtr

1934. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause

SIS | .trudttor Report -fr 23-24 (Standalone)
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, clause 3(x\d)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Resenre Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(wi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Resewe Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(wi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

,nrit According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(:ruiii) of the Order is not applicable.

xlx. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidense supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as

to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

xx. there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing or other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For S S Kotharl Mehta & Co. L,LP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.

\n'
NaveenAggannral
Partner
Membership No.094380

UDIN : 240943808KBEYH6939

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024
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.ENNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2($ under (Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of SIS Lrtmited of even date)

Report on the Internal financlal Controls with reference to financial statements under Glause (t) of
sub- sectlon 3 of Sectlon 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 (the "Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SIS ITIMITED

(formerly known as 'Securlty and Intelligence Servlces (India) f,imtted') (the "Company") as of March
gl,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind ,{.5 financial statements of the Company for the

year ended on that date.

Management's Responstbility for Internal Financial Gontrols

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
,,ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its

business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

.Euditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with referense to

financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued

by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143( l0) of the Companies Act, 20 13, to

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit

of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of

internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements.

Meanlng of Internal financial Gontrols with reference to the flnanclal statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
and the preparation of financialreasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally principles. A company's
Page 14 | 15
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internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limltations of Internal Financial Controls wlth reference to the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the criteria for internal financial controlwith reference to financial
statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAJ.

for S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LI..P

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No,

S.y
Partner

Agganaral

Membership No.094380

UDIN : 240943808K8EYH6939

Place:NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

NEWDELHI
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, except shore ddto

Balance Sheet
Particulars Note No. As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
A

B

ASSEIS

Non - current assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 1,859.52 1,348.44

Capital vork-in-progress 4 1.84 1 80.1 5

Other intangible assets 5 246.55 t28.2s
Intangible assets under development 5 12.88 136.71

Financial assets

(i) Investments 6 5,895.69 5,733.59
(ii) Loans 7a 31.56 t4t.2l
(iii) Other non-current financial assets 266.16 3 1 8.68

Deferred tax assets (net) 8 I,680.38 I,689.83
Income tax assets (net) 8 1.972.11 t.204.96
Other non - current assets 9 5l .70 30.49

Total non - current assets 12.018.39 10.912.31

Current assets
Inventories l0 180.33 150.57

Financial assets

(i) Investments 6 50.00 179.89

(ii) Trade receivables il 't,959.26 6,863.07
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 1,132.08 t,002.49
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above t2 289.64 s36.43
(v) Loans 7a 9l .90

(vi) Other current financial assets 7 3,306.88 2,948.s0

Other current assets 9 843.28 629.86

Total current essets I 3.853.37 t 2-310.8t

Total assets 25.87t.76 23.223.12

EQ TIITY AND LIABILITIES

Equitv
Equity share capital 13 720.50 728.6s

Other equity t4 9,569.32 8,737.87

Total eouitv t 0.289.82 9.466-s2
Iiabilities
Non - current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15 2,539.10 2.904.53
(ia) Lease liabilities l6 538.00 398.s2
(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities l8 5.15 1.47

Provisions 2t 942.90 813.4s

Total non-current liabilities 4^O25,75 4-117.97

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')

All omounts in INR million, except share data

The accompanying notes I to 42 an

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration. No. 000756N4.I50044 1)

U)
(Partner)
Membership No. 094380 *

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

statements.

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

o

Ravindra Kishore Sinha
Chairman

|^r;"-lKrlP*ndl"

part

* (DIN: 5)
Director

Chief Financial Officer

fuvind Kumar Prasad
Director - Finance

Company Secretary
#K: **g*

As at March 31.2023Particulars Note No. As at March 31,2024

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15 6,006.3s 4,704.82

16 12s.7 5 96.93(ia) Lease liabilities

(ii) Trade payables

l7 39.10 24.30
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterpnses

l7 226.99 199.8 8
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other current financial liabilities l8 3,592.7 | 3,234.02

22 1,309.92 1,201 . I 8Other curent liabilities

2ss.97 177.50Provisions 2l
I t.556.79 9.638.63Total current liabilities

r 3^7S6.60ts.s8l.94Total liabilities
25.871.76 23.22t.12Total eouitv and liabilities

DELHI
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')

All omounts in INR million, except shore doto

Statement of Profit and Loss

SNo Particulars Note No.
Year ended

March31,2024 March 31,2023

I

Income
a) Revenue from operations 23 45,412.58 39,848.72

b) Other income 24 837.33 694.26

c) Other Eain/(loss) 25 2.94 ( l .90)

Total Income (a +b+c) 46.2s2.8s 40.541.08

2

&penses
a) Purchasesofinventory 699.30 433.48

b) Changes in inventory 26 (2e.76) (3.37)

c) Employee benefits expense 27 39,7 t5:77 3s,302.02

d) Finance costs 29 877.35 67 0.45

e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 30 736.91 s42.61

0 Other expenses 3l 2.3s7.11 2.246.77

Total expenses ( a +b+ c+d+e + f) 44.3s6.68 39-191-96

3

4

5

6

7

8

Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2) 1,896.17 1,349.12

Exceptional items

Prolit before tax (3-4) 1,896.17 1,349.12

Tax exnense / (credit)

a) Current tax 8 16.70 114.1I

b) Deferred tax 8 8.58 (666.29\

Total tax exDense / (credit) 25.28 (552.18)

Profit for the vear (5-6) 1,870.89 1,901.30

O ther comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

a) Re-measurement of defined benefits plan 27 3.47 87.91

b) Income tax relating to these items 8 (0.87) (22.12't

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of taxes) 2.60 6s.79

9 Total comorehensive income for the vear (7+8) 1,873.49 t -967^09

l0 Earnings per share (EPS) (face value INR 5 per share) 32

(a) Basic (INR) 12.87 12.97

(b) Diluted (INR) 12.77 12.86

1l Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnin$ per equity share 32

(a) Basic (Nos.) 145.344.093 t46.s37.510
(b) Diluted (Nos.) I 46,s50,084 147,849,999

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part ofthese financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration. No.

fr^lKt;?,oot
Sinha Sinha

Managing Director
(DIN:004

Kumar
Chief Financial Officer
(India)

Arvind Kumar Prasad
Director - Finance
(DIN: 02865273)

(Partner)
Membership No. 094380

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

Tir\rk:
Pushpalatha Katkrfri U r'
Company $cretary

**
635)

NEW DELHI

A.28

110020
Tel:0

ffi f:l
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SIS LIMITED known as' and Services Limited
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted othetwise

Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capital
Year ended March 31,2023

Year ended March 31, 2024

B. Other Equity
Year ended March 31,2023

As at March
31,2023

728,6s

Changes during
the year

(6.51)

Restated balance
rs on April l,2022

735.16

Changes in fruity
Shrre Capital due to
nrior neriod errors

As at April 1,

2022

735.16

Particulars

Equity Share Capital

As at March
31,2024

720.s0

Changes during
the year

(8 ls)

Restat€d balance
as on April 1,2023

728.65

Changes in F4uity
Share Capital due to
nrior neriod prrors

As at April I,
2023

728.65

Particulars

Equity $rare Capital

Ylfhz.az

Total other
equity

7,625.28

1,901.30

65.79

1,961.09

135.s4

(917.4O\

(12.62)

o-70

(o.72)

:-\

Tel:0 11

4.28 &29
a'ilr&ihser

[leli *lhi-11coio

/VL

Share
application

money
pending

allotment

0.o2

o.70

(o.72)

Capital
redemption

reserTe

9.09

7.27

r6.36

0ther reserves

Stock options
outstanding

account

225.41

135.54

(23.ss)

(2.s3)

334.87

Retained earnings

3,703.48

I,901 .30

65.79

1,967.O9

(184.67)

5,485.90

General reserve

563.94

2.53

566.47

Reserves and surplus

Securities
premium

3,123.34

(800.00)

(12.62)

23.55

2,334.27

Particulars

As at April 1,2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Employee share-based payment expense

Buyback of equity shares, including tax thereon

Transaction cost related to buyback ofequity
shares (net of taxes)

Share application money received dwing the year

Issued on exercise of stock options (refer note 28)

$ock options forfeited/ lapsed

As at March 31,2023 zfii?)r-



SIS LIMITED known as'Secu and

All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Year ended March 31,2024

The accompanying notes I to 42 form an integral part ofthese finalcial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on beh

(Firm's Registration. No. 000756N4I50044 I )

Ai.-{K fs fr,,1,* a
Naveen Aggarwal
(Partner)
Membership No. 0943

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

Ravindra Kishore Sinha

ce Services

Board ofDirectors

Director
(DIN: 00477256)

Kumar

Mkf,^orry)-"
Director - Finance
(DIN: 0286s273)

T'.otUta:
Pushpalatha raltwi \) - '
Company Secretary

\,.)n,
t

Total other
equity

8,737.87

1,870.89

2.60

1,E73.49

70.68

(1,099.5E)

(13.r4)

0.02

(0.02)

9,569.32

Share
application

money
pending

allotment

0.02

(0.02)

Other reserves

Capital
redemption

rese rve

16.36

8.18

24.54

Stock options
outstanding

account

334.87

70.68

(2.61)

(11.49)

391.4s

Reserves and surplus

Retained earnings

s,48s.90

1,870.89

2.60

1,873.49

(207.76)

7,1s1.63

General reserve

s66.47

11.49

577.96

Securities
premrum

2,334.27

(e00.00)

(13. l4)

2.61

1,423.74

Particulars

As at April 1,2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Employee share-based payment expense

Buyback of equity shares, including tax thereon

Transaction cost relatedto buyback ofequity
shares (net of taxes)

$rare application money received dwing the year

Issued on exercise of stock options (refer note 28)

Stock options forfeited / lapsed

As at March 31,2024

DELH\

10020
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Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allamounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Statement of Cash Flows

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended
SNo

March3l.2024
Particulars

March 31,2023
CASH ILOWS FRO M OPIRATING ACTTVITMS
Profit before tax t.896.17 1.349.12

Adiusted for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 736.91 542.61

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (0 43) 1.33

Net (gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.72\ 1.00

Finance costs 877.3s 67 0.45

Interest income (17 4.96\ (r7 4.r3',)

Allowance for expected credit loss 129.60 209.17

Dividend income (662.37) (s20.t3)

78.47Employee stock option compensation expense 4s.66

ODeratinc profit /(loss) before working capital chanses 2,846.21 2,157.89

Chanses in workins caoital
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (t ,22s.80) (2,000. I 6)
Decrease / (increase) in inventones (29.77) (3.37)

Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (res.r2) 84.1 8

Decrease / (increase) in other current financial assets (4s l .91 ) (s44.28\
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables 41.92 93 83

(Decrease) / increase in provisions 211.38 165.7 |
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities 1 10.39 112.70

(Decrease) / increase in other current financial liabilities 421.83 621.52

Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets 2.58

Decrease / (increase) in other non-current financial assets I 15.89 209.39

4.71 (l.l9)(Decrease) / increase in other non-current financial liabilities

Cash (used in) /generated from onerations t.849.73 898.80
(783.8s) (213.04)Direct tax (paid), net of refunds

1-05s.n8 58s^76Net cash inflow / (outflow) from oDeratins activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVf,STING ACTTVMES
Purchase of property plant and equipment and capital unrk-in-progress (881 .01 ) (727.20',t

Proceeds. from sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment t4.82 11.61

Investment in suhidiary (refer note 6) (30. r 0) (t7.77)
Other investments made (34.99\ (63.29\

Redemption of Non-convertible debentures issued 50.00

Invsstment in fixed deposits (6st.23) (697.91\

Redemption of fixed deposits 945.22 376.25

Interest received l6 I .56 lsl.70
Dividend received 662.37 520.13

A.

236.64 (446.48rNet cash inflow / (outflow) from investinq rctivities

NEWDE
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SNo Particulars
Year ended

March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023

c.

D.

E.

F.

CASH FLOWS TRO M FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from iszue of share capital (net of share issue expenses) 0.03 0.7 6

Buyback of equity shares including transaction cost and tax (1,120.90) (997.29')

Proceeds from term loans 626.82 2,283.17

Repayment ofterm loans (32'7.01) (305.05)

Bonds/debentures repaid/redeemed (1,900.00)

Interest paid (793.88) (593.94)

Payment of lease liabilities d 8s.06) (r54.07\

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from {inancing activities (r.800"00) (1.666.42\

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) u97.48\ 1.427.14\
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginhing of the year 1,002.49 I,303.00

Cash credit at the beeinning of the year (4,415.09\ (3,288.46')

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E+F) (3,9r0.08) 6.412.60r

SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
AII amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Refer note 40 for reconciliation ofliabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part offinancing activities in the statement

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as Der the statement of the cash flows
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1, r 32.08 1,002.49Cash and cash equivalents

Cash credit (5,042.r6) (4,41s.09)

Balances as Der statement ofcash flows (3.910.08) Q.412.601
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Company overview
SIS Limited ("the Company") is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company is listed on the BSE Limited ('BSE")
and The National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited C'NSE). Its registered office is situated at Annapuma Bhawan, Telephone Exchange Road, Kurji,
Patna, Bihar - 800010, India, and its principal place ofbusiness is situated at A-28 & 29, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase I, New Delhi - 1 10020

The name ofthe Company has been changed to'SIS Limited'from'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited'and a fresh certificate of
incorporation in the name of 'SIS Limited was issued by the Registrar of Companies on January 13,2021.

The Company is directly and indirectly engaged in rendering security and related services consisting ofmanned guarding, training, and indirectly engaged

in paramedic and emergency response services; loss prevention, asset protection and mobile patrols; facility management services consisting of cleaning,
house-keeping and pest control management sewices in the areas offacility management; cash logistics services consisting ofcash-in-transit, ATM cash
replenishment activities and secure transportation of precious items and bullion; and alarm monitoring and response services consisting of trading and
installation ofelectronic security devices and systems through its subsidiaries,joint ventures and associates.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on May 01,2024.

2. Material accounting policies
This note provides a list ofmaterial accounting policies adopted in the preparation ofthese financial statements.

2.1 Basis of preparation
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and other applicable provisions ofthe Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Companies Acf') and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (SEBI). The Ind-AS are notified under Section
133 ofthe Act read with Rule 3 ofthe Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,20l5 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and are rounded offto the nearest millions ('Mn') except per share data and unless stated

otherwise. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely
reflect the absolute figures. The figures which are appearing as '0'are the result ofrounding off.

2.2 Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concem basis, except for the following material
items which have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind-AS:
a) certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured at fair value;
b) assets held for distribution to owners upon demerger that are held at lower ofcarrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute;
c) share based payments; and
d) The defined benefit asset(liability) which is recognised as the present value ofdefined benefit obligation less fair value ofplan assets.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS l, 'Presentation ofFinancial Statements' and division II ofschedule
III ofthe Companies Act 2013. For the purpose ofclarity, various items are aggregated in the statements ofprofit and loss and balance sheet. These items
are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

Fair value measurement
The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recuning basis. The Company determines fair value based on the price it
would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and either in the
principal market or in the absence ofa principal market, most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using
quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, bonds and debentures and mutual funds that have a quoted price. The fair value ofall
financial instruments which are traded on the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly ( i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices). The fair value offinancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of obseruable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Ifone or more ofthe significant inputs is

not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity / preference securities included in
level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS I 13, 'Fair value measurement', assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:

(l) Market approach-Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
(ii) Income approach - Convertirlg the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value using the discounting method.
(iiD Cost approach - Replacement cost method.

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

(D Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
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(iiD Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period;

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
(D Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
(ii) Held primarily for the purpose oftrading;
(iii) Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms ofa liability that

could, at the option ofthe counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue ofequity instruments, do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Defered tax assets and liabilities are slassified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition ofassets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has

identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment
Rec o g nilio n n nd mea s urcment

An item is recognised as an asset, ifand only i{ it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its

cost can be measured reliably, Items ofproperty, plant and equipment ('PPE') are initially recognised at cost. Freehold land is canied at historical cost.

All other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price, asset retirement obligation and costs directly attributable towards bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in aniving at the purchase price. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction
ofa qualifying asset are capitalized as part ofthe cost.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item ofproperty, plant and equipment is added to its carrying value only when it increases the future benefits from the

existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard or period ofperformance. All other expenses on existing properry, plant and equipment, including
day{o-day repairs, maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year during which such

expenses are incuned.

Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost ofassets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as capital work-in-progress ('CWIP').

Advances given towards purchase ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment outstanding as at each balance sheet date are disclosed underother non-
financial assets.

Depreciation
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful lives using the written down value method from the date the assets are

available for use.

The estimated useful lives ofassets are as follows:

Based on technical assessment, the useful lives as given above best represent the period over management expects to use these assets. The
estimated useful lives for these assets may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C ofSchedule II ofthe Companies Act 2013.

The residual values are generally not more than 5% ofthe original cost ofthe asset. The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

Additions are depreciated on a pio-rata basis from the date the asset is available for use till the date the assets are derecognised.

An item ofproperty, plant and equipment and any significant part, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic beneftts

are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition ofthe asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount ofthe asset) is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

c) Intangible ass€ts

Recognition and n eosurcment

Intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the
Company and the cost ofthe asset can be measured reliabty. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date ofacquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are canied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised software development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the expenditure is incuned.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvement
Right-of-use assets

Computer equipment
Fumiture and fixtures
Office Equipment
Vehicles

60 years
5 to 15 years

Shorter of useful life or lease period
Lease period
3 years

10 years
5 years
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted othetwise

The useful lives ofintangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amo(ised over the useful economic life
on a written down value method and assessed for impaiment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end ofeach reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattem ofconsumption offuture economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modifu the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

The estimated useful lives ofintangible assets are as follows:

Gains or losses arising from derecognition ofan intangible asset are measured as the difference behveen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount

ofthe asset and are recognised in the statement ofprofit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to future period financial benefits
through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems. Costs capitalised include external direct costs of materials,
services, and direct payroll and related costs ofemployees' time spent on the project.

License &franchise:
Licenses & franchise fees are amortized commencing from the date when license & franchise fees are available for intended use.

d) Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls an investee entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions ofthe investee but is not control orjoint control ofthose policies. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% to
50% ofthe voting rights.

A joint venture is a type ofjoint arrangement whereby the parties that havejoint control ofthe arrangement have rights to the net assets ofthe joint venture.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing ofcontrol ofan arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent ofthe parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control exist are similar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates andjoint ventures are accounted for at cost less impairment loss, ifany. The said investments are tested for
impairment whenever circumstances indicate that their carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount.

e) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contractthat gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial liability or equity instrument ofanother entity. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions ofthe instruments.

Financid flssets
I nilial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case offinancial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at

transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Sab seque nt n ea sareme nt
For purposes ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below categories:
(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial instruntentE at amoiliEed cost
A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost ifboth the following conditions are met:
(D The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal

amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective intgrest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to the gross carrying amount ofa financial asset. When
calculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayments, extensions call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe EIR. The interest income based on EIR is included as interest income
as a part ofother income in the statement ofprofit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in profit or loss. A gain or loss on such
financial asset which is not part ofa hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.

(ii)
(ii0

Computer soliware 5 years

Customer contracts contract duration
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
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Financial instrunvnts at FI/TOCI
A 'financial asset' is classified as at the FVTOCI ifboth ofthe following criteria are met:
(D The objective ofthe business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(iD The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income calculated using the EIR method, impairment losses & reversals

and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition ofthe asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Financial instrumenls flt FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI,
is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is made only ifdoing so reduces or eliminates a measufement or recognition inconsistency (iefened to as 'accounting mismatch').

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or loss in respect ofsuch assets

that are not part ofa hedging relationship. The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the statement ofprofit and loss within other
gains/losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equit! investntents
All equity investments in scope oflnd-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on

an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Ifthe Company decides to classifu an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised

in the OCI. There is no recycling ofthe amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale ofinvestment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with gain/loss presented in the statement of profit and loss within other
gains/losses in the period in which it arises.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets ofan entity after deducting all ofits liabilities.

D ereco g nitio n of ti no nc ial a s s ets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part ofa financial asset or part ofa group ofsimilar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Company's balance sheet) when:
(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
(ii) The Company has transfened its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full

without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has lransfened substantially all the risks and
rewards ofthe asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, but has transferred
control ofthe asset.

When the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Similarly, where the Company retains control ofthe financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Impairment of Jinancia I assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances on a forwardJooking basis using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognised for trade receivables with no significant financing component. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the l2-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. How the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial statements. The amount ofexpected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss

allowance at the reporting date is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognitio n and n,easurcmerrt
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofborrowings and payables, net ofdirectly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and bonowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and

derivative financial instruments.

Su b se que nl meas ure ment
The measurement offinancial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below.

Financial liabilities al lair value througlt profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading ifthey are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the nearterm. This category also includes derivative financial instruments, ifany entered into by the Company, thatare not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value ofsuch liability are recognised in the statement ofprofit or loss.

Bonowings
After initial recognition, bonowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net oftransaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period ofthe borrowing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment ofloan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs ofthe loan to the extent it is probable that some orall ofthe facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all ofthe facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period ofthe facility to which it relates.

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeemable are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, to the extent such dividends are

mandatorily payable, are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zero-coupon debenture/ bond/ prefetence share or
compulsorily convertible debenture/preference shares where the price ofconversion ofthe debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed, is

determined using a market rate ofinterest for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption ofthe bonds. The remainder ofthe proceeds is attributable to the equity portion ofthe compound financial
instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders' equity, net ofincome tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

When the terms ofa financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instrument to a creditor to extinguish all or part ofa liability (debt for
equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount ofthe financial liability and
the fair value ofthe equity instrument issued.

Borowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditionalrightto defer settlementofthe liability forat least 12 months after
the reporting period. Where there is a breach ofa material provision ofa long{erm loan arrangement on or before the end ofthe reporting period with the

effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting period and before the approval ofthe financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence ofthe breach.

Fina nci a I gua ra nlee co nt ruc t s
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms ofa financial asset. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised

initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance ofthe guarantee, with conesponding increase
in investment in subsidiary. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher ofthe amount of loss allowance detemined as per impairment requirements
oflnd-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognilion
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount ofa financial liability that has been extinguished or transfened to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transfened
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/ losses. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the

derecognition ofthe original liability and the recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
ofprofit and loss as other gains/losses.

Reclassiticatio n of Jinancfurl assets
The Company determines classification offinancial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are financial assets, a reclassification is made only ifthere
is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
management determines changes in the business model as a result of external or intemal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. Ifthe Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is

the first day ofthe immediately next repo(ing period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Jina ncial i nstrume nts
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet ifthere is a cuffently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the nomal course ofbusiness and in the event ofdefault, insolvency or bankruptcy
ofthe Company ofthe counterparty.

f) Trade receivables
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment (allowance for expected credit loss).

g) Current and deferred tax
Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the cunent period's taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by changes
in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
Cufient lM
The cunent income tax charge is calculated on the basis oftax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end ofthe repo(ing period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis ofamounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.
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Effective from April l, 20 19, the Company has adopted the option of lower effective corporate tax rate of 25.17o/o (including surcharge and cess), as per

Section I I5BAA oflncome Tax Act.

Delened lox
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements at the reporting date.

Defeffed tax liabilities are recognised for alI taxable temporary differences, except:

(D When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition ofgoodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
that, at the time ofthe transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(ii) In respect oftaxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests injoint ventures, when the timing
ofthe reversal ofthe temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward ofunused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(D When ihe defened tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition ofan asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination that, at the time ofthe transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(iD In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed at each repo(ing date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The effect ofchanges in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set offcurrent tax assets against cunent tax liabilities.

Cunent and defened tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity ofthree months or
less, which are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk ofchanges in value.

For the purpose ofthe statement ofcash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist ofcash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net ofoutstanding bank
overdrafts (including cash credit facilities) as they are considered an integral part ofthe Company's cash management. Bank overdrafts are shown within
bonowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

i) Equity share capital
Equity shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue ofnew shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net oftax, from the proceeds.

j) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and sewices provided to the Company prior to the end ofthe financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days ofrecognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within l2 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

k) Provisions and contingencies
Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obligation as a result ofpast event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect ofwhich a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are recognised for legal claims and service
warranties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number ofsimilar obligations, the likelihood that an ouffIow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even ifthe likelihood ofan outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class ofobligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end ofthe
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments ofthe time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage oftime is recognised as an interest expense.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. In respect of losses that are covered by insurance, such

losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determination or probability that any portion ofthe loss is not expected to be settled
through insurance or other forms ofrecovery.
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allamounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Asset Retirement Ob ligdtions (ARO)
ARO are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased
premises in a condition similar to inception oflease. ARO are provided at the present value ofexpected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised as

part ofthe cost ofthat particular asset and amortised or depreciated in the same manner as the asset to which it pertains. The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are adjusted from the cost ofthe asset.

Conlingent liflbilities and Contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence ofwhich will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe Company or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate ofthe amount cannot be made.

Contingent asset is not recognised and is disclosed only where an inflow ofeconomic benefits are probable.

Contirgent liflbililies recognised in a business conbinttion
A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher ofthe amount
that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

l) Revenue recognition
Revenue towards satisfaction ofa performance obligation is measured at the amount oftransaction price (net ofvariable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price ofgoods sold and services rendered is net ofvariable consideration on account ofvarious discounts and
schemes offered by the Company as part ofthe contract. Revenue is recognised when the control is transferred to the customer and when the Company has

completed its performance obligations under the contracts.

At the inception ofthe new contractual arrangement with the customer, the Company identifies the performance obligations inherent in the agreement. The
terms ofthe contracts are such that the services to be rendered represent a series ofservices that are substantially the same with the same pattern ofthe
transfer to lhe customer.

Revenue is recognised as follows:
(i) Revenue from seruices represents the amounts receivable for services rendered.
(ii) For contract-based business (Expressed or implied), revenue represents the sales value ofwork carried out for customers during the period. Such

revenues are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.
(iii) Unbilled revenue (contract assets) net of expected deductions is recognised at the end of each period. Such unbilled revenue is reversed in the

subsequent period when actual invoice is raised.
(iv) Unearned income (contract liabilities) represents revenue billed but for which seruices have not yet been performed. The same is released to the

statement ofprofit and loss as and when the services are rendered.
(v) Revenue from the use ofassets such as rent for using property, plant and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms ofthe related

leases unless payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors' expected inflationary cost
increase.

Sale ofgootls
Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognised when the control ofgoods has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the buyer, the buyer
having the full discretion over the use ofthe goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer's acceptance ofthe product. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks ofobsolescence and loss have been transferred to the buyer, and either the
buyer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale ofgoods is measured at the fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable, net
of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Discounts and rebates are estimated based on accumulated experience. The Company
provide normal warranty provisions for general repairs for one year on all its products sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is recognised at

the time the product is sold. Revenue is deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis over the extended warranty period in case warranty is provided to
customer for a period beyond one year.

Rerulering of semices
In contracts involving the rendering ofservices, revenue is measured using the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount ofthe consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Estimates ofrevenue, costs or extent ofprogress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated
revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the management.

Multip le-e leme nt a rilt ng e me rrl s
When a sales anangement contains multiple elements, such as seruices, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on each

element's fair value.

Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery ofproductsorservices,future
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges.

The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically estimated and compared with the unamortized costs. Ifthe unamortized costs exceed
the undiscounted cash flow, a loss is recognised.
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR mlllion, unless stated otherwise

Intercst income
For all financial asseis measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the

effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life ofthe financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount ofthe financial asset or to the amortised cost ofa financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms ofthe financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income
in the statement ofprofit and loss.

DiuideruIs
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and amount ofthe dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straightJine basis over the lease term unless payments are

structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increase and is included in revenue

in the statement ofprofit or loss due to its operating nature.

m) Employee benefits
The Company's employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, defined benefit plans

and share-based payments. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the

Company.

S ho rt-te rn o b lig at io ns
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and compensated absences expected to be seftled within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect ofemployees' services up to reporting date and are measured at the

amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for compensated absences is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as employee benefits payable under other financial liabilities, current.

Bonus
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where

there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences/Lewe ob ligations
The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees

can carry forward uptoaspecifiedportion ofthe unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at
retirement. The expected cost ofaccumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarialvaluation (using the projected unit credit method) based

on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The expense on

non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences occur. Re-measurements

arising out ofactuarial gains / losses are immediately taken into the statement ofprofit and loss and are not deferred.

In respect ofthose employees who are entitled to an encashment ofthe leave at the end ofevery calendar year, a provision is created to account for the
liability.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet ifthe entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least

twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Po st-emp loy me nt o b lig atio ns
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
i) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees' state insurance; and

ii) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

Detined contribalion p hn
The Company's policy to contribute on a defined contribution basis for eligible employees, to Employees' Provident Fund, Employees' Pension Scheme

and Employees' State Insurance Scheme towards post-employment benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Govemment authorities, and

has no further obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset

to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

DeJined beneJit plan
The Company has a defined benefit plan, viz., Gratuity, for all its employees, the liability for which is accrued and provided for as detemined by an

independent actuarial valuation. A portion ofthis liability for gratuity is contributed to a fund administered and operated by a reputed insurance company.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fairvalue ofplan assets. The defined benefit is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) at the end ofeach
year.

Present value ofthe defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash oulflows by reference to market yields on government
bonds at the end ofthe reporting periods that have approximately similar terms to the related obligation.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement ofprofit and loss:
(D Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
(ii) Net interest expense or income

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
(D The date ofthe plan amendment or curtailment, and
(iD The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All dmounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

The net interest is calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount rate to the net balance ofthe defined benefit obligations and the fair value ofplan
assets. This cost is included in the employee benefits expense in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Equit! sett led stock-brced comp ensalio n
Employees (including senior executives) ofthe Company receive remuneration in the form ofshare-based payments, whereby employees render services

as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The fair
value ofoptions granted under various Employee Stock option plans is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity
(stock option outstanding account).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all ofthe specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end

ofeach period, the entity revises its estimates ofthe number ofoptions that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact ofthe revision to original estimates in the period ofchange, ifany, in the profit or loss, with corresponding adjustment to equity.

Sewice and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value ofawards, but the likelihood ofthe
conditions being met is assessed as part ofthe Company's best estimate ofthe numberofequity instruments that will ultimately vest, Market performance

conditions, ifany, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value ofan award and lead to an immediate expensing ofan
award unless there are also service and,/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective ofwhether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or seruice conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect ofoutstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation ofdiluted eamings per share.

n) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest calculated on the effective interest rate method, other costs incurred in connection with bonowing and exchange

differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the assets that necessarily take a substantial period oftime to get
ready for their intended use or sale ('qualifring assets'), are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other bonowing costs are expensed in the statement ofprofit and loss within finance costs in the period in which they are incurred.

o) Leases
Company as a lessee
The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist ofleases for buildings, equipment and vehicles. For any new contract, the Company assesses whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as 'a contract, or part ofa contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period in exchange for consideration'. To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:
(i) the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the
asset is made available to the Company
(ii) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all ofthe economic benefits from use ofthe identified asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope ofthe contract
(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use ofthe identified asset throughout the period ofuse.

The Company assesses whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' the asset is used throughout the period ofuse.

Measurement and recognition ofleases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ('ROU') and a coresponding lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-
use asset is measured at cost, which comprises ofthe initial measurement ofthe lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate

ofany costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end ofthe lease, and any lease payments made in advance ofthe lease commencement date (net of
any incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets using the written down value method from the lease commencement date to the earlier ofthe end ofthe
useful life ofthe right-of-use asset or the end ofthe lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators
exist.

IndASl l6 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period ofa lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if
the use ofsuch option is reasonably certain. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease tem reflects the current economic
circumstances.

Extension and termination options are included in a number ofleases ofthe Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Company's operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and
not by the respective lessor.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value ofthe lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease ifthat rate is readily available or the Company's incremental bonowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement
ofthe lease liability are comprises offixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
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Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment
or modification, or ifthere are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset, or profit and toss ifthe righFof-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to account for sho(-term leases and leases oflow-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead ofrecognising a righlof-
use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liability and right-of-use assets have been separately presented in the notes to the financial statements under'Other financial liability' and 'Property,
plant and equipment' (except those meeting the definition of investment property) respectively. Lease payments have been classified as 'Cash flows from
financing activities'.

Short-temt leases arul letses of low-value assels:
The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term oftwelve months or less and leases of low
value assets. The Company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straightJine basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards ofownership ofan asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a straightJine basis over the term ofthe relevant lease unless payments are structured to increase in line with
the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under "Other Income" in the statement ofProfit and Loss. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount ofthe leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed. The respective leased assets are

included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all ofthe risks and rewards ofownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due

from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in lhe leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate ofreturn on the net investment outstanding in respect ofthe lease.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
ifevents or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and defened tax assets, are

tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent ofthe cash inflows from other assets or group ofassets (cash-generating units or CGU). Impairment
occurs when the carrying amount ofa CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount ofthe CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Company's CGUS expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the
business combination. Total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the

other assets ofthe CGU, pro-rata on the basis ofthe carrying amount ofeach asset in the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill recognised in the statement
ofprofit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent period. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal ofimpairment at the end ofeach reporting period.

q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction ofan equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus
issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation ofshares).

Diluted Eamings per share amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes but after adjusting the after income tax effect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive
potential equity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number ofequity shares that could have been issued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are

adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning ofthe yeat unless issued ata laterdate. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each year presented.

r) Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nature, any defenals
or accruals ofpast or future operating cash receipts or payments and item ofincome or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities ofthe Company are segregated.

2.4 Other accounting policies
a) Investmentproperties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment
property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, inveslment properties are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, ifany.

The cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects ifthe recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's

carying amount only when it is probable
expenditure can be measured reliably. All

that future economic benefits assosiated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost ofsuch
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. When part ofan investment
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Investment properties are depreciated using written down value method over their estimated useful lives of60 years. The useful life has been determined
based on a technical evaluation performed by the management's expert.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed ofor when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount oflhe asset is recognised in profit or
loss in the period ofderecognition.

b) Financialinstruments
Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and ifso, the nature ofthe item being hedged, and the type ofhedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ losses.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component ofa hybrid (combined) instrurnent that also includes a non-derivative host contract - with the effect that some of
the cash flows ofthe combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all ofthe cash flows
that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index ofprices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case ofa non-financial variable that the variable is

not specific to a party to the contract.

Ifthe hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope oflnd-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather,
it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are

accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs ifthere is either
a change in the terms ofthe contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification ofa financial asset out
ofthe fair value through profit or loss.

c) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower ofthe cost or net realizable value, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofbusiness,
less estimated costs ofcompletion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost includei cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in,
first out basis.

d) Non-current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and discontinued operations
The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution to owners iftheir carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale/distribution rather than through continuing use and where a sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete the
sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision to sell/distribute will be
withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distribution being completed within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower oftheir carrying amount and the fair value less

costs to sell/distribute except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are presented
separately in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down ofthe asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell/distribute. A gain
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell/ distribute an asset (or a disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date ofsale/ distribution ofthe non-current asset (or disposal group)
is recognised on the date ofderecognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation ifit is a component ofan entity that either has been disposed oll or is classified as held for sale, and:
(D Represents a separate major line ofbusiness or geographical area ofoperations,
(i0 Is part ofa single coordinated plan to dispose ofa separate major line ofbusiness or geographical area ofoperations, or
(iiD Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the statement ofprofit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing operations, unless othemise mentioned.

e) Government grants
Grants from the Government are recognised at their transaction value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant wil I be received, and the Company
will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income or expenditure /expenses are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as defened income and recognised on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives ofrelated assets and presented within other income.
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All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

f) Foreign currency transaction and balances
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (lNR) which is also the Company's functional currency,ie,the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates prevailing at the date, the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates prevailing as at the reporting date.

Subsequently, differences arising on restatement or settlement ofmonetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms ofhistorical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates ofthe initial transactions and translation differences are

recognised in OCI with the accumulation in other equity as foreign currency translation reserve. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation ofnon-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition ofthe gain or loss on the change in fair value ofthe item (i.e., translation differences on items

whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The equity items denominated in foreign cunencies are translated at historical cost.

g) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders ofthe Company
The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders ofthe Company when the distribution is authorised and the

distribution is no longer at the discretion ofthe Company. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the carrying value ofthe assets to be distributed in case ofdistributions in which all owners ofthe same class of
equity instruments are treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the distribution, and

at fair value ofthe assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity. For this purpose, a group ofindividuals shall be

regarded as controlling an entity when, as a result ofcontractual anangements, they collectively have the power to govem its financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that ultimate collective power is not transitory. Upon distribution ofnon-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount ofthe liability and the carrying amount ofthe assets distributed is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

h) Exceptional items
Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of
such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance ofthe Company.

2.5 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 3 l, 2024,MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards

applicable to the Company.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
Use of estimates and jutlgment
The preparation ofthe financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to makejudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that are
reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations
offuture events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgemenls
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made various judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements.

This note provides an overview ofthe areas that involved a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each ofthese estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis ofcalculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Cfitical estimiltes arul judgements
The areas involving critical estimates orjudgements are:

(i) Estimation ofcurrent tax expense and payable - Note 8

(ii) Estimated useful life ofintangible assets - Note 2.3.c
(iiD Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 27
(iv) Recognition ofdeferred tax assets for carried forward oftax losses - Note 8

(v) Impairment of trade receivables - Note 1l
(vi) Whether assets held for distribution to owners meet the definition ofdisconlinued operations - Note 2.4.d

Impdrment
The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to impairment ofassets. Where
an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount ofthe asset is detemined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts

incorporate a number ofkey estimates. There are no reasonable foreseeable changes in these key estimates which would have caused an impairment of
these assets.

SInre-based payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination ofthe most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the

terms and conditions ofthe grant. This estimate also requires determination ofthe most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected

life ofthe stock option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 28.
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (In4ta) !tq{q4l
Alldmounts in INR million, unless stoted otheMise

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be

utilised. Significant managementjudgement is required to determine the amount ofdeferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level offuture taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. (Refer note 8)

Delined benelit plans (gtfltuit! benetits)
The cost ofthe defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value ofthe gratuity obligation are determined using

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination ofthe discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. AlI assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases, and grafuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. (Refer note 27)

Fair value measurement of lina ncial inslruments
When the fair values Offinancial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cailnot be measured based on quoted pr'ices in active markets,

their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable

markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree ofjudgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. (Refer note 19)

Intangihle a sset under develop ment
The Company capitalises development costs for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation ofcosts is based on management's
judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions

regarding the expected future cash generation ofthe project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period ofbenefits. (Refer note 5)

Leases
Ind AS I l6 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period ofa lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease

ifthe use ofsuch option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-byJease basis and there by assesses

whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers

factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination ofthe lease and the importance of
the underlying asset to Company's operations taking into account the location ofthe underlying asset the availability ofsuitable altematives. The lease

term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances (Refer note 4(i) and note 16).

(This space has been intentionally Iefi blank)
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stdted otherwise

4. Property, plant and equipment

Year ended Merch 2023

Year ended March 31,2024

*Includes building on leasehold land.
+tlncludes capitalisation of INR 373.36 millions

*D*

338.68

148.49

306.44

99.35

33.O9

1,348.44

180.15

1,528.59

Net carrying
value rs et
March 31,

2023

336.87

85.52

522.35

146.07

310.94

406.27

263.60

385.57

112.44

2,147.24

2,147.24

As at lldarch
31,2023

Sale and
adjustments

( l 39)

(98.85)

(3.s7\

(r03.8r)

(103.8r)

Charge for
the year

136.48

26.98

173.77

35.7 4

94.73

44.55

11.98

s24.23

s24.23

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1,

2022

38s.87

I19.09

137.t7

37 t.92

267.72

344.s9

100.46

1,726.82

1,726.82

570.04

484.92

t45.53

3,49s.68

180.15

3,675.83

As at March
31,2023

859.22

23t.59

649.62

554.76

Sale and
adjustments

(0.03)

(107.95)

(4.07)

(1 r 2.0s)

(r 12.0s)

during the
Additions

ve tr

105.31

49.2s

24s.49

40.78

t48.32

38.1 0

20.1 8

647.43

I 80.1 s

827.s8

t25.35

2,960.30

2,960.30

Gross block

As at April I,
2022

7 s3.91

182.34

404.13

5 14.01

s29.67

450.89

Buildinss (refer note (i) below)*

Leasehold improvement

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixture

Vehicles

Office equipment

Computer equipment

Capital raork- in-pro gress

Grand total

Description ofessets

Net carrying
value as at
March 31,

2024

451 .71

104.67

556.26

147.19

388.1 0

166.1 l
45.48

1,859.52

1.84

1,861.36

Accumulated depreciation

As at l\{arch
31,2024

669.s6

230.99

505 25

438.05

292.96

444.38

l39.ll
2,720.30

2,720.30

Sale and
edjustments

(3.62\

(0.1 5)

(83.3 l )
(0.07)

(87.1s)

(87.rs)

Charge for
the year

150.83

84.92

194.46

31 .78

112.67

s8.88

26.67

660.21

660.21

As at April 1,
2023

522.35

146.07

3 10.94

406.27

263.60

385.57

112.44

2,147.24

2,147.24

Gross block

As at l\{arch
31,2024

1.121 .27

33s.66

1.061 .51

585.24

681 .06

610.49

184.59

4,579.82

1.84

4,5E1.66

Sale and
adjustments

(3.62)

2.43

(98.62)

(99.8r)

(s7t.29)
(673.10)

Additions
during the

veer
265.67

104.07

409.46

30.48

209.64

125.57

39.06

1,183.9s

394.98

1,578.93

As at April I,
2023

859.22

231.59

649.62

554.76

570.04

484,92

145.53

3,49s.68

1 80.1 5

3,675.83

Description of assets

Buildings (refer note (i) below)*

Leasehold improvement

Plant andmachinery

Frrniture and fixture

Vehicles

Office equipment

Computer equipment

Capital raork-in-propress* *

Grand total



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

(i) Details for right-of-use assets is as below:

Tbtal

278.55

96.66

(132.2s\

242.96

279.07

(1se.e1)

362.12

Building

278.55

96.66

(132.2s)

242.96

279.07

( 159.91)

362.12

Particulars

As at April 1,2022

Additions during the year

Derecognised d:ring the year

Depreciation during the year

As at l\{arch 31,2023

Additions dwing the year

Derecognised during the year

Depreciation dwing the year

As at March 31,2024
Refer note 16

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security
Refer note 15 for information on Property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.

(iii) Contractual obligations
Refer note 34(a) for disclosure on contractual commitnents for acquisition ofProperty, plant and equipmant.

(iv) Aging of Capital work-in-progress
Year ended March 31,2023

Year ended March 31,2024

*Includes plant and machinery pending put to use as per terms ofthe agreements-

Total

180.15

180.1s

More then 3
vet rs

2-3 yearsl-2 years<l year

I 80. l5

180.1s

Particulars

- Projects in progress*

Total

Total

1.84

1.84

More than 3

ve, rs
2-3 years1-2 years<1 year

1.84

r.84

Particulars

- Projects in progress*

Total



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

5, Other intangible assets

Year ended March 31,2023

Net carrying
ralue as at
l\(arch 31,

2023

128.25

136.7 |

264.96

Accu mu lated amortisation

As at March
31,2023

113.97

113.97

Sale and
adjustments

0. l0

0.10

Charge for
the year

18.38

18.38

As at April
1,2022

95.49

95.49

Gross block

As at I\{arch
31,2023

242.22

136.7 |

378.93

Sale and
adjustments

( l 70.5e)

(r70.se)

Additions
during the

vetr
r40.20

9s.90

16.r0

As at April
1,2022

102.02

21r.40

313.42

Description of assets

Computer softuare

Intangible assets rnder development*

Grand Total
*Sales and adjustrnents include amount cross charged to subsidiaries ofthe Company

Year ended March 31,2024

i) Aging oflntangible assets under development
Year ended March 31,2023

Year ended March 31, 2024

Net carrying
value as at
lMarch 31,

2024

238.81

7.74

12.88

259.43

Accumulated amortisation

As at lMarch
31,2024

189.65

0.98

190.63

Sale and
adjustments

(0.04)

(0.04)

Charge for
the year

75.72

0.98

76.70

As at April
1,2023

113.97

tt3.97

Gross block

As at l\darch
s1,2024

428.46

8.72

12.88

450.06

Sale end
adjustments

(1 86 23)

(186.23)

Additions
during the

veer
186.24

8.72

62.40

251.36

As at April
1,2023

242.22

136.71

378.93

Description of assets

Computer softvare

Customer Contracts

Intangible assets mder development

Grand Total

Total

t36.7r

136-7r

More than 3

veeK
20.60

20.60

2-3 years

24.79

24.79

l-2 years

35.7 |

35.71

<1 year

55.61

55.61

Particulars

- Project in progess*

Total

Total

12.88

r2.88

More than 3
Yetrn

2-3 years1-2 years

9. l0

9.10

<1 year

3.78

3.78

Particulars

- Project in progess*

Total

4.28 &29
0khia,

*Intangible assets under development on development ofan Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software.



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

6. Investments

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-current investments

Inyestments in equity instruments

Unquoted equity shares (fully prid)

Investment in subsidiaries (at cost unless stated otherwise)

4,000,000 (March 31, 2023: 4,000,000) equity shares in StrS Security International Holdings Pte.

Ltd. (formerlv known as SIS International Holdinss Ltd.) of AUD 1/- each fullv paid uo
249.07 249.07

11,512,800 (March 31, 2023:11,512,800) equity shares in SMCIntegrated Facility Management

Solutions Limited (formerly know as Service Master Clean Limited) of INR l0l- each fully paid up
142.03 139.20

22,500,000 (March 31, 2023:22,500,0000) equity shares in Terminix SIS India Private Limited of
INR l0/- each fullv paid uo

122,03 t22.03

17,800,000 (March 31, 2023: 14,800,000) equity shares in Tech SISLimited of INR 10/- each

fullv naid un
1 83.1 9 152.90

800,000 (March 31, 2023: 800,000) equty shares in SISAustralia Group Pty Ltd. ofAUD l/- each

fullv oaid up
47.93 47.93

2,801,666 (March 31, 2023:2,801,666) equity shares in Dusters Total Solutions Services Private

Limited of INR 10/- each fullv oaid uo
I,965.5 8 1,965.58

250,000 (March 31 ,2023: 250,000) equity shares in SLV Security Services Private Limited of
INR 100/- each fullv paid up

891.97 8 84.95

I ,169,213 (March 3 I, 2023: 1 ,169,213) equity shares in RARE Hospitality and Services Private

Limited of INR l0/- each fullv paid up
523.ss s20.sl

1,800,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,800,000) equity shares in Uniq Security Solutions Services Private

Limited (formerly known as Uniq Detective and Secwity Services Private Limited) of INR 10/-

each fullv oaid uo

|,032.53 |,032.53

10,000 (March 31,2023: 10,000) equity shares in SIS Slnergistic Adjacencies Ventures Private

Limited of INR l0l- each fully paid up
0.10 0. l0

10,000 (March 31,2023: 10,000) equity shares in StrS Business Support Services and Soltttions

Private Limited of INR l0/- each fullv paid up
0.r0 0. l0

29,000,000 (March 31, 2021:29,000,000) equity shares in SISAlarm MonitoringandResponse

Services Private Limited of INR 10/- each fullv oaid uo
298.43 295.68

1,010,000 (March 3 l, 2023 : I ,010,000) equity shares in One SIS Solutions Private Limited of INR
l0/- each fully paid up

10.l0 I 0.10

10,000 (March 31,2023: Nil) equity shares in One SISResidential Solutions Private Limited of
INR l0/- each fullv paid uo

0. l0

Total investment in subsidiaries (A) s,466.11 s,420.68

Investment in joint ventures (et cost unless stated otherwise)

7,788,892 (March 31, 2023:7 ,788,892) equity shares in SIS Cash Services Private Limited of INR
I 0/- each fullv paid up

77.89 77.89

Total investment in joint ventures (B) 77.E9 17.89

Investment in others (at IVTPL)

3 0 (March 31 ,2023: 30) equity shares in $aqu T echnologies Private Limited of INR l0/- each

fullv paid uo
0. l8 0.18

Total Investment in others (C) 0.18 0.18

Total investment in equity instruments (D=A+B+C) 5,544.78 5,498.75

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

* During the year
(March 31, 2023:

ended March 31,2024, current maturity of debentures in Terminix SIS India Private Limited amounting to Nil
INR 29.89 million) has been disclosed under current investments.

*r During the year ended March 3 l, 2024, current maturity ofNon-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Private Limited and SIS Alarm Monitoring
and Response Services Private Limited amounting to INR 50 million & Nil respectively (March 31, 2023: INR 50 million & INR 100 million respectively)
has been disclosed under current investments.

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Investment in preference shares (at WTPL)

Unquoted preference shares (fully paid)

Investment in others

50.01 50.01
7 ,773 (March 31,2023: 7 ,773) Class-2 compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares in

Staqu Technologies Private Limited of INR 1 0/- each fully paid up

13.26
2, I 69 (March 31,2023:2, I 69) Compulsory convertible preference shares in Staqu Technologies

Private Limited ol INR 542l- each fullv oaid up
13.26

Total investment in preference shares (E) 63.27 63.27

Investments in debentures or bonds

Investment in subsidiaries (at amortised cost)

120.00 20.00
1 20 (March 3l , 2023: I 20) Non-convertible debentures in SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response

Services Private Limited of INR I ,000,000/- each fully paid up* *

28.42
300,000 (March 31, 2023: 300,000) Optionally convertible debentures in Terminix SIS India

Private Limited of INR 100/- each fully oaid up*

26.57
49 (March 31, 2023: 49) Optionally convertible debentures in SMC Integated Facility

Management Solutions Limited (formerly knowr as Service Master Clean Limited) ol INR

1.000.000/- each fullv paid up

29.23

Investment in joint ventures (at amortised cost)

75 00 125.00
125 (March 31,2023:175) Non-convertible debentures in SISCash Services Private Limitedof
INR I ,000,000/- each fully paid up * *

Investment in others (at FVTPL)

3,077 (March 31,2023: Nil) Compulsory convertible debentures in Entitled Solutions Private

Limited of INR 11.373/- each fullv oaid uo
34.99

287.64 171.57Total investments in debentures or bonds (F)

5,895.69 5,733.s9Total non-current investments (IlrE+F)

Current investments

Investments in debentures or bonds

lnvestment in subsidiaries (at amortised cost)

100.00
Non-convertible debentures in SIIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private Limited of
INR 1.000.000/- each fully paid up* *

Optionally convertible debentures in Terminix SS India Private Limited of INR 100/- each fully
oaid uo*

29.89

Investment in joint ventures (at amortised cost)

50 00 50 00Non-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Private Limited of INR I ,000,000/- each fully

oaid uo * *

Total current investments 50.00 179.89

Total investments 5,945.69 5,913.48

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof

s,945 .69 s,9t3.48Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Lggegate amount of impairment in value of investments
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

7. Other financial assets

Particulars ll{arch3l,2O24 March 31,2023

Other non-current financial assets

Security deposits (unsecure4 considered good) 145.35 1s0.22

Margin money in the form of fixed deposits * 117.70 21 .52

Fixed deposit maturing after l2 months 3.1 1 146.60

Other non-current financial assets 0.34

Total other non-current financial assets 266.16 318.68

Other current financial assets

Unbilled revenue * r (Refer note 23) 2,903.29 2,561.39

Security deposits (ursecure4 considered good) 156.99 134.53

lnterest accrued on deposits / investments / loans 111.02 112.64

Other receivables 135.58 t39.94

Total other current financial assets 3,306.88 2,948.50

Total financial assets 3,s73.04 3,267.18

as money against bank guarantees.
** All unbilled dues are undisputed and falling under the ageing bucket ofnot due. Further, unbilled revenues are classified as financial assets as right to
consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage oftime.

No other advances are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private

companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 39.

Refer note 40 for the Company's policy regarding impairment allowance on other financial assets and Company's credit risk management processes.

7a. Loans

Break-up ol security details:

No loans are due from directors or other officers ofthe Company either severally orjointly with any other person and from firms or private companies

respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a mernber except as disclosed in note 39.

8. Income tax
The major components ofincome tax expense for the years ended March 31,2024 andMarch31,2023 are:.

Statement ofprotit arul loss:
ot loss seclion:

Pa rticu lr rs March3l,2O24 March 31,2023

Non-current loans

Loans to related parties 3l .56 l4t.2t

Total non-current loans 31.56 t4t.2l

Current loens

Loans to related parties 91 .90

Tbtal current loans 91.90

Total Loans 123.46 t4t.2t

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Loan Receivables considered good - Secwed

Loan Receivables considered good - Unsecured 123.46 l4l.21

Total Loans 123.46 t4t.2t

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Current income tax:

29.25Cwrent income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax expense / (reversal) of previous years 16.70 84.86

Deferred tax:

Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (net) 8.s 8 (666.2e)

25.28 (ss2.18)Incorne tax expense / (credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (lq4f4 t r.ntlg4)
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

OCI section:
TLY rclated to iterns in OCI the

Tox related to ilems in equity during the year:

Reconciliation of tat expense and tlte accoanting ptoJit multiplied b! the tLY March 31,2024 and March 31,2023:

The effective tax rate applicable to the Company for the financial year 2024-25 would be 25.17"/o (including surcharge and cess) based on the law as it
exists on the date ofthese financial statements.

The bilance in tlt assels/ attfibutable to:

Particulars March3l,2024 March 31,2023

Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets 137.75 145.55

Defined benefit obligations 4t5.6s 364.78

Deductions in respect ofcertain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 720.O8 809.55

Accruals and others 268.60 2s8.36

Allorrrance for expected credit loss - trade receivables 136.78 110.07

Unused tax losses 1.52 t.52

Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 1,680.38 1,689.83

Relected in lhe balflnce shee! as follot's:
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Deferred tax assets 1,680.38 1,689.83

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net 1,680.38 1,689.83

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

l/Iarch3l,2O24 March 31,2023Particulars

0.87 22.12Tax expense / (credit) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans

22.120.87Income tax charged(credited) to OCI

March 31,2023March 31,2024Particulars

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognized in profit or

loss or other comprehensive income, but directly debited/credited to equity

Income tax credited / (charged) to equity

March 31,2023Particulars March 31,2O24

1,896.17 |,349.12Accounting profit before income tax

25.17% 25.17%Statutory income tax rate

339.55Income tax expense at statutory rate 477.21

(480.02) (e82.8 r )Additional temporary tax deductible in respect ofcertain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes

s.63 1.83Corporate social responsibility expenditure

t.73Donation 0.66

s.08 2.66Other non-deductible expenses

16.70 84.86Adjtstments in respect of current income tax expense / (reversal) of previous years

25.28 (ss2.18)Thx expense reported in the statement of profit and loss
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All dmounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Reconciliation of deleffed tox flssets / (liabilities), net:

Particulars

Property,
plant and

equipment

Intangible
assets

Defined
benefit

obligations

Deductions
in respect
of certain
benefits

under the
Income Thx
Act, 1961

Accruals
and others

Allowance
for

expected
credit loss

- trade
receivables

Unused
tax losses

Total

As at April 1,2022 I 18.14 301.39 308.67 238.49 17.45 l.s2 1,045.66

Tax income / (expense) during the period

recopnised in orofit or loss
27.41 85.51 500.88 19.87 32.62 666-29

Tax income / (expense) during the period

recomised in OCI
(22.12) (22.r2)

As at lVturch 31,2023 145.55 364.78 809.55 25E.36 I 10.07 t,s2 1,689.83

Tax income / (expense) during the period

recogrised in profit or loss
(7.80) 51 .74 (8e.47) 10.24 26.71 (8.s8)

Tax income / (expense) during the period

recomised in OCI
(0 87) (0.87)

As at March 31,2024 137.75 415.65 720.08 268.60 136.78 t.s2 1,680.38

Income lu assets:

Particulars March 31,2O24 March 31,2023

Opening balance 1,204.96 1,410.12

Taxes paid 82s.27 640.31

Refund received (41.42) (816.22)

Current tax payable for the year (16.70) (29.2s)

Income tax assets 1,972.11 1,204.96

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities ifand only if it has a legally enforceable right to set offcurrent tax assets and current tax
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

9. Other Assets

*Includes balance under protest with revenue authorities

10. Inventories

11. Trade receivables

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Other non-current assets

Capital advances 46.t2 30.44

Other advances 5.5 8 0.05

Total other non-current assets 51.70 30.49

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses 3 1 8.98 202.15

Costs to obtain/fulfil contract with customers 0.72

Other advances 1 54.1 0 91.56

Other current assets* 370.20 335.43

Total other current assets 843.28 629.86

Total other assets 894.98 660.3s

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Uniforms 180.33 150.57

Total inventories at the lower ofcost and net realisable value 180.33 150.57

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Trade receivables 8,502.73 7,379.98

Less: Allouance for expected credit loss 543.47 516.91

Total trade receivables 7,959.26 6,863.07

NEW



Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Secured considered good

7 ,959.26 6,863.07Unsecured considered good

6,863.07Total 7,959.26

SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 6Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
AII dmounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

details:

The amount of loss allowance (lifetime expected credit loss) has been recognised under the simplified approach for trade receivable and hence break-up
oftrade receivable into'significant increase in credit risk' and'credit impaired'has not been disclosed separately.

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade receivables from the due date is given below:
Year ended March 31,2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total

Not due I*ss than
6 months

6 months -
I veer

1-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 vears

(i) Undisputed trade receivables 3,486 76 3,034.93 s34.16 566.73 386.65 4s8.58 8,467.81

(ii) Disputed trade receivables 3.14 6.61 25.17 34.92

Year ended March 31,2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total

Not due I-ess than
6 months

6 months -
1 vear

l-2 years 2-3 years More than
3 veerc

(i) Undisputed trade receivables 3,265.96 2,483.59 498.92 469.18 304.21 324.53 7,346.39

(ii) Disputed trade receivables 4.60 4.22 0.70 24.07 33.59

The movement in allowances for expected credit loss is as follows:

Particulars March3l,2O24 March 31,2023

Opening balance sr6.91 307.74

Additions 129.60 209.t7

Write off (1 03.04)

Closing balance s43.47 516.91

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers ofthe Company either severally orjointly with any other person and from firms or private

companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 39.

Refer note 40 for the Company's policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Company's credit risk management processes.

For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 39.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on tems of30 to 90 days.

12. Cash and bank balances
Cash and caslt

*Includes amount pledged as security/margin money against guarantees issued by banks on behalfofthe Company.
Bank balances lying in various current accounts bear no interest.
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end ofreporting period and prior periods.

Other bank balances

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balances with banks:

3s l .05 t83.44- On current accormts

781 .03 816.58- Bank deposits with original matuity of three months or less*

Cash on hand 2.47

Total 1,132.08 1,002.49

March 31,2O24 March 31, 2023Particu la rs

0.94 1.04Unclaimed dividend accounts

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months and having remaining maturity of less

than tuplve months from reoorting date
122.27 360.31

Margin money * 166.43 I 75.08

289.64 536.43Total

NEW
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Ser"vices (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

13. Equity Share capital

Aulhorised share capitnl

Particulars (Nos. in million) (INR million)

As at April 1, 2022 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00

Increase(decrease) during the year

As at March 31,2023 (Quity shares of INR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00

Increase(decrease) during the year

As at March 31,2024 (Fquity shares of INR 5 each) 210.00 1,350.00

Subscribed and

During the year ended March 31,2024, pursuant to the approval ofthe Board ofDirectors ofthe Company, at its meeting held on November 30,2023, the
Company offered I,636,363 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process, for an

aggregate amount not exceeding 900 million, equivalentto 1.l2yo ofthe total paid up equity share capital ofthe Company as on November 24,2023, at

INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the provisions ofthe Security and Exchange Board oflndia (Buy-back ofSecurities) Regulations 2018, as

amended and the Companies Act, 20 13, as amended. The said shares bought back through the tender offer process and were extinguished on January 05,

2024. The Company funded the buyback from its free resewes as required under the said regulations. Consequently, 1,636,363 equity shares offace value

oflNR 5 each were extinguished by appropriating a sum ofINR 89 1.82 million from the securities premium and an amount ofINR 8.1 8 million, equivalent
to the nominal value ofthe Equity Shares bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

DuringtheyearendedMarch3l,2023,pursuanttotheapprovaloftheBoardofDirectorsoftheCompany,atitsmeetingheld onJune29,2022,andthe
shareholders, by way ofa special resolution through postal ballot, on August12,2022, the Company offered 1,454,545 equity shares offace value oflNR
5 each for buyback for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate amount not exceeding 800 million, equivalent
0.99% ofthe total paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 3l,2022, at INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the provisions of
the Security and Exchange Board oflndia (Buy-back ofSecurities) Regulations 2018, as amended and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended. The said

share bought back through the tender offer process was completed on November 11,2022. The Company funded the buyback from its free resewes as

required under the said regulations. Consequently, 1,454,545 equity shares offace value ofINR 5 each were extinguished by appropriating a sum ofINR
792.73 million from the securities premium and an amount ofINR 7.27 million, equivalent to the nominal value ofthe Equity Shares bought back through
the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

During the year ended March 31,2022, pursuant to the approval ofthe Board ofDirectors ofthe Company, at its meeting held on February l5,202l,and
the shareholders, by way ofa special resolution through postal ballot, on March 20, 2021,the Company offered l,8l8,l8l equity shares offace value of
INR 5 each for buyback for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate amount not exceeding 1,000 miltion,
equivalent 1.24o/o ofthe total paid up equity share capital ofthe Company as on March 31,2020, at INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the
provisions ofthe Security and Exchange Board oflndia (Buy-back ofSecurities) Regulations 201 8, as amended and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended.

The said share bought back through the tender offer process was completed on June 21,2021. The Company funded the buyback from its free reserves as

required under the said regulations. Consequently, 1,8 I 8,1 8l equity shares offace value ofINR 5 each were extinguished by appropriating a sum oflNR
990.9 I million from the securities premium and an amount ofINR 9.09 million, equivalent to the nominal value ofthe Equity Shares bought back through
the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

Notes (pre share sub-division elfed i.e. face value of INR 10 per share):
a. 2,210,500 and 62,457,240 equity shares were allotted as fully paid Bonus Shares by capitalization ofgeneral reserve during the year ended March

31,2006 and March 31,2017 respectively.
b. Mr. Uday Singh was the holder of 79,000 unpaid shares in SIS Intemational Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary. In terms of a letter dated

December l, 2009, Mr. Singh had the option to exchange these shares for shares of the Company in a manner reflecting the fair value of these

shares, reduced by the amounts unpaid on them. Subsequently, in lieu of these shares and suitably adjusted for amounts unpaid thereon, Mr. Singh

was allotted 40,565 Equity Shares during the year ended March 31,2017, at a ratio as determined in accordance with a valuation report prepared

by a SEBI registered merchant banker.
c. During the year ended March 3 1, 201 8, the Company completed an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of its shares consisting of a fresh offer of 4,444,785

equity shares of INR l0 each at a premium of INR 805 per share and an offer for sale of5,120,619 equity shares of INR l0 each by the selling
shareholders. The proceeds of the fresh offer component from the IPO amounted to INR 3,410.47 (million) (net of issue expenses). The equity
shares ofthe Company were listed on NSE and BSE effective August 10,2017.

Ternrs/rights ilttilched to equity shares
The Company has only one class ofequity shares having par value ofINR 5 per share. Each holder ofequity shares is entitled to one vote per share and to
participate in dividends in proportion to the number ofand amounts paid on the shares held. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event ofliquidation ofthe Company, the holders ofequity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets ofthe Company, after distribution
ofall preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number ofequity shares held by the shareholders.

(f)

(Nos. in million) (INR million)Particulars

As at April 1,2022 (Fquity shares of If{R 5 each) 147.03 735.t6

0. l5 0.76Issued on exercise of stock options

(7.27)Buyback of equity shares (1.45)

As at March 31,2023 (F4uity shares ofINR 5 each) 14s.73 728.6s

0.01 0.03Issued on exercise of stock options

(8 r8)Buyback of equity shares ( l .64)

As at March 31,2024 (Equity shares ofIllR 5 each) 144.10 720.50
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Details ofshareholders holding more than 57" shares in the

Name ofthe shareholder
As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

No. in million
% holdinglnthe

clnss
No. in million

ol holding in the

class

Ravindra Kishore Sinha s6.62 39.29% 57.16 39.230A

Rita Kishore Sinha 23.09 16.02% 23.31 16.00o/o

Rituraj Kishore Sinha 15.5 I lO.7 60/o 15.66 10.74o/a

Aggregate number ofequity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period offive years

immediately preceding the reporting date:

Details of promoter shareholding in the Company
Year ended March 31,2024

Year ended March 31 2023

Shares resened lor issue untler options.' Refer note 28 for details regarding employee stock options issued by the Company

14. Other

Particulars
March 31,

2024
March 31,

2023
March 31,

2022
March 31,

2021
March 31,

2020

No. No. No. No. No.

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by

capitalization of general reserve
10,480 10,480

Equity shares allotted as fully paid up without payment king
received in cash

Buyback of equity shares 1,6t6,363 1,454,545 l ,81 8,1 81

S. No. Name of the Promoter Fquity shares as

on April l,2023
(in Nos.)

7o holding
in the class

F4uity shares as

on March 31,2024
(in Nos.)

%o holding
in the class

o/oChange

during the
year

Promoters

Ravindra Kishore Sinha 57 ,163,67 | 39.23% 56,6 I 8,087 39.29% 0.06%

') Rituraj Kishore Sinha 15,658,482 10.74Yo 1 5,509,033 10.76% 0.02o/o

Totrl 72,822,153 72,127,120

S. No. Name of the Promoter Equity shares as

on April 1,2022
(in Nos.)

% holding
in the class

Equity shares as

on March 31,2023
(in Nos.)

7o holding
in the class

7o Change
during the

year

Promoters

I Ravindra Kishore Sinha 57,648,582 39.2t% 57,163,671 39.23% 0.02%

2 Rituraj Kishore Sinha t5,791,311 t0.74% 1s,6s8,482 10.74% 0.00%

Total 73,439,893 72,822,153

Particu lars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Reserves and surplus

1,423.7 4 2,334.27Securities premium

566.47Crneral reserve s77.96

7,l5l.63 s,485.90Retained earnings

9,1s3.33 8,386.64Total reserves and surplus (A)

Other reserves

334.87Stock options outstanding account 391.45

24.54 16.36Capital redemption reserve

415.99 35t.23Total other reserves (B)

Share application money pending allotment (C)

Total other equity (A+B+C) 9,569.32 8,737.87
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Securilies

General reserve

Retdned

Stock oatstanding account

Capital redemptio n teserve

allotment

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning of year o.o2

Share application money received during the year 0.02 0.70

Issued on exercise of stock options (0.02) (0.72)

BBlance at the end of year

Slnre

Naturc and putpose of Reserves
Securities Premium
Security premium is used to record the premium on issue ofshares or other securities such as debentures or bonds. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the Companies Act, 2013.

Geneml Reserve
The general reserve is the result ofa company's transfening a certain amount ofprofit from the account ofretained earnings to the general reserve account.

The purpose of setting up a general reserue account is to meet potential future unknown liabilities. In other words, the general reserve is a free reserve

which can be utilized for any purpose after fulfilling certain conditions.

March 31,2023Particulars March 31,2024

2,334.27 3,123.34Balance at the beginning ofyear
2.61 23.55Exercise of stock options

(e00.00) (800.00)Buyback of equity shares

(12.62)Transaction cost related to buyback ofequity shares (net oftaxes) (1 3.1 4)

r,423.74 2,334.27Balance at the end of year

Pa rticu la rs March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 566,47 563.94

Transferred from stock options outstanding account on stock options forfeited/lapsed ll.49 2.53

Balance at the end ofyear s71.96 s66.47

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

5,485.90 3,703.48Balance at the beginning ofyear

Net Profit / ([oss) for the year I,870.89 l ,901 .30

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

65.79- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit plans directly in retained earnings (net of taxes) 2.60

Appropriations-

(207.76) (184.67)- Tax on buyback ofequity shares

7,tst.63 5,485.90Balance at the end of year

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 334.87 225.41

Stock option compensation expense 70.68 t35.54

Transferred to securities premium on exercise of stock options (2.6t) (23.ss)

Transferred to general reserve on stock options forfeited/lapsed (l 1.49) (2.53)

Balance at the end of yeer 39 t.45 334.87

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 16.36 9.09

Created on hryback of equity shares 8.18 7.27

Balance at the end of year 24.54 16.36

NEW D
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Servtces Ondia) Limited)
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted othetwise

Stock Options outstanding Account
The stock options outstanding account is used to recognize the grant date fair value ofoptions issued to employees under the company's employee stock

option plans. The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value ofequity-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including key

management personnel, as part oftheir remuneration. Refer to note 28 for further details.

Cap it al redempt io n rcserv e
As perthe Companies Act,20l 3, Capital redemption reserve is created when a company purchases its own shares out offree reserves orsecurities premium.

A sum equal to the nominal value ofthe shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. This reserve can be utilized in accordance with
the provisions ofsection 69 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. Refer note 13 for further details.

Share application money pending allotuent
Share application money pending allotment represents the exercise price received from employees ofthe Company againststock options on which allotment

is not yet made.

'1 (his space has been intentionally left blank)
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

15,

Particulars Note March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current borrowings

Secu red

Term loans

From banks

- HDFC bank limited a 233.29

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited b 67.74

$andard Chartered Bank c I 08.9s 254.24

DBS Bank d t7 5.33

Vehicle loan from various banks e 344.40 225.21

From other parties

- Axis Finance Limited f 942.21 940.12

- Bajaj Finance Limited 944.14 940.22

- Vehicle loan from others h 6.09 18.53

Total secured borrowings 2,754.4t 2,446.06

Unsecured

Bonds/ debentures

Rupee denominated bonds issued to SIS Australia Crroup Pty Limited a subsidiary company 748.8 8 748.20

Ibtal unsecu red borrowin gs 748.88 748.20

Ibtal non-current borrowin gs 3,503.29 3,194.26

Less: Current maturity of long-term borrowings (refer table below) (e64.re) (28e.73)

Non-current borrowings 2,539.10 2,904.s3

Current borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

From banks

- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited j 19.50

- Axis Bank Limited j 740.00 588.94

- HDFC Bank Limited J 1,300.00 1,500.00

- ICICI Bank Limited J 800.93 666.65

- Standard Chartered Bank j 800.00 200.00

- Sate Bank of India k 640.00

- Yes Bank Limited J 600.00 600.00

- DBS Bank J 451.23

- CTBC bank Co. Ltd. 350.00

Total secu red borrowin gs 5,O42.16 4,215.O9

Unsecured

Inans repayable on demand

From Banks

- HDFC Bank Limited 200.00

Total u nsecu red borrowin gs 200.00

Add: Current maturity oflong-term borrowings (refer table below) 964.19 289.73

Current borrowings 6,006.35 4,704.82

Aggregate secured borrowings 7,796.57 6,661.15

Aggregate unsecured borrowngs 748.88 948.20
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Breakup of currert nntuilly

Notes:
Long Term Bonowings - Secured:
Term Ioans:
From Banks:
a) Secured by way ofexclusive charge on the movable fixed assets ofthe Company purchased out ofthe term loan proceeds and second pari passu

charge on current assets and all movable fixed assets (excluding assets exclusively charged to other term lenders) ofthe Company both present and

future. The loan is repayable in I 8 equal quarterly instalments commenced in the 4{' quafter ofFY 2023-24 and last installment repayment is scheduled

in first quarter ofFY 2028-29.

b) Secured by way offirst charge on the movable fixed assets ofthe Company purchased out ofthe term loan proceeds and second pari passu charge on

receivables/ current assets ofthe Company both present and future. The loan was repayable in l8 equal quarterly instalments commenced from the

end ofthe lst quarter ofFY 2019-20 and has been fully repaid duringFY 2023-24.

c) Secured by way ofexclusive charge over the Monitoring equipment purchased out ofthe term loan proceeds. The loan is repayable in 12 equal
quarterly instalments commenced from the end ofthe fourth quarter ofFY 2021-22 and last installment repayment is scheduled in third quarter of
FY 2024-25.

d) Secured by way of exclusive charge on the Monitoring equipment purchased out of the term loan proceeds. The loan was repayable in 1 8 equal

quarterty instalments commenced from the end ofthe 4th quarter ofFY 2023-24 and last installment repayment is scheduled in first quarter ofFY
2028-29

e) Vehicle Loan from banks are secured by hypothecation ofvehicles purchased against the loan taken from that Bank. The loans have various repayment
schedules and the last instalment repayment is scheduled in FY 2029-30.

The term loans mentioned above except vehicle loans, carry interest at quarterly/half-yearly/year MCLR4VIIBOR/Repo/T-Bill plus spread ranging from
75 bps to 3 l5 bps (March 3 l, 2023: 75 bps to 3 I 5 bps). The vehicle loans carry interest from 7.10o/o to 9.75o/o per annum.

Front Otlw Puties:
f) Secured by way of first pari-passu charge on current and non-current assets of Dusters Total Solution Services Private Limited & Uniq Security

Solutions Private Limited (subsidiaries ofthe Company) and l3% pledge ofshares ofDusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited. The loan is

repayable on 5 semlannual equal instalments commenced from the end offourth quarter ofF .Y 2024-25 and last payment ofrepayment is scheduled

on fourth quarter ofFY 2026-27.

Secured by way offirst pari-passu charge on cunent and movable fixed assets ofDusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited & UNIQ Security
Solutions Private Limited (subsidiaries ofthe Company) and 13% pledge ofshares ofDusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited. The loan is
repayable on 8 equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end offirst quarter ofF.Y 2024-25 and last payment ofrepayment is scheduled on

fourth quarter ofFY 2025-26.

Vehicle Loan from other financiers are secured by hypothecation ofthe respective vehicle(s) purchased against the loan taken from that financier(s).
The loans carry interest from 7.50yo to 10.50olo per annum and have various repayment schedules and last instalment repayment is scheduled in FY
2025-2026.

Long tem horrou)ings - Unsecured:
Boruls/debenlures:
i) SIS Australia Group Pty Limited, a subsidiary, has subscribed to 750 Rupee Denominated Bonds (RDBs) of face value of INR 1,00 0,000/- each. The

RDBs will constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations ofthe Company to repay the issue price plus interest @ 8olo per annum. These

RDB's shall be redeemed within 9 years (redemption due by August 2025)from the date ofissue with a lock-in-period of3 years from the date of
issue and interest is payable halfyearly.

Short term borrowings - Secured/Unsecured loans repayable on demnnd:
j) Secured by first pari-passu charges over the current assets and second pari-passu charge over movable fixed assets.

k) Secured by first pari-passu charges over the current assets and movable fixed assets (both present and future) ofthe Company and second pari-passu

charge is with other working capital lenders.
l) Secured by first pari passu charge over current assets both present and future.
m) The short-term borrowing charges are bxcluding assets specifically charged to term loan lenders, ifany.

The loans repayable on demand mentioned above, carry interest at quarterlylhalf yearlylyearly MCLfuRepo ratelMIBOR/TBILL plus spread ranging from

15 bps to 200 bps (March 3 1,2023:25 bps to 125 bps) for WCDL/Cash credit facility.

There has been no default in the payment of interest or repayment of principal in respect ofthe above loans/borrowings.

h)

fl
'']
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(f)

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

Secured

Bonds/ debentu res

Ibrm loans

293.69 277.29From banks

670.50 12.44From other parties

Unsecu red

964.19 289.73Total current maturity of long-term borrowings
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'security and Intelligence Servi""t Oodia) Limit"d)
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

16. LeaseLiabilities

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-cwrent lease liabilities s38.00 398.s2

Current lease liabilities 125.7 5 96.93

Total lease liabilities 663.7s 495.45

Other disclosure related to lease

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Finance cost accrued during the year 74.29 62.43

Payment of lease liability (1 85.06) ( 1s4.07)

Rent expense related to short-term leases and lowvalue assets 289.98 277.00

Refer note 4(i) for disclosure ofrelated Right ofUse Assets.

The Company does not expect potential exposure to variable lease payments, extension / termination options, guaranteed residual value and lease

commitments.

17. Trade

The terms and conditions ofthe above financial liabilities are as follows:
a. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are nomalty settled on credit terms ranging from 30-90 days which vary by vendor and type ofservice.

b. For outstanding balances, terms and conditions with related parties, refer to note 39.

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade payables from due date is given below:
Year ended March 3l 2024

Year ended March 31 2023

There are no during the year ended March 31,2024 andMarch3l,2023.

(This space has been intentionally IeJi blank)

March3l,2O24 March 31,2023Particulars

Non-current

Current

Tlade payables

39.1 0 24.30total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME)

I 99.88226.99total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

266.09 224.18Total current trade payables

266.09 224-18Ibtal

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total

Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

vears

(i)MSME 37.96 1.14 39.10

(ii)Others 48.97 157.59 12.38 7.01 1.04 226.99

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Ibtal

Not due <l year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
ve, rs

(i)MsME 12.47 I1.83 24.30

(ii)Others 82.30 109.52 7.43 0 sl 0.12 199.88

NEW



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services Qndia) Lt4qitedl)

All amounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Based on the information available with the Company, the amount payable to creditors who have been identified as "suppliers" within the meaning of
"Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006" is as below:

Pa rticu lars March3l,2O24 March 31,2023

Principal amount and the interest [{ Ni[ (March 3 1, 2023 -Nil)] due thereon 39.1 0 24.30

Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section l6 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with

the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting

vear

Amount of interest due and payable for the period ofdelay in making payment (uihich have been

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without addrng the interest specified under

MSMED Act, 2006

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

Amount.of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MWED Act, 2006

18. Other financial liabilities

Pa rticu la rs March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-cu rrent

Financial guarantees 0.64 1.47

Other non-cwrent financial liabilities 4.51

Total other non-current financial liabilities 5.1 5 1.47

Current

Capital creditors 7.57 7 4.72

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 31.47 32.79

Financial guarantees 9.65 4.19

Unclaimed/unpaid dividends 0.94 104

Employee benefits payable 3,t78.64 2,925.32

Other payables and accruals * 364.44 195.96

Total other current financial liabilities 3,592,71 3,234,02

Total other financial liabilities 3,597.E6 3,235.49

* Includes unbilled dues, having ageing of less than one year

19. Details ofguarantee given covered UiS 186(4) ofthe Companies Act' 2013
Corporate guarantees given by the Company in respect of borrowings taken by subsidiaries:'

Loans given and investments made are given under the respective heads.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Tech SIS Limited 70 00 70.00

Service Master Clean Limited 1,895.00

SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private Limited 500.00 530.00

SLV Security Services Private Limited 770.00 895.00

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited 295.26 270.26

Total 1,635.26 3,660.26
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

20, Financial instruments by

March 31,2O24 March 31, 2023

Amortised
cosl

Particulars
TVTPL FVTOCI

Amortised
cost

FVTPL FVTOCI

Financial assets:

Investments

-Equity instrunents 0.18 0.18

-Preference shares 63.27 63.27

302.65 351.46-Bonds and debentures 34.99

6,863.07Trade receivables 7,959.26

Cash and cash equivalents 1,132.08 1,002.49

289.64 536.43Other bank balances

t4l.2lLoans 123.46

C)ther financial assets 3,57 3.04 3,267.18

98.44 13,380.13 63.45 12,161.84Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:
224.18Trade payables 266.09

Borrowings 8,545.45 7,609.35

663.7 S 495.45Lease liabilities

3,235.49Other financial liabilities 3,597.86

11,564.47Total fi nancial liabilities 13,073.15

Fair value hierarchy
The assets measured at fair value on a basis and the basis for that measurement is as below:

Va I uat io n ma ho do lo gies :
Investment in equity / preference instruments: The Company's investments consist primarily of investment in equity / preference shares of unquoted

companies. Management has considered cost to be approximating to the fair value ofcertain investments and valued other investments using fair valuation

techniques as mentioned below.

All ofthe resulting fair value estimates are included in Level 3 as the fair values have been determined based on present values and discount rates used are

adjusted for counter party or own credit risk.

The table presents the change in Level 3 items for the periods ended March 31,2024 and March 31,2023:

March 31,2023March 31,2024

I*vel 2
innuls

Level 3

innuls
I-cvel I
in nu ts

l*vel2
in nu ts

I-evel 3
i n nuts

I*vel I
innuts

Financial Assets:

63.45Investments carried at FVTPL 98.44

Total Financial Assets 98.44 63.45

Investments
carried at

FVTPL
Particulars

As at April l,2022

Changes during the year 63.4s

63.45As at March 31,2023

34.99Changes during the year

98.44As at March 31,2024

Unrealised fair value (gains) / losses recognized in statement of prolit and loss related to assets and liabilities
held at the end ofthe reporting period:

March 31,2024

March 31,2023
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
AII amounts in INR million, unless stoted otheNise

Fair Values of assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs are as follows:

receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, bank lease

amounts largely due to the short-tem maturities ofthese instruments.

The fair vatue of investments, loans given and fixed rate borrowings are calculated based on fixed cash flows discounted using weighted average cost of
debt as on balance sheet date and accordingly classified under level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of significant observable inputs.

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The table summarises the information about the significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements:

Valuation processes

The finance department ofthe Company includes the team that performs the valuations offinancial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values, The team reports directly to the chieffinancial officer (CFO). Discussions ofvaluation processes and results are

held between the CFO and the team at least once every 3 months, in line with the Company's quarterly reporting period. Extemal valuer's assistance is

also taken for valuation purposes where required.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evaluated as follows:
o Discounts rates are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments ofthe time value

ofmoney and the risk specific to the asset.

. Risk adjustments specific to the counter parties (including assumptions about credit default rates) are derived from credit risk grading determined by

the Company's intemal credit risk management group.

o Volatility used for option pricing model is based on historical volatility ofcomparable companies.
o Contingent consideration - estimated based on expected cash outflows arising from the forecasted sales and the entities; knowledge ofthe business

and how the current economic environment is likely to impact it.

21. Provisions

\\

a)

March 31,2024 March 3I,2023Fair value
hierarchy Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Particulars

Financial assets:

355.80Investments Level2 302.6s 302.s0 3s1.46

7 ,959.26 7 ,959.26 6,863.07 6,863.07Trade receivables

1,002.49 t,002.49Cash and cash equivalents I,132.08 1.132.08

s36.43Other bank balances 289.64 289.64 536.43

Level2 123.46 125.82 141.21 143.34Loans

3,57 3.04 3,267 .18 3,267.18Other financial assets 3,573.04

12,168.31Total financial assets 13,380.13 13,382.34 t2,161.84

trlnancial liabilities:

266.09 224.18 224.18Trade payables 266.09

6,617.41 6,617.41Borrowings - floating rate 7,446.08 7,446.08

94t.96Level2 1,099.37 1,059 .66 991.94Borrowings - fixed rate

663.7 5 663.75 49s.4s 495.45Lease liabilities

3,23s.49 3,235.49Other financial liabilit ies 3,s97.86 3,s97.86

11,514.49Total Iinancial liabilities 13,073.15 13,033.44 11,564.47

Particulars Fair value as at

March31,2024 March 3I, 2023

Significant
unobservable

inputs
Sensitivity

98.44 63.45 Fair value / Cost

Management has considered fair value /
cost to be approximating to fair value

of such investments.
Unquoted investments

Particulars March 31,2O24 March 31, 2023

Provision for employee benelits (refer note 27) : Non-current Current Non-current Current

Cratuity 942.90 133.1 I 813.45 103.70

Compensated absences t22.86 73.80

Total 942.90 255.97 813.45 177.50
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allamounts in INR million, unless stoted othetwise

22. Other liabilities

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

O ther non-current liabilities

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable 1,309.92 I,200.46

Unearned Income (refer note 23) 0.72

Total other current liabilities 1,309.92 1,201.18

Total other Iiabilities 1,309.92 1,201.18

23. Revenue from

*Includes revenue from the sale ofuniforms to employees.

D is rg g regile reve nue i nfo r nalio n
The following table presents the disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers.

Contracl balances:
The table infomation about unbilled revenue and meamed income from contract with customers

Cost to obtain orfulJil a contract witlt fl customer

March 31,2023Particulars March 31,2024

Sale ofproducts (traded goods)

Revenue from sale of electronic security devices 473.59 165.36

473.s9 165.36Total (A)

Rendering of services

Security services

44,125.28 38,886.70From gu,arding and other security services

Other seruices

From training fees 123.85 122.2s

Total rendering of services 44,249.13 39,008.9s

689.86 67 4.41Other operating revenues*

39,683.36Total (B) 44,938.99

Revenue from operations (A+B) 45,412.58 39,848.72

Particulars March3l,2024 March 31,2023

Revenue by time of recognition

At a point in time (sale of equipments) 473.59 165.36

Over the period of time 44,938.99 39,683.36

Total 45,412.58 39,848.72

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Unbilled
reven Ie

Unearned
In cnme

Particulars Unbilled
revenue

Unearned
Income

Opening balance 2,561,39 0.72 2,186.59 9.17

Revenue recognised that vas included in unearned income at the

beginning of the year (0.72) (e.17)

Increase due to cash receive4 excluding amounts recognised as

revenue during the year 0.72

(2. l 86.s9)

Transfers from unbilled revenue, recognised at the beginning of
the year, to receivables (2,s61.39)
Increase due to revenue recognised during the year, excluding

amounts billed during the year 2,903.29 2,56t.19

Closing balance 2,903.29 2,561.39 0.72

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

0pening balance 0.12 9.17

0.72Costs incurred and deferred

Less: Cost amortised (0.72) (e.17)

Closing balance -/^fil?;:- 0.72
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

24. Other income

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

lnterest income* t7 4.96 t't 4.13

Dividend income from subsidiaries 662.37 s20.13

Total 837.33 694.26
*Includes interest income on income tax refund

25. Other / (loss)

+Includes gain(loss) on derecognition ofRight ofUse assets

27. Employee Cost
benefits include:

(b) Unfunded Scheme - Leave obligations
Leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leave.

The provision for leave obligations is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement ofany ofthese
obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave within the next 12

months. The following amount reflects leave that is not expected to be taken within the next 12 months:

Particulrrs March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Leave obligation not expected to be settled within next I 2 months 89.09 s5.32

Unlunded Schemes:

The liability for eamed and sick leave is recognised and measured at the present value ofthe flows to made in respect of all
employees at the reporting date: In determining the present value of the liability, attrition rates and pay increases throug h promotion and inflation have

been taken into account.

(c) Defined contribution plans
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of l2% ofthe salary (subject to a
limit of INR I 5,000 salary per month) as per regulations. The contributions are made to a statutory provident fund administered by the Government. The

obligation ofthe Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligations in this regard.

Further, contributions are made in respect ofEmployees' State Insurance Scheme, for specified employees, at the rate of3.25o/o ofthe gross pay as per

regulations. The contributions are towards medical benefits provided by the Government to the employees. The contributions are made to employees' state

insurance authorities administered by Government. The obligation ofthe Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual

\

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Net gain(loss) on sale ofproperty, plant and equipment* 1.72 (1.00)

( l .33)Foreign exchange gain(loss) 0.43

Other items 0.79 0.43

Total 2.94 (1.e0)

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Inventory at the beginning of the year 150.57 147.20

180.33 150.57Inventory at the end of the year

Changes in inventory - (increase)/decrease (2e.76) (3.37)

March 31,2023Particulars March 31,2024

Salaries, uages and bonus 35,700.44 3l,s12.4s

Contribution to provident and other funds 3,714.60 3,424.35

78.47Employee share-based payment expense 4s.66

Crratuity expense 271.87 234.50

Leave compensation 52.31 10.77

(6e.11) 41.48Staff r.rclfare expenses

Total 39,715.77 33,302.02

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Present value of unfunded obligations 122.86 73.80

52.31 10.77Expenses to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Discount rate (per annum) 7.15% 7.20o/o

Salary escalation rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Contributions to provident fund and employees' state insurance scheme are recognised as an expense as they become payable which coincides with the
period during which relevant employee services are received. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction

in the future payments is available.

Pnrticulars March Jl, 2024 March 31,2023

Expense recognised during the period tovards defined contribdion plans 3,714.60 3,424.35

(d) Defined benefits plans
In accordance with the Payment ofGratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination

ofemployment based on the last drawn salary, years ofemployment with the Company subject to completion offive years ofservice and other conditions.

The gratuity plan is a partly funded plan and the Company makes contributions to a fund administered and operated by a reputed insurance company. The

Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level offunding to be maintained over a period oftime based on estimations of expected

gratuity payments.

The Company has invested the 100% plan assets in the funds managed by insurance companies.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

to he the yeat:

value is sumnnrized helow:

Reconcilinlion value PIan Assels:

Reconcilialion offair value ofAssets and

The present value ofdefined benefit obligation relates to active employees only.

The Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one-offcontributions. The

Company intends to continue to contribute to the defined benefit plans to achieve a target level offunding to be maintained over a period oftime based on

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

207.99 l9l .06Current service cost

43.44Interest cost 63.88

271.87 234.s0Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurements

(7.s6) (s.12)Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income

(81 .ee)Loss / (gain) from changes in financial assumptions 2.38

l.7l (0.80)Experience loss / (gain)

(3.47) (87.91)Total loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023Reconciliation ofopening and closing bahnces ofDelined Benefit Obligation

1,o92.39 I,O17.69Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year

l9L06Current service cost 207.99

68.61 47.82Interest cost

4.08 (8s.86)Remeasurements

(l 08.s6) (78.32)Benefits paid

Liabilities assumed / (settled) (0.1 8)

1,264.33 1,092.39Defined benelit obligation at the end of year

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan rssets

175.24 168.08Fairvalue ofplan assets at the beginning ofthe year

4.73 4.3.8Interest income

7.56 5.12Remeasurements

75.98Contribution by employer t 09.35

( r 08.56) (78.32)Benefits paid

188.32 17s.24Fair value of plan assets at the closing of the year

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations

188.32 175.24Fair value ofplan assets

(1,092.39)Present value of obligation (r,264.33)

(1,076.01) (e17.1s)Asset / (liability) recognized in balance Sheet
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

The principat assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

Pr i ncip a I A s s u mptio ns :

Principal actuarial assumptions March 31,2O24 March 31,2023

Discount rate 7.15% 7.2OYo

Future salary increase

- Non-billing / indirect employees 8.00% 8.00%

- Billing /direct employees 7.00% 7.O0%

Altrition rule

BiIIing employees

- Agefrom2l-30years 39.00% 39.O0%

- 3l & above 28.00o/o 28.00%

Non billing employees

- Age from 2l-30 years 27.00% 27.0O%

- 3l-40 16.00% 16.OO%

- 41-s0 12.00% 12.00%

- 51 & above 16.00% 16.00%

A sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and

changes in some of the assumptions may be conelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value ofthe defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected credit unit method at the end ofthe reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types ofassumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant ofwhich are market volatility, changes in inflation,
changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment and regulatory changes.

The Company has selected a suitable insurer to manage the funds in such a manner as to ensure that the investment positions are managed with an asset-

liability matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans.

Within this framework, the asset-liability matching objective is to match assets to the obligations by investing in securities to match the benefit payments

as they fall due.

The insurer, on behalfofthe Company, actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield ofthe investments are matching the expected cash

outflows arising from employee benefit obligations. The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods.

Investments are well diversified, such that failure ofany single investment should not have a material impact on the overall level ofassets.

DeJined benelit liability awl employer contributions
The weighted average duration ofthe post-employment benefit plan obligations and expected maturity analysis ofundiscounted gratuity benefits is as

follows:

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

The v,eighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligations (in years) 3.7 4 3.80

Expected contribution to the fund during next year 321.42 60.00
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March 31,2023Assumptions lvlarch 31,2O24

Discount rate

Q.84yA (1.86%)0.5% increase

0.5% decrease 1.91o/o 1.94%

trbture selary increases

1.87%0.5% increase 1.84%

0.50lo decrease (1.790/0) (l.82Yo)
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Alldmounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Maturity profile: Miarcln3l,2O24 March 31,2023

Less than a year 321.42 278.92

Betlwen l-2 years 271 .85 231.s4

Betq,€en 2-5 years 564.55 482.97

Over 5 Years s67.98 511.43

Total 1,725.8O 1,s04.86

(e) The Code on Wages, 20 l9 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been notified through Gazette oflndia after assent ofHon'ble President oflndia
which govern, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the Company towards certain employee's benefits. Notification ofthe rules ofthese codes are

pending. The effective date ofimplementation ofthese Codes has not yet been notified and the Company will assess the impact ofthese codes as and when

they come into effect and will provide for the appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effestive.

28. Share-based payments
The Company has Employee Stock Option plan namely ESOP 2016 as on March3l,2024 andMarch31,2023.
a) Under ESOP 2016, the Parent has granted 2!32,000 options, 64,830 options, 21,000 options in the financial year 2016,2018 and 2019,

respectively. All such options granted, havebeen eitherexercised or lapsed in accordance with the terms ofthe respective planas on March 31,

2023.
b) During the year ended March 31, 2022,the Parent issued a further 1,421,973 options to eligible employees which will vest over next four

financial years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June l, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of such options;
i. 207,379 oplions have been forfeited/lapsed till March3l,2024
ii. 18,51 I options have been exercised up till March 31,2024
iii. 478,433 options have been vested and not exercised/exercisable as on March31,2024

c) During the year ended March 3 l, 2023, the Parent issued a further 35,700 options to eligible employees which will vest over next three financial
years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June 1,2025, except as approved otherwise. Out ofsuch options:

i 21,800 options have been forfeited/lapsed on account of the respective employees no longer in employment till March 3l ,2024.
ii 1 1,300 options have been vested and not exercised/exercisable as on March 3 1, 2024

d) During the year ended March 3 I, 2024, the Parent issued a further 10,000 options to eligible employees which will vest over next two financial
years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June l, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out ofsuch options:

i No options have been forfeited/lapsed till March 3 1,2024.

ii No options have been vested and not exercised/exercisable as on March31,2024

Options granted under the aforesaid plans carry no dividend or voting rights.

Movements during the year

Year ended March 31,2023

Particulars

ESOP 2016

TotalESOPs granted in

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2021-22 2022-2t 2023-24

Outstanding stock options as on April l,2022 131,044 13,680 1,360,1 l6 1,s04,840

Exercise Price INR5/- INR 5/- INR5/- INR 5/- INR5/. INR 5/.

Options granted during the year 35,700 35,700

Options exercised during the year* 129,400 13,680 9,856 1s2,936

Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 1,644 55,972 1,800 59,416

Outstanding stock options as at March 31,2021 l,2g4,2gg 33,900 1,328,188

Exercisable stock options as at March 31,2023

Year ended March 31,2024

*The weighted average share price at the of the year ended March 3 1, 2024 was INR 440.23 (March 3 l, 2023 : INR 458.09).

[soP 2016

ESOPs gnnted in TotalParticulars

20t6-17 2017-18 2018-19 2021-22 2022-23 202t-24

1,294,2E8 33,900 I,328,188Outstanding stock options as on April 1,2023

INR5/- INR5/- INR5/-Exercise Price INR5/- INR5/- INR5/- INR5/-

Options granted during the year 10,000 10,000

7,3t2 7,312Options exercised during the year*

Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 90,893 20,000 I 10,893

I,196,083 13,900 10,000 I,2 19,98JOutstanding stock options rs at March 31,2024

Exercisable stock options as at March 31,2024

NEW DELHI

There were no cancellations or modifications to the awards in March 31,2024 orMarch3l,2023



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Stock options outstanding at the end ofthe year have the following details:

Grant Tranche
Grant
date

Vesting
date

Expiry
date

hercise
prrce

(IIIR) (a

Fair
value
lINR)

Stock options
outstanding

lfi/qrch 31. 2O24

Stock options
outstanding

March 3l- 2023

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crrant V I 20-Apr-21 l-lw-22 l-Jw-27 5.00 357.19 239,217 258,858

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crrant V u 20-Apr-21 l -Jun-23 l-hm-27 5.00 357.19 239,216 258,858

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Gant V III 20-Apr-21 l-Iun-24 l-Im-27 s.00 357.19 358,825 388,286

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crant V IV 20-Apr-21 l -Jun-25 l-\n-27 5.00 3s7.19 358,825 388,286

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 20-Oct-22 2l-Oct-23 l-Iw-27 5.00 411 .65 4,633 11,299

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V II 20-Oct-22 l-Jtn-24 l-Jw-27 5.00 4l 1 .65 4,633 tl,299

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Gant V III 20-Oct-22 I -Jur-25 l-hn-27 5.00 411.65 4,634 lt,302

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 12-Dec-23 12-Dec-24 l-Iw-27 5.00 450.98 s,000

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crrant V II 12-Dec-23 1 -Jun-25 1-Jw-27 5.00 4s0.98 5,000

Total 1,219,983 1,328,188

Fair value of options granled
The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the market
price being the latest available closing price prior to the date ofthe grant and expected price volatility ofthe underlying share, the expected dividend yield
and the risk-free interest rate for the term ofthe as detailed below:

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part ofemployee benefit expense were as follows

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Employee stock option plan 4s.66 78.47

Total employee share-based payment expense 45.66 78.47

The Company has issued/granted stock options to employees of its certain subsidiaries for which cost of INR 25.03 million (March 3 l, 2023: INR 57.07

million) is charged to respective subsidiary and reimbursed to the Company.

29. Finance costs

guarantee loan charges, other ancillary costs incurred in comection with
borrowings other than finance costs that do not meet the definition oftransaction costs.

and amortization

(This space has been intentionally lef blank)

30.

Grani date Volatility Market price (INR)
Average life ofthe
ontions {in Yeers)

Risk-frec intciest
rr te

Dividend yield

0.00%20-Apr-21 46.02o/o 360.95 5.12 555%

20-Oct-22 39.02% 415.60 3.62 7.39o/o 0.00o/o

2.21 7.28% 0.00%l2-Dec-23 34.06% 455.35

Particu la rs March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Interest expenses 797.88 589.87

Interest on lease liability 74.29 62.43

5.18 18.15Other finance costs*

Total 877.35 670,45

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment including ROU (Note 4) 660.21 s24.23

76.70 18.38Amortization of intangible assets (Note 5)

Total 736.91 542.61

NEW



Particu lars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Training expenses 29.92 56.51

4s.44 58.28Uniform and kit items

Selling expenses 5l.ll 32.9s

Administrative expenses

Travelling and conveyance 307.61 324.76

Postage and telephone 20.88 20.00

Sationary and printing 20.60 26.89

Rent * 289.98 277.00

Rates & taxes 44.39 22.58

lnsurance 138.68 170.71

Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 3.84 3.07

17.09 30.1 3- Machinery

Others 161 .54 116.94

Vehicle hire charges 125.88 I 0l .54

Payments to auditors (Refer details below) 4.38 4.26

Legal and professional fees 138.29 133.71

Allouance for expected credit loss 129.60 209.17

Expense towards corporate social responsibility (Refer details below) 22.36 7.26

Direct operating cost 406.69 394.7 4

256.27Other administration and general expenses 398 83

Total 2,357.t| 2,246.77

SIS LIMITED (formerly known as sSecurity and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

31. Other expenses

note

to Audilors

* Includes reimbursement of expenses.

(This space has been intentionally leJi blank)

Particulars March3l,2O24 March 31,2023

As auditot:

3.78 3.45Audit fee (including fees for limited review)

In other capacity:

Other services (certification fees)* 0.60 0.81

Total payment to auditors 4.38 4.26

NEW
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Alldmounts in INR million, unless stoted otheMise

Detoils c.tR

32. Earnings per share (EPS)
A reconciliation for the and shares used in the ofbasic and diluted share is set out below:

33. Distributions made and

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at the reporting date.

34. Commitments and contingencies
commitm€nt

[f

,{'

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

(a) Gross smount required to be spent by the Company during the year 22.36 19.56

(b) Amount spent during the year:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 42.22 11.70

(c) The excess(shortfall) amount at the end of the year over and above the amount
reouired to be sDent bv the comnanv durins the vear

19.86 (7.86',)

(d) Total previous years excess(shortfall) adjusted during the year 4.43 7.86

(e) The excess(shortfall) amount at the end of the year (including excess(shortfall) of
nreviorrs veers) 24.29 4.43

(f) The nature ofCSR activities undertaken by the company

23.88 9.00

(i) Promoting education to children including primary, secondary and university education, building

schools, colleges and training institutions including provision for full time residential institutions

and full student sponsorship, promoting and sponsoring girl education at all levels, uomen

education and self-employment traininB other educational proiects

(ii) promoting health care including preventive health and sanitation. 6.20 1.20

(iii) protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and ra,torks of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development of
traditional arts and handicrafts.

8. l4 1.00

(Iv) Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,

animal raelfare, agoforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air

and uater including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set-up ry the Central Government for
reiuvenation of river Canm.

2.50 0.50

(v) disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities. L50

Particu I ars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Profit attributable to equity holders ofthe Company:

Continuing operations I,870.89 1,901 .30

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings 1,870.89 1,901.30

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company adjusted for the effect of dilution 1,870.89 1,901.30

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Numbers) 145,344,093 146,537,s10

F,ffect ofdilution:
Sock options (Numbers) I,205,99 | 1,312,489

t47,849,999Weighted average number ofequity shares adjusted for the effect ofdilution 146,550,084

Nominal value of equity shares (INR) s.00 5.00

Earnings per share

- Basic (INR) 12.87 12.97

Diluted (INR) 12.77 12.86

Particulers March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid:

Final dividend @ INR Nil per share (March 31, 2023: INR Nil per share)

Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Estimated amornt of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accormt (net of capital

advances) and not orovided for
5.27 0.l l

NEWU) rr
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

liabilities

The Company records a liability when it is both probable that a loss has been incuned and the amount can
required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Company reviews these provisions periodically and adjusts these provisions accordingly
to reflect the impactofnegotiations, settlements, rulings, advice oflegal counsel, and updated information. The Company believes that the amount or estimable
range ofreasonably possible loss, will not, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its business, financial position, results ofthe
Company, or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as atMarch31,2024.

Disputed claims against the Company, including claims raised by the tax authorities and which are pending in appeal /court and for which no reliable
estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation, are not provided for in the accounts. However, the present obligation, ifany, as a result ofpast
events with a possibility of outflow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recognised in the accounts as an expense as and when such obligation
crystallises.

35, Events occurring after the balanc€ sheet date
There were no significant events that occurred after the Balance Sheet date.

36.

income and other gain(loss)

The Company is required to disclose segment information based on the 'management approach' as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, which in
how the ChiefOperating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on the analysis ofthe various
performance indicators. In lhe case ofthe Company, the CODM reviews the results of the Company as a whole as the Company is primarily engaged in
the business of rendering security services in India. Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, hence single segment Company. The infomation as

required under Ind AS 108 is available directly from the financial statements, hence no separate disclosures have been made.

37. Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests
Acquisitions durlng the year ended March 31, 2023
a. Acquisition of addilional interest in Terminix SIS hdia Private Limited ('Termink')
During the year ended March 3 l, 2023, the Company acquired entire remaining shareholding of 49.99%o in Terminix, subsidiary oflhe Company, for an
aggregate consideration of INR 7.77 million which resulted in Terminix becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Claims against the Company not acknovvledged as debt:

- Litigation matters with respect to direct taxes 382.t7 262.40

- Litigation matters with respect indirect taxes 103.36 102.29

Other money for which the Company is contingently liable l0.l l 9.6s

Ibtal 49s.64 374.34

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Revenue from operations 4s,412.s8 39,848.72

Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)* 2,670.16 t,869.82

NEW
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

38. Interests in other entities
Infornation about subsidiaries

A.2B &29

(n

ili

0.00o/o

o.00%

0.O0o/a

0.00%

0.00%

NA

0.00%

0,o0%

0.00%

0.00%

0.OOo/o

l\{arch 31,
2023

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

O.OOVI

0.00%

0.OOo/o

0.oo%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.0oo/o

0.00o/o

O.OOV6

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00Yo

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Orvnership intere st held
by the non-controlling

infaresf

March 31,
2024

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

NA

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

March 3I,
2023

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Ownership interest held
by the Group

March 31,
2024

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Providing facility management services

Trading and installation of electronic secwity
devices and svstems .

Pest Control Management Services

Providing facility management services

Rendering brusiness support services including
grmrdinq Darkins services. Dest control services

Rendering security and related services in areas of
manned n,ardins
Providing manned guarding facilities management

and business Drocess outsourcins.

Providing facility management services.

Providing Security Services.

Providing Security Services.

Providing Security Services.

Providing facility management services.

Alarm Monitoring and Response Services

Providing facility management services

nest control alarm monitoring and resnonse seruices

Providing Security Services, facility management,

Dest control- alarm monitorinp and resDonse services

Providing Security Services, facility management,

Holding company

Principal activities

Singapore

Australia

Australia

Ar.rstralia

lndia

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

Singapore

Principal place of
business and

country of
incorporation

Uniq Detective and Security Services (AP) Pvt.
Ltd. **
Uniq Detective and Secwity Services

(Tamilnadu) Private Limited **

Uniq Facility Services Private Limited * *

SS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services

Private Limited

ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

ONE StrS Solntions Private Limited

ONE SIS Residential Solutions Private Limited 3

StrS Secrnity International Holdings Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as SIS International Holdings

Limited)
StrS Security Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Limited
(formerly known as StrS Asia Pacific Holdings

Limited)

StrSAustralia Holdings Pty Ltd

SISAustralia Goup Pty Ltd

SltrS Crroup International Holdings Pty Ltd

SIVIC Integrated Facility Management Solutions

Limited (formely knowr as Service Master Clean

Limited) *

Tech SISLimited

Terminix SS India Private Limited

Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

SIS Business Srpport Services and Solutions

Private Limited
StrS Synergistic Adjacencies Ventures Private

Limited

SLV Security Services Private Limited

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

Uniq Secwity Solutions Private Limited

l8

l9

20

2l

I

2

5

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

11

t2

13

t4

l5

16

17
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SIS LIMITED known as' and

All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

* 41% ownership interest is held thmugh SIS Group Intemational Holdings Pty Ltd, Australia, a step-down
** Wholly owned subsidiaries of Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited
*** Wholly owned subsidiaries ofSouthem Cross Protection Pg limited.
$ Incorporated during the year ended March3l,2o24.

Services Limited

Company.

l\{arch 31,
2023

O.OOVI

0.0oo/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.0oo/o

0.00%

o.00%

0.00%

O.00o/o

0.O0o/o

O.00o/o

0.o0%

15.00o/o

15.00%

Ownership interest held
bv the non-controllins
March 31,

2024

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%

15.00%

15.00o/o

March 31,
2023

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00ol"

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

r00.00%

85.00%

85.00o/o

Ownership interest held
bv the Group

l\{arch 31,
2024

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

85.00%

85.00%

Principal activities

Provision of paramedic and emergency response

serytces

Holding company

Provision of services relating to all aspects of
physical security

Provision of services relating to all aspects of
Dhvsical securitv

Loss prevention, asset protection and secwity
servlces

Loss prevention, asset protection and secrrity
services

Loss prevention, asset protection and security
services

G:ard services, patrols and monitoring services and

event services

Alarm Monitoring and Response Services

Holding company

Manned Guarding Services

Building a building mechanical & electrical services

Provision of emergency services personnel,

industrial safety, fire rescue and medical training
Provision of emergency services personnel,

industrial safety, fire rescue and medical training

Principal place of
business and

country of
incorporation

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

NewZealand

NewZealand

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Australia

NewZealand

MSS $rategic Medical and Rescue Pty Ltd

StrSMSS Secwity Holdings Pty Ltd

MSS Security Pty Ltd

Australian Security Connections Pty Ltd

Southern Cross Protection Pty. Ltd.

Askara Pty Ltd * * *

Charter Secrrity Protective Services Pty Ltd * * *

Platform 4 Croup Limited

Triton Security Services Limited

$S Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd

Henderson Security Services Pte Ltd

Henderson Technologies Pte Ltd

gfety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd

gfety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd NZ

Name

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32
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34

35
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Senices (India) Limited')
All amounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Joint venlurcs in which the Cornpany is a joint venturct
The Joint Ventures considered in the ofthe financial statements are:

* Wholly owned subsidiary of SIS Cash Services Private Limited
+* Wholly owned subsidiary of SIS Prosegur Holdings Private Limited
$ Incorporated during the year ended March 3 1, 2024.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

l\4arch 31,
2023

49.00%

49.00%

49.00%

NA

49.00%

Ownership interest held
bv the Groun

March 31,
2024

49.00o/o

49.00%

49.00Y.

49.00%

49.OOo/"

Principal activities

Cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities and secure transportation of
precious items and bullion

Cish-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities and secure transportation of
precious items and bullion

Cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities and secure transportation of
precious items and bullion

Cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities and secure transportation of
precious items and bullion

Provision of services relating to all aspects of physical security

Principal place of
business and

country of
incorporation

India

India

India

India

Awtralia

StrS Cash Services Private Limited

$S Prosegur Holdings Private Limited *

SIS Prosegur Cash Logistics Private Limited * t

$sProsegur Cash Services Private Limited + $

Habitat Secwity Pty Ltd

Name

I

2

3

4

5

4.28 &29
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

39. Related party transactions
Note 38 above provides information about the Company's structure.

Name of related

Dlterprises owned or significantly influenced by
group of individuals or their relatives who have
control or significant influence over the Company

- Saksham Bharat Skills Limited
- Secwity Skills Courcil India Limited

- StrS Crroup Enterprises Limited

- Smrays Overseas Private Limited
- Vardan Overseas Private Limited

- StrSAsset Management Limited

- Lotus Learning Private Limited
- The Indian Public School Educational Foundation
Society

- International Institwe of &curity & Safety

Management

- Annapwna S.P, Sinha Welfare Activities & Social

Awareness Reforms Charitable Trust
- RSYA Dhanbad Auto Private Limited

- RSYA Durgapw Private Limited

- Adi Chitragupta Finance Limited

Joint Venture entities

- StrS Cash Services Private Limited
- $S Prosegur Holdings Private Limited

- StrS Prosegw Cash Logistics Private Limited

- $$Prosegw Cash Services Private Limited
- Habitat Security Pty Ltd

Key Management Personnel and their reletives

- Mr. Ravindra Kishore Sinha (Chairman)

- Mr. Ritwaj Kishore Sinha (Managing Director)
- Mr. Uday Singh (Appointed as Independent director and ceased to
be non executive director we.f July 26,2022)
- Mr. Arvind Kumar Prasad (Director - Finance)

- Mrs. futa Kishore Sinha - Non-Executive Director
- Mr. Amrendra Prasad Verma - Independent Director (retired w.e.f.

*ptemtr;r 24,2022)
- Mr. T C A Ranganathan - Independent Director
- Mr. Devdas Apte - Independent Dtector (retired w.e.f. September

24,2022)
- Mr. Rajan Krishnanath Medhekar - Independent Director (retired
w.e.f. September 24, 2022)
- Ms. Renu Mattoo - Independent Director (retired w.e.f. January

28,2023)
- Mr. Rajan Verma - Independent Director
Mr. Upendra Kumar Sinha - Independent Director (appointed w.e.f.

J.uu:'e29,2022)

- Ms. fuvoli Sinha - Non-Executive Director (appointed w.e.f.

November 2, 2022)
- Mr. Smil Srivastav - Independent director
- Ms. Vrinda Sarup - Independent Director (appointed w.e.f. Jure 20,

2023)
- Mr. Brajesh Kwnar (Chief Financial Officer - India)
- Mr. Devesh Desai (Chief Financial Officer)
- Ms. Pushoalatha Katkuri (Comoanv Secretarv)

(This space has been intentiomlly left blank)

*
t Nery

29A-28 &



SIS LIMITED known as' and Intelligence Services Limited
All omounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

The following table provides the total amount ofhansactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial

being disclosed in the year ofexercise ofoptions.
# Includes sitting fees and commission paid.

(T'ltis space has been intentionally Iefi blank)

**

lbtal

March 31,
2023

92.50

372.30

506.24

31.96

125.34

60.00

63.26

520.13

86.80

96.22

3.50

lVtarch 31,
2024

200.76

529.38

509.10

30.00

s0.00

17.76

60.r6

52.08

662.37

92.29

r r9.08

12.38

hterprises owned or
signifi cantly infl uenced
by group of individuals
or their relatives who

have control or
significant influence

over the Company

March 31,
2023

3.27

't.50

117.79

79.06

3.50

March 31,
2024

102.3 8

8.17

I 03.04

100.74

12.38

Key menagement
personnel and their

relatives

March 31,
2023

86.80

17.16

March 31,
2024

92.29

18.34

Joint Ventures

l\{arch 31,
2023

t.42

14.89

19.25

Il[arch 31,
2024

8.72

2.s0

16.27

50.00

t7.63

Subsidiaries

March 31,
202A

89.23

363.3 8

373.s6

31.96

125.34

60.00

44.01

520.13

March 31,
2024

89.66

51 8.71

389.79

30.00

17.76

60.1 6

34.45

662.37

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment purchased/

Intangible assets acquired

Pwchase of goods / receiving of services /
expenses reimbursed to related Darties

9le of goods / rendering of services /
exDenses reimbursed bv related Darties

Investments made

Redemption of bonds, debentures and notes

Loans given

Repayment of loans given

Interest expense on bonds or debentures or
loans

Interest income on bonds or debentwes or
loans

Dividend income

Salary & remrneration paid +#

Rent paid

Contribution to CS. Expenditure

NEW DELHI
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SIS LIMITED known as' and SeIvices

All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Balances at end of the

Terms and conditions oftransactions with related parties
Transactions relating to dividends paid, subscription for new equity shares were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other shareholders.

party operates.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

March 31,
2023

47.40

308.98

t4t.2r

748.04

3sr.46

Total

IUarch 31,
2024

162.t9

290.77

t23.45

748.88

302.64

March 31,
2n3

1.46

64.60

Enterprises owned or
signifi cantly infl uenced
by group of individuals
or their relatives who

have control or
significant influence

over fhe Comnanv
l\{arch 31,

2024

6.81

78.09

]\{arch 31,
2023

2.50

Key management
pcrsonnel and their

relatives

March 31,
2024

March 31,
2023

0.11

s2.13

175.00

Joint Ventures

1\{arch 31,
2024

8.56

29.19

12s.00

March 31,
2023

45.83

t92.25

141.21

748.04

176.46

Subsidiaries

March 31,
2024

t44.32

183.49

123.45

748.88

177.64

Trade payables / other payables

Trade receivables / other receivables

Loans and advances to related party

Bonds, debentures and notes issued

lnvestment in bonds / debentures

Particulars
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

Informetion transactions:

SNo Particulars Relationship March3l,2024 March 31,2023

a)
Property, plant and equipment purchased/
Intansible assets acouired

Tech SISLimited Subsidiary 38.1 6

SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Service Private Limited Subsidiary 89.02 sl.07

RSYA Dhanbad Auto Private Limited Others* 60.30 3.27

RSYA Durgapur Private Limited Others* 42.08

b)
Purchase of goods / receiving of services / expenses
reimbursed to related Darties

Tech SISLimited Subsidrary 7 4.40 84.18

SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 80.10 87.86

Duster Total Solution Services Private Limited Subsidiary 65.84 62.03

SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Srvice Private Limited Subsidiary 289.33 122.19

c)
Sale ofgoods /rendering ofservices /expenses
reimbursed bv related narties

Duster Total Solution Services Private Limited Subsidiary 98.5',7 166.72

SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 80.60 54.23

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited Subsidiary 1 1.03 t6.32

Uniq Security Solwions Private Limited Subsidiary 25.57 21.70

One SltrS Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary 80.42 44.21

Security Skills Council India Limited Others* 95.27 I 15.17

Investments made

Tech SIS Limited Subsidiary 30.00

d) I-oans given

Tech SIS Limited Subsidiary 31 .96

e) Repayment of loans given

SMC Integated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary t2s.34

0
Interest expense on bonds or debentures or loans
received

SIS Australia Crroup Pty Ltd Subsidiary 60.1 6 60.00

c) Interest income on bonds or debentures or loans given

SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 12.77 25.16

SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Service Pvt ltd Subsidiary 13.20 13.20

SIS Cash Services Private Limited Joint Ventures 17.63 t9.2s

h) Dividend income

SIS Australia Group Pty Limited Subsidiary 6.16 31.1 I

SIS Security International Holdings Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary 57.85 489.02

Duster Total Solution Services Private Limited Subsidiary 336.20

UNIQ Security Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary 162.00

SvlC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited Subsidiary 100.16

* *
NEW



SIS LIMITED (formerly known as'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

SNo Pa rticu I ars Relationsh ip March 31,2024 March 31,2023

D Salary & remuneration

Ravindra Kishore Sinha KMP ** 25.27 22.71

Devesh Desai KMP ** l5 l3 14.94

Rituraj Kishore Sinha KMP ** 12.77 9.69

Arvind Kumar Prasad KMP ** 7.03 s.68

Braiesh Kumar# KMP ** 8.97 11.52

Pushpalatha Katkuri KMP ** 4.67 4.4s

Director sitting fees KMP ** 8.90 12.00

i) Rent paid

SIS Asset Management Limited Others* 79.31 s8.38

k) Contribution to CSR Rpenditure
Annapurna S.P, Sinha Welfare Activities & Social Auareness

Reforms Charitable T rust Others* 12.38 3,50

l) Redemption of bonds, debentures and notes

SIS Cash &rvices Private Limited Joint Venture 50.00

+ Others represents Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by group of individuals or their relatives who have control or significant influence over the

Company
** Key Management personnel and their relatives
# Includes an amount ofNil (March 31,2023: INR 2.86 million) towards share based payments for the options exercised during the year.

The details of loans and advances as required by Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015 are given

in the table below:

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

O utstanding
halance

Meximum amount
outstanding during
the year

O utstanding
balance

Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year

Service Masters Clean Limited 9l .90 9t.90 91.90 9l .90

Tech SIS Limited 3l .56 31.56 49.31 49.31

Total 123.46 t23.46 t4t.2t t{t.2t

40. Financial risk management
The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and bonowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose

ofthese financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support the financing ofthe operations ofits subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations, loans, security and other deposits

The Company's operations expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to reduce volatility in financial statements while
maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Company's business plan along with reasonable participation in market movement. It is the

Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market isk
Market risk is the risk that the fairvalue offuture cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because ofchanges in market prices. Market risk mainly
comprises currency risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, loans and deposits given, FVTOCI
investments and derivative fi nancial instruments.

Foreign currenqt risk
Foreign cunency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuate because ofchanges in foreign exchange rates which
arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional cunency ofthe respective entities and foreign currency revenue and cash

flows. The Company's exposure to the risk ofchanges in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when

revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company's net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Company has limited foreign

currency transactions and has limited exposure to foreign cunency assets and liabilities resulting in the foreign cunency risk being low.

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign cunencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the future. Consequently, the

results ofthe Company's operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

A.2B &
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Flnancial
lichilifiesParticulars

Financial
assets

As at March 31,2024

SGD

AUD 1.90

1.90Net exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

SCD 4.45

AUD 50.49 690

s4-94 6.90Net exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31,2023

The

SIS LIMITED (formerly known as .Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

The to risk at the end ofthe reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

Sensitivity
or loss to change in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign exchange denominated financial instruments are as follows:

Intercst tate ritk
Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate bonowing, including various revolving and other lines ofcredit. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because ofchanges in market interest rates.

The exposure ofthe Company's bonowing to interest rate changes at the end ofthe reporting period are as follows:

Parliculars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Variable rate borrowings:

Loan repayable on demand 5,042.16 4,415.09

Others 2,403.92 2,202.32

Fixed rale borrowings

- Bonds/ Debentures 748.88 748.20

- Vehicle loan 350.49 243.7 4

Total 8,545.45 7,609.35

The Company's fixed-rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind-AS 107, since

neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because ofa change in market interest rates.

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars Mrrch 31,2024 March 31,2023

Interest rates - increase by 25 basis points * 18.62 16.54

Interest rates - decrease by 25 basis points * (r 8.62) (16.s4)

{Holding all other variables constant

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed resulting in a financial loss. The primary exposure

to credit risk arises from Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue (refer note ll & 7 respectively). These are unsecured and are managed by the Company
through a system of periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, cunent economic trends, and

analysis ofhistorical bad debts and ageing ofaccounts receivables. There is single customer accounted for more than l0% ofthe accounts receivable as of
March 31, 2024 (March 31,2023: Nil) and no single customer has contributed more than lOo/o of revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 3l,
2023: Nil). There is no significantconcentration ofcredit risk. The Company uses the expected credit loss ('ECL') method to assess the loss allowance for
Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue taking into account primarily the historical trends and analysis ofbad debts. The Company does not expect any credit
risk or impairment in respect ofamounts lent to its subsidiaries, associates andjoint ventures, ifany.

The credit risk for financial assets other than bank balances and trade receivables are considered low.

Significanl eslinutes a nd j udgements
I mp a ir me nt of fi na nc ia I as s el s
The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk ofdefault and expected loss rates. The Company uses

judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history and existing market
conditions. The Company estimates loss arising on trade receivables as a percentage ofsales based on past trends and such loss is directly debited to revenue
instead ofcreating a provision for impairment ofreceivables.

(n
O

/(

Impact on profit after taxParticulars

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Sensitivity

Increase by 5% (0. l 0) (2.40)

0.10 2.40Decrease by 5%

Nery 110020
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Alldmounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Finnncial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy.

Surplus funds are invested in bank fixed deposits or used to temporarily reduce the balance ofcash credit accounts to optimize interest costs.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company consistently
generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources offunding to meet its financial obligations and maintain adequate liquidity
for use.

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity offunding and flexibility through the use ofbank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures,

shareholder equity, and finance leases.

The below table summarises the Company's long-term debt that will mature in less than one year based on the carrying value ofborrowings reflected in the

financial statements.

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Company's long-term debt 3,503.29 3,194.26

Company's long-term debt that will mature in less than one year from reporting period 964.19 289.73

27.52o/o 9.O7Vo

The Company has assessed the concentration ofrisk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient
variety ofsources offunding and significant portion ofshort-term debt maturing within l2 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. The Company
believes that it has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended March tl, 2024

Particulars On demand
Less than 3

monlhs
3to12

months
1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Borrowings 5,042.16 282.s6 970.61 2,7 88.19 0.05 9,083.57

Lease liabilities 48.87 144.39 628.88 145.s0 967.64

Other financial liabilit ies 3,551.59 4.51 3,556.10

Trade payables 266.09 266.09

Financial guarantee contracts 3.4t 6.24 0.64 t0-29

Year ended March 31,2023

Particulars On demand
I-e ss than 3

months
3to12

months
I to 5 years > 5 years Total

Borrowings 4,4ls.09 l5 I .65 414.76 3,324.06 3.25 8,308.81

Lease liabilities 38.26 112.23 518.13 75.38 744.O0

Other financial liabilities 3,197.04 3,197.O4

Trade payables 224.18 224.14

Financial guilrantee contracts 1.99 2.33 1.34 5.66

As a matter ofpolicy, the Company does not carry out any hedging activities.
There has been no default in sewicing bonowings.

The company has the following financial assets which are subject to the impairment requirements oflnd AS 109. On assessment ofthe future cash flows
arising from these assets, the Company believes that there is no provision required to be made for impaiment losses on these assets.

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Flnancial Assets:

Investments 302.65 351.46

Loans 123.46 141 .21

Other financial assets 3,573.04 3,267.18

Total 3,999.15 3,759.85

Reconciliation ofliabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part offinancing activities in the statement ofcash flows:

Balance sheet crption
As at April I,

2023
Cash flow

Finance /
Transaction

cost

As at March
31,2024

299 8t 9.22 3,s03.29Borrowings * 3,194.26

32.79 (793.88) 792.56 31.47Interest accrued

A.2B & 29
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allomounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Year ended March 31,2023

Balance sheet caption
As at April I,

2022
Cash flow

trinance /
Transaction

cost

As at March
31,2023

Borrowings * 3,109.85 78.12 6.29 3.194.26

Interest accrued 25.06 (593.94\ 601.67 32.79
* Excluding borrowings considered as cash and cash equivalents for the purpose ofstatement ofcash flows.

41. Additional capital disclosures
For the purpose ofthe Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders ofthe Company. The primary objective ofthe Company's capital management is to maximise shareholder value and support its strategies and
operating requirements. The key objective ofthe Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capiial structure with d focus on total
equity to uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Company determines the capital
requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements for the Company's operations
are generally met through operating cash flows generated and supplemented by long-term and working capital borrowings from banks.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:
a) safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light ofchanges in economic conditions and the requirements ofthe financial covenants
to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders
or issue-new shares. The Company monitors capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Company defines Net Debt as borrowings and
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents including bank balances and deposits irrespective oftheir duration / maturity.

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Borrowings (Note I 5) 8,545.45 7,609.35

Lease liabilities (Note l6) 663.7s 495.45

Cash and cash equivalents (Note l2), other bank balances and deposits (including margin money) (1,542.53) (1,707.04)

Net Debt 7,666.67 6,397.76

BITDA 2,670.16 1,869.82

Net debt to BITDA ratio 2.87 3.42

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it simultaneously meets financial
covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and bonowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants ofany borrowing in the cunent period.

Dividends
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. According to the Companies Act, 20 l3 any dividend should be declared only out ofaccumulated
distributable profits. A Company may, before the declaration ofany dividend, transfer a percentage ofits profits for that financial year, as it may consider
appropriate, to the reserves.

The Board, at its meeting dated May 01,2024,has not proposed final dividend for the year ended March 3 1,2024 (March3l, 2023: INR Nil per share).

(This space has been intentionally Iefi blank)
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
All omounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

42. Additional Regulatory Information

Financial ratios:

#Excluding other income and other gain(loss)
* Debt service = Interest expense + Cufent maturities of long-term debt
+*Capital employed = Total equity + Net debt

Notes to Financial Ratios
l. Primarily due to INR 665.00 million as current maturity of long-term debts inMarch2024.
2. Primarily on account ofbusiness growth in terms ofrevenue, profit and working capital management

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Current ratio 1.28Current asset Cwrent liabilities 1.20

Debt-equity ratio Total debt $rareholders' equity 0.83 0.80

Debt service coverage ratior&2 Earning before interest and

taxes #

Debt service * t.r0 |.s2

Return on equity ratio Net profits after taxes Average shareholders' equity 18.94% 2133%

Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 6.13 6.68

Inventory turnover ratio' 2.89Cost of goods sold Average inventory 4.05

Trade payables turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average trade payables 2.73 2.43

Net capital turnover ratio2 Revenue from operations Working capital r 8.28 27.02

Net profit ratio Net profits after taxes Revenue from operations 4.12o/o 4.77o/a

Return on capital employed' Earning before interest and

taxes #

Average Capital employed * * 11.43% 9.O2%

Return on investment The Company has not invested in other than investments in

subsidiaries and associates, hence Return on Investment ratio
has not been disclosed

NEW lbl:}11
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SIS LIMITED (formerly known as 'Securify and Intelligence Services (India) Limited')
Allamounts in INR million, unless stoted otherwise

B) Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Relationship with
struck off companies

Nature of
transaction s

Name of Struck off Companies March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Companies with outstanding balance

Customers Receivables

Bateshvlarnath Construction and

Developers (Opc) Private Limite{ Brij
Packaging; Knorr-Bremse India Private

Limite( MGF Developers Private

Limited; Orient Micro Abrasive Limite{
K M Memorial Hospital and Research

Centre Private Limited; B. P. Food

Products Private Limited; Koppal Steels

Private Limited; Neel Industries P- Ltd;

Protectron Electromech Pvt Ltd; Rudra

Alloys Privite Limited; Sky Automobiles;

CG Foods India Private Limited; Panacea

Biotec Limited

6.13 1.44

Companies with Nil outstanding balance

Customers Receivables Nirmal Industries Ltd.

C) The disclosures required under Division II ofSchedule III have been given to the extent applicable to the Company.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration. No. 000756N/N50044 I )

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A4'J K*^?**ad"aJ

(Partner)
Membership No. 094380

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

Ravindra Kishore Sinha

(DIN: 5)

Chief Financial Officer

,Ary"
grqKsh Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

Arvind Kumar Prasad
Director - Finance
(DIN: 02865273)

Company Secretary

T*fUz-,
Pushpalatha Katduri u '-'

Director

(India)
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S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report

To The Members of SIS Ltmtted (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India)
Lrimtted')

Report on the Audit of the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SIS Irimited (formerly known
as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Lrimited') (the !'Parent Company"), its subsidiaries (the
Parent Gompany and its subsidiaries/ step down subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group") and
its Joint Ventures/ jointly controlled entities (JVs) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of Material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "consolidated
finanelal statements ").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and its JVs, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (rrlnd trS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the sonsolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31,2024, of consolidated profit & total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Oplnlon

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the IC.f,I") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Key.Eudit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

SIS I Auditor's Reoort- FY 23-24 (Consolidated)
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S S KOTHARI MEHTA
&CO LLP -

CHABTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Kevtrudit Matter Audltor's Response
Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures on recognition, measurement,
presentation & disclosures of revenue included but
not limited to the following:

We performed testing of revenue transactions
to confirm the transactions had been
appropriately recorded in the statement of
profit & loss and verified the satisfaction of
performance obligation to recognise revenue
by analysing the contract and terms of the
sale and determining whether the
management has appropriately identified the
separate performance obligations, where
relevant; compared the terms with the
revenue recorded by management to
determine whether the Parent Company's
revenue recognition policies had been
properly applied and has been appropriately
measured; and testing management's
calculations.

a We tested the effectiveness of controls
relating to contract monitoring, billings and
approvals and related IT controls used to
generate the information. The basis for the
evaluation of internal control has been Parent
Company's internal control framework for
financial reporting. The testing of controls
and amounts has been performed on a sample
basis.

We obtained and read customer contracts
and confirmed our understanding of the
Parent Company's sales process from
initiation to collection of receivables,
including the design and implementation of
controls and tested the oPerating
effectiveness of these controls.

We read and understood the Parent
Company's accounting policy for the
recognition of revenue as per Ind,{.S I l5'

We requested indePendent balance
confirmations from the Parent Company's
customers on a sample basis.

sample of accrued unbilled income

a

a

a

a

Rtdj:;5:." with supporting documentation

.H.ccuracy of recognition, measurement,
presentation & dlsclosures of revenue

The Parent Company's revenue for the financial
year ending March 31,2024, is INR 45,412.58
million. A significant proportion of the Parent
Company's revenue is derived from contracts
with customer which consist of the rendering of
services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable
consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation.

Revenue is recognized when the Parent
Company has completed its performance
obligations under the contracts and/ or the
control is transferred to the customer.

Revenue is recognized in a manner that depicts
the transfer of goods and/ or senrices to
customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration the Parent Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those goods or
services.

Further, the contractual terms also underpin the
measurement and recognition of revenue and
profit. The Parent Company is therefore
required to make operational and financial
assumptions & various judgements.

The nature of the Services provided by the
Parent Company also gives rise to a significant
amount of work which is recorded as accrued/
unbilled income with corresponding profit
recognition. Accrued/ unbilled insome as on

March 31, 2024, aggregated to INR 2,903.29

million.
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S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Kev trudtt Matter Audltor's Response
which includes attendance records, customer
acceptance, reviewing customer
correspondence where necessary and
ensuring cut-off had been appropriately
applied.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
Uncertain tax position and deferred tax
assets/liabilities included, but were not limited to the
following:

Discussion with the management on the
development of tax litigations during the year
ended March 31,2024.

Verification that the accounting and/or
disclosures as the case may be in the
standalone financial statements is by the
assessment of management/ tax
practitioners.

Obtaining a representation letter from the
management on the assessment of those
matters as per SA 580 (revised) - written
representations.

Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls implemented by
the Parent Company over recognition of
deferred tax assets based on the assessment
of the Parent Company's ability to generate
sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable
future allowing the use of deferred tax assets.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
calculations performed by the management'

Evaluated management's assessment for
adjustment of such deferred tax assets as per
provisions of the Income-tax Act, 196l and
appropriateness of the accounting treatment
with respect to the recognition of deferred tax
assets as per requirements of Ind A,S 12,

Income Taxes.

r Evaluated the appropriateness of the
disslosures made in the financial statements

Gffia*'espectofdeferredtaxassets'

trudit Procedures

a

a

a

a

a

Uncertain tax positions and deferred tax
assets

The Parent Company operates in a complex tax
environment and is subject to a range of tax
risks during the normal course of business.
Where the amount of tax payable is uncertain,
the Parent Company establishes provisions
based on management's judgment of the
probable amount of the future tax liability. The
Parent Company has material certain tax
positions including matters under disputes
which involves significant judgement to
determine the possible outcome of these
disputes.

In addition, the Parent Company has
recognized INR I,680.38 million of deferred tax
assets on March 31, 2024. The recognition of
deferred tax assets involves judgment by
management regarding the likelihood of the
realization of these assets. The expectation that
these assets will be realized is dependent on a
number of factors, including whether there will
be sufficient taxable profits in future periods to
support the utilization of these assets.

For details: - Refer to Note No 8 to the
Standalone Financial Statements.

NEW
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Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
Impairment Testing of Goodwill & Other
Acquisition related lntanglble Assets

Goodwill and other acquisition related
intangible assets, including customer
relationships, customer contracts comprise a
significant portion in the consolidated balance
sheet as on March 31,2024. The Group annually
reviews/ identifies Cash generating unit (CGU)

and performs a test to assess the value of
goodwill. The Parent Company has defined
process for impairment testing which involves
preparation of impairment testing model based
on business plan & assumptions Other
acquisition related intangible assets are
subject to depreciations/amortization
according to plan. For these assets, an

impairment test is performed if there is any
indicator for the same.

trudtt Procedures

Our audit procedures in relation to the Impairment
Testing of Goodwill & Other Acquisition related
intangible Assets included, but were not limited to the
following:

Evaluation of process followed in
identification of cash generating unit (CGU);

Obtain the impairment testing models based
on forecasts and assumptions;

Evaluation of the assumptions and data used
in the model;

EValuation of the methodology used in
impairment testing;

Evaluation of ,tssessment that the accounting
and disclosures provided in the financial
statements are correct based on the
impairment test performed.

a

a

a

a

a
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion andAnalysis, Board's

Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance

and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available

to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

Whenwe read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibttities of Management and Those Charged wlth Governance for the Consolidated
Flnanclal Statements

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true

and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other

comprehensive income, consolidated changes

SIS I Auditor's Report- FY 23-24 (Consolidated)
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joint ventures in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
The respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its joint venture are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, whish have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as

aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Boards of Directors of the companies

included in the Group and its joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective

entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Boards of Directors either intend to

liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its joint ventures are also

responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and its joint ventures'

Auditor's Responsibllitles for the.f,udlt of the Consolidated Flnanclal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company, its subsidiary companies and its

JVs, which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in

place and the operating effectiveness of such controls'

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

a

a

a

or conditions that may cast significant
continue as a going concern'
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its
joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the

financial statements of the company included in the consolidated financial statements of which we

are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial

statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supewision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probabte that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication'

Other Maiters

We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of 35 subsidiaries/ step down subsidiaries,

whose financial statements/ financial information reflect total assets of INR 38,293.64 million as at March

91,2024, total revenues of INR ?8,481.35 million, total net profit after tax of INR 548.57 million and total

comprehensive income of INR 623.47 million and net sash outflow of INR 9.27 million, for the year ended

on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements'

The Statement also includes the Group's share of net profit/(loss) after tax of Rs. 248.87 million and total

comprehensive income / (loss) of INR 247.58 million for the year ended March 31,2024, as considered in

the Statement, in respect of 5 jointly controlled
us.
SIS I Auditor's Report- FY 23-24 (Consolidated)
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These financial statements have been audited by their respective independent auditors, whose reports
have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries/step down subsidiaries, and joint
ventures is based solely on the reports of such auditors.

The financial results of 2 foreign subsidiaries (including one step down subsidiary) whose financial results
reflect total assets of INR 436.71 million, revenues of INR Nil, total net profit/ (loss) after tax of INR I 15.77

million and total comprehensive income/ (loss) of INR I15.77 million for the year ended March 31,2024,
and cash inflow (net) of INR 0.09 million for the year ended March 31,2024, included in the Statement
which have been prepared by the management of respective subsidiaries/ step down subsidiaries and
furnished to us by the management. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, these financial statements/ information are not material to the Group.

Certain of these subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are located outside India whose financial
statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in their respective countries and whish have been audited by other auditors under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Parent Company's
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles
generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Parent

Company's management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries

and jointly controlled entities is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the Parent's management and audited by us'

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the

work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Lregal and Rbgulatory Requirements

l. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the

relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS

specified under section 133 of the Act'

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company

as on March gl,2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and

the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, JVs incorporated in India,

a.

b.

c

d

. none of the directors of the GrouP

SIS I Auditor's Report- FY 23'24 (Consolidated)
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disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164

(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annentre A" which
is based on the auditors' reports of the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies and itsJVs,
incorporated in India, wherever applicable. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial
reporting of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Parent Company, its subsidiaries companies and its JVs,
incorporated in India to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the

consolidated financial position of the Group. (Refer Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements);

ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iiD There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent Company, its subsidiary
companies and its JVs, incorporated in India.

tv) (a) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries & JVs
which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial staterirents have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company, any of such subsidiary companies or
its JVs to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any mannet whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company, any of such

subsidiaries or such JVs ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries'

(b) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary companies

and itsJVs, which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have

been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have

been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and such JVs from any

9'

h

person or entitY, including
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whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company, any of such subsidiaries
or such JVs shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company, its subsidiary
companies and its JVs which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I I (e),

as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The interim dividend proposed in the current year, declared and paid by the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, where applicable, during the year is in accordance
with Section 173 of the Act, as applicable. Further there is no final dividend declared
or paid by the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies and its JVs during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks of Parent Company and as

reported by the respective auditors of its subsidiary companies and its JVs
incorporated in India, the Parent Company its subsidiary companies and its jVs,
incorporated in India have used accounting software for maintaining their books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. The Audit trail
feature has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software and has not been tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(l) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable fromApril
l, 2023, reporting under Rule I I (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20 14

on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is

not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2024.

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)

Order, 2020 (the "Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(l l)
of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations
given to us, and further to the comments in "Annexure A" to Independent Auditor's Report on

Standalone Financial Statements issued by us and auditors of its subsidiary companies and its JVs
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company, we report that there are

no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. L,LP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.

2

I

\i*
Naveen Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No.094380
UDIN : 240943808KB8YI8159
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 01, 2024
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ANNEXURE III''' TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I (f) under 'Report on Other Lregal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the Members of SIS Limited (formerly known as 'Securlty and Intelligence Services
(India) timited') of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Gontrols Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-sectlon 3

of Section 143 of the Gompanies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31,2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SIS

Ltmited (formerly known as 'Securliy and Intelligence Servlces (India) Lrimtted') (hereinafter
referred to as the "Company") its subsidiary companies and JVs, which are companies incorporated in
India, wherever applicable, as of that date.

Management's Responslbility for Internal Flnancial Gontrols

The respective Boards of Directors of the Company, its subsidiary iompanies and JVs, which are

companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal sontrol with reference to financial statements criteria established by the

respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the "IGAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Act.

Audltor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal control with reference to financial statements of
the Company its subsidiary companies and JVs which are companies incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We condusted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAJ and the Standards on

Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal control with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal

control based on the assessed risk. The pxocedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

NEW
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of the
Company its subsidiary companies andlVs which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls wlth reference to the financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted ascounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Llmitations of Internal Financial Controls wlth reference to the flnanclal statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company, its subsidiary companies and JVs, which are companies incorporated in lndia, wherever
applicable, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference
to the financial statements established by the respective companies considering the essential components

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the ICAI.

for S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLrP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.

\h
Naveen [gganrval
Partner
Membership No.094380
UDIN : 24O94380BKBEYI8l59
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 01, 2024
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SIS Limited @ormerly known as 'SECURfTY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AII figures in INR million except per share data)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(This space has been intentionally left blank) [7
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Parti cu lars Note
No

As at
March 31.2024

As at
March 3I.2023

A

B

ASSEIS

Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 3.7 34.96 3, t 0s.88

Capital uork-in-proftress 4 22.t7 194.93

C:oodwill 5 10,67 8.81 ll,395.lt
Other intangible assets 5 1.636.57 1,7 69 .25

Intangible assets under development 5 328.60 217.46

Investments in.joint ventwes 6 7 57 .Ot s13.49

FinanciaI assets

(i) Investments 6 3s1.26 366.27

(ii) Other non-current financial assets 7 61 1 8l 699.50

Deferred tax assets (net) 8 3,269.46 3,906.72

Income tax assets (net) 8 2.651.92 2.498.51

Other non - current assets 9 43.1s 16.93

Total non - current assets 24.08s.72 24.684.Os

Current assets

Inventories l0 309.03 314 28

Financial assets

(i) Investments 6 55.55 103.22

(ii) Trade receivables ll l 8,8s8.46 16,777.06
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents t2 6,514.82 6,656.18
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above t2 890.41 853.50
(v) Loans 7a 17.00 17.00

(vi) Other current financial assets 7 7 ,513.04 6,390.88

Other cwrent assets 9 I.484.81 1,328.6s

Assets classified as held for distribution to shareholders of subsidiary 37a ))) )))
Total current assets 3s.64s.34 32.442.99

Total assets 59.73 t.06 s7.127.O4

EOUITY AND LIABILITMS
Equity

Equity share capital 13 720.50 728.65

Other equity t4 23.414.87 22.604.28

Equity attributable to owners ofthe Parent 24-135.31 23.332.93

Non-controlling interests 39

Ibtal equitv 24.135-37 23.332-93

Liabilities
Non - current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings t5 2.300.50 8.031 .84

(ia) Lease liabilities t6 l.l0l.l2 921.26
(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities t8 4.48 52.69

Provisions 20 I,971 .33 t,7 49 .64

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 35t.16 430.40

Total non- current liabilities 5.728.59 l 1.r8s.83
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lIS l4fnit0d (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million except per share data)

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15 12,785.52 7,l9t.t7
(ia) Lease liabilities l6 393.21 330.66
(ii) Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises t7 97.02 53.23

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises
l7 749.87 585.85

(iii) Other current financial liabilities l8 9.776.88 8,52t.48
Other current liabilities 2l 1.967.50 I,964.86
Provisions 20 4,091.03 3,958.21

Current tax liabilities (net) 8 3.25

Liabilities classified as held for distribution to shareholders ofsubsidiary 37a 2.82 2.82

Total current liabilities 29,867.10 22.608.2E
Total liabilities 35.595.69 33.794,11

Total equitv and liabilities 5S^731 -06 41.127 .fi4

The accompanying notes I to 43 form an integral pa( ofthese consolidated financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and o of the Boa f Directors
Chartered Accountants

(

A,"r;^,llW.Pruaul
Partner
Membership No. -

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

5)

Desai
Chief Financial Officer

(DIN:

Kumar
Chief Financial Officer
(India)

Arvind Kumar Prasad
Director - Finance
(DIN: 02865273)

Company Secretary

?*ll a:
Pushpalatha ratl.ui D -'

Sinha
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SIS Limited Gqlmedy known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDTA) LIMITED')

(All Jigures in INR million except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 10020 L';
Tel:0 i

,!

Year endedSNo Particu la rs
Note
No. March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Income
a) Revenue from operations 23 122,614.25 113,457.80
b) Other income 24 399.50 264.68

c) Other gain /(loss) 25 27.17 62.74

123,O40.92 ll3-1as.22Totalincome(a+b+c)
Expenses

a) Cost of materials consumed 26 612.13 583.38

b) Purchases of inventories 831 00 460.57

c) Changes in inventories 27 5.25 24.71

d) Employee benefits expense 28 100,49s.49 92,012.39

e) Finance costs 29 1,481 .59 1,148.91

f) Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 1,663.28 1,346.81

C) Impairment of goodwill 5 656.05

h) Other expenses 3l 1 4,825.85 15,461.48

2

Total exnenses ( a + b + c+ d +e + f+s + h ) 120.s70.64 I I1.038.25
Share of profit(loss) of associates / joint ventures 39 248.87 102.13

Profit before exceptional items and tax (l-2+3) 2.719.|s 2,849.10
Exceptional items

Profit before tax (4-5) 2.719.15 2.849.10
Tax expense /(credit)

a) Current tax 8 314.7 6 421.49
b) Deferred tax 8 503.99 (1.037.41)

818.75 (61 5.92)Total tax expense(credit)
Profit for the year (6-7) 1.900.40 3.46s.O2

Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
a) Foreign exchange gain(loss) on monetary items included in net
investment in a foreign suhidiary

l4 (e8. l 6) (101 .s 1)

b) Income tax relating to these items 8

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
a) Re-measurement of defined benefits plan 28 69.07 123.8 8

b) Income tax relating to these items 8 (17.3e) (31.18)

ventures

c) Share ofother comprehensive income ofassociates /joint
39 (1.2e) 2.57

9

3

4

5

6

7

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of taxes) (47.77\ (6.24r
l0 Total comprehensive income for the year (8+9) 1,852.63 3,458.78

NEW



ll Prolit attributable to:
Owners of the Parent I,900.40 3,463.89

Non-controlling interests 39 I .13

1.900.40 3,46s.02
l2 Other comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners ofthe Parent (47.77) (6.24)

Non-Controlling interests 39

(47.771 (6.241

13 Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owrers of the Parent 1,852.63 3,457.65

Non-controlling interests 39 I .13

1.852.63 3.458.78
14 Earnings per share (EPS) (face value INR 5/- per share) 32

(a) Basic (INR) 13.08 23 64

(b) Diluted (INR) 12.97 23.43

l5 Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share 32

(a) Basic (Nos.) 145,344,093 t46,537,510
(b) Diluted (Nos.) 146,550,084 147,849,999

SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDTA) LIMITED')

(All.figures in INR million except per share data)

The accompanying I to 43 notes form an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statenents.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and of the Board rectors

Firm Reg. no. -

Partner
Membership No. - 094380

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024
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Chief
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Director
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Brajdh Kumar
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Company Secretary
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SIS Limited
(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A. EquityShare Capital

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended M*ch31,2024

B. Other Equity
Year ended March 31, 2023

known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES

Balance as

at March
31,2023

728.6s

Changes
during the

year

(6.s 1 )

Restated
balance as on
April l,2022

735.16

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due

to prior period
e rrors

As at April
1,2022

735.16

Particulars

Equity Share Capital

Balance as

at March
31,2024

720.50

Changes
during the

year

(8. ls)

Restated
balance as on
April 1,2023

728.65

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due

to prior period
errors

As at April
1,2023

728.6s

Particulars

Equity Strare Capital

{\,,',

Total

20,oo7.97

3,466.15

(6.241

3,459.91

(0.re)

0.70

(0.72)

135.s4

(8.e1)

(977.40\

t/

Non-
controlli

ng
interests

30.61

1.13

l. l3

(31.7 4\

.rLo A Z

Other
equity

attributable
to owners

19,977.36

3,465.02

(6.24',)

3,458.7E

(0.re)

0.70

(0.72)

13s.s4

22.43

(977.401

1o2.y6,

Share
application

moDey
pending

allotment
o.o2

0.70

(0.72)

Foreign
currency

translation
resewe

640.69

(101 .s l )
(r0r.s1)

539.18

Capital
rese roe

181.24

181.24

Capital
redemption

rese rve

9.09

7.27

16.36

Stock
options

outstandin
g rccoilnf

225.41

(23.ss)

135.54

(2.s3\

334.87

Retained
earnings

ls,623.96

3,465.02

95.27

3,560.29

(0. r e)

22.83

(184.67)

19,022.22

General reserve

560.94

2.53

s63.47

Reserves and Surplus

Securities
premrum

2,736.01

23.55

(800 00)

(12.62)

1,946.94

Particulars

As at April l,2022
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Share issues expenses incurred @ subsidiary entities

Share application money received during the year

Issrpd on exercise of stock options

lrefer note 28 (fl]
Employee share-based payment expense

$ock opt ions forfeited/lapsed

Allocation to non-controllinA interests

Buyback of equity shares, including tax thereon

Transaction cost relatedto br:yback qlgqlgz shares

(net of taxes) ,f,gt ME/tl>\
at March 31,2023

t*l/



SIS Limited known as'SECURITY AND IIYTELLIGENCE SERVICES

(AIl figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Year ended March 31,2024

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 form an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accourtants

Partner
Membership No. - 0943

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

For and on be

Kishore

ChiefFinancial Officer

of

Sinha
Managing Director

'"W'
ChiefFinancial Officer
(India)

yvit*l K+"Fwal,
Arvind Kurnar Prasad
Director - Finance
(DIN: 02865273)

Company Secretary
,J*m=

Total

22,604.28

1,900.40

(47.77)

1,8s2.63

0.02

(0.02)

70.68

(r,099.s8)

(13.14)

23,414.87

Non-
controlli

ng
inte rests

Other
equity

attributable
to owners

22,604.28

r,900.40

(47.77)

1,852.63

0.o2

(0.02)

70.68

(1,099.s8)

(r3.r4)

23,414.87

Share
application

money
pending

allolmenf

0.02

(0.02)

Foreign
currency

translation
rese rve

539.r8

(e8. I 6)
(98.r6)

441.02

Reserves and Surplus

Capital
reserve

181.24

181.24

Capital
redemption

reserve

16.36

8.1 8

24.54

Stock
options

outstandin
g account

334.a7

(2.6t)

70.68

(lr.4e)

391.4s

Retained
earnings

19,022,22

1,900.40

s0.39

1,950.79

(207.76)

20,765.2s

General reserve

s63.47

11.49

574.96

Securities
premium

1,946.94

2.61

(e00.00)

( l 3.14)

1,036.41

Particulars

As at April 1,2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Ibtal comprehensive income for the year

Share application money received during the year

Issued on exercise of stock options

[refer note 28 (0]
Employee share-based payment expense

$ock options forfeited/lapsed

Buyback of equity shares, including tax thereon

Transaction cost relatedto buyback ofequity shares

(net oftaxes)
As at llarch 31,2024

DELHI
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECLJRITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All ligures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

s
No

Particulars
Year ended

March31,2024 March 31,2023
A.

B.

CASH ILOWS FROM OPIRATING ACTIVIIIES
Profit before tax 2,719.15 2,849.t0

Adiusted for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,663.28 I,346.81

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) i loss 4.61 (23.54)

Net (gin) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (36.37) (38.64)

Finance costs I,48 l 59 1.148.9 t

Interest income classified as investing cash floras (3e9.s0) (264.68\

Allovance for expected credit loss 244.82 269.31

Employee stock option compensation expense 4s.66 78.47

Other non-cash items 407.18 (l 10.73)

Oneratins nrofit/(loss) before workins caDital chanses 6.130.42 5.255.01

Movenrent in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (2.8s6.37\ (3.349.23')

Decrease / (increase) in inventories 4.94 24.99

Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (36s.08) (1 30.68)

Decrease / (increase) in other current financial assets (1,170.61) (1,247.91)
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables 670.9s 65.67
(Decrease) / increase in provisions 472.7 8 363.87
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities 3.80 221.02
(Decrease) / increase in other current financial liabilities 1,472.87 I,317 .32

Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets 2.58

Decrease / (increase) in other non-current financia[ assets 25.08 I19.87
(Decrease) / increase in other non-current financial liabilities (7.37\ 4.34

Cash (used in) /generated from operations 4,381.41 2,646.85
Direct tax (paid), net ofrefunds G37.24\ (937.s5)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 3.944,17 l -709-30

CASH FLOWS FROMIIWf,STING ACTTYIIIf,S
Purchase ofProperty, plant & equipment and Capital uork in progress (1,636.08) (1,293.4s)

Proceeds from sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment 77.54 106.06

Investment made (34.ee) (37 s.23)
Redemption of non convertible debentures issued 100.00 147.00

Investment in fixed deposits (r,381.28) (880.26)

Redemption of fixed deposits I,47 6.98 531 .08

Acquisition of Subsidiary's non-controlling interest (7.77)

Changes in restricted balances (65.70) (s5.08)
Interest received 415.35 346.65

Dividend received 4.04 1.34

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investins activities (t .o44-l4l (1-479-661

NEW
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SIS Limited(ro..'e'Jg IrEp')
(Allfigures in INR million unless stated othemise)

C.

D.

E
F.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital (net of share issue expenses) 0.03 0.76

Buyback of equity shares including transaction cost and tax ( 1 ,1 20.e0) (997.29\
Foreign exchange gain / (loss) realized (3.80) (4.27)
Proceeds from term loans 1,020.61 2,8t7.29
Repayment ofterm loans (1,401 .24\ (726.46\
Bonds/debentures repaid/redeemed (l,900.00)
Interest paid ( l ,40s.02) (1,06s.73)
Payment of lease liabilities (491.64\ (409.57\

Net cash inflow /(outflorv) from financing activities (3.401.96) (2.2a5.271

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (50 1.93) f2.055.63)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.94 I,951 .72

Translation adjustments (22.se) l0s.8s
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E+F) (522.58) 1.94

Reconciliation ofcash and cash equivalents as Der the statement ofthe cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the flollowing: March 31.2024 March 31.2023
Cash and cash equivalents 6,5t4.82 6,656.1 8

Cash credit (7,037 .40\ (6.6s4.24)

Balances as per statement of cash flows {522.58) 1.94

Refernote4l forreconciliationofliabilitieswhosecashflowmovementsaredisclosedaspartoffinancingactivitiesinthestatementof cashflows.

The accompanying notes I to 43 form an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For fof
Chartered Accorntants

Reg. no. - 000756N

Aggarwal
Partner
Membership No. - 0943

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

Re K*f &"*4,
Sinha Arvind Kumar Prasad

Director - Finance
(DIN: 0286s273)

Company Secretary

?-ti U.-.
PushpalathaKatkuri u --'

Director
5635)

.AK
Chief Financial Officer
(India)

(i.) itleyi 110020 Ui'el:0 l1
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All.figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Notes to the financial statements

l. Group overview

SIS Limited ("the Company") is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company is listed on the BSE Limited
("BSE') and The National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited ('NSE). Its registered office is situated at Annapuma Bhawan, Telephone Exchange
Road, Kurji, Patna, Bihar - 800010, Indi4 and its principal place ofbusiness is situated al A-28 & 29, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase I, New Delhi
* 1 10020

The name of the Parent has been changed to 'SIS Limited' from 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited' and a fresh certificate of
incorporation in the name of'SIS Limited' was issued by the Registrar ofCompanies on January 13,2021.

' SIS Limited ("the Parenf') and its subsidiaries, associates andjoint ventures ("Group" or "SIS Group") is engaged in rendering security and related
services consisting ofmanned guarding, training, paramedic and emergency response services; loss prevention, asset protection and mobile patrols;
facility management services consisting of cleaning, house-keeping and pest control management services in the areas offacility management;

' cash logistics services consisting ofcash-intransit, ATM cash replenishment activities and secure transportation ofprecious items and bullion; and
alarm monitoring and response sewices consisting of trading and installation ofelectronic security devices and systems.

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements ofthe Group consisting of SIS Limited and its subsidiaries, associates andjoint
ventures in accordance with applicable accounting standards. A list ofsubsidiaries is included in note 38.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on May 01,2024.

2. Material accounting policies
This note provides a list ofmaterial accounting policies adopted in the preparation ofthese financial statements.

2.1 Basis of preparalion
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and other applicable provisions ofthe Companies
Act,2013 ("the Companies Act") and guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (SEBI), The Ind-AS are notified under Section
133 ofthe Act read with Rule 3 ofthe Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and are rounded offto the nearest millions ('Mn') except per share data, unless
stated otherwise. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may
not precisely reflect the absolute figures. The figures which are appearing as '0'are result ofrounding off.

2.2 Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concem basis, except for the following
material items which have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind-AS:
a. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured at

fair value;
b. Assets held for distribution to owners upon demerger that are held at lower of carrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute;
c. Share based payments; and
d. The defined benefit asseV(liability) which is recognised as the present value ofdefined benefit obligation less fair value ofplan assets.

e. Liability in respect offorward contract/ call and put oplions for acquisition ofNon-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
f. Contingent liability and indemnification ofasset acquired in a business combination are measured at fair value.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS l, 'Presentation ofFinancial Statements' and division II of
schedule III ofthe Companies Act 2013. For the purpose ofclarity, various items are aggregated in the statements ofprofit and loss and balance
sheet. These items are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

Fair value measurement
The Group records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recuning basis. The Group determines fair value based on the price it
would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and either
in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

Fair value hierarchy
Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured

using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, bonds and debentures and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value
ofall financial instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). The fair value offinancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Ifone or more ofthe significant
inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity / preference

securities included in level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS ll3, Fair Value Measurement, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:
a) Market approach - Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or

liabilities.
b) Income approach - Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value using the discounting method.

I
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SIS Limit0d (Formerly known as .SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')
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2.3 Basisof consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements ofthe Parent, its subsidiaries and share ofin net ass€ts ofassociates and
joint ventures as at, and for the year then ended. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an
investee ifand only ifthe Group has:

o Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the cunent ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee),
. Exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee, and
o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority ofvoting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a
majority ofthe voting or similar rights ofan investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

. The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,
o Rights arising from other contractual arrangements,
o The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
. SizeoftheGroup'sholdingofvotingrightsrelativetothesizeanddispersionofholdingsofotherinvesteeswithvotingrights.
. Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not has, the current ability to direct the relevant activities

at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting pattems at previous shareholders' meetings.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee iffacts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more ofthe three
elements ofcontrol. Consolidation ofa subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control over the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The acquisition method ofaccounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If
a member ofthe Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity wilh the Group's accounting policies.

The financial statements ofall entities used for the purpose ofconsolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that ofthe Parent, i.e., year
ended on March 31.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group has used the following key consolidation procedures:
(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose,

income and expenses ofthe subsidiary are based on the amounts ofassets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at
the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount ofthe Parent's investment in each subsidiary and the Parent's portion ofequity ofeach subsidiary. The
policy for accounting for Business combinations explains the accounting for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities ofthe Group.
Profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are
eliminated in full. However, intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Ind-AS 12 on Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions

(d) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent and to the non-
controlling interests, even ifthis results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(e) A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts ofthe controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount ofadjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is
recognised within equity.

(f) Ifthe Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
. Derecognises the carrying amount ofany non-controlling interests,
. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity,
. Recognises the fair value ofthe consideration received,
. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained,
. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss,
. Reclassifies the Parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate, as would
be required ifthe Group had directly disposed ofthe related assets or liabilities.

Non-contro I ling inle rest
Non-controlling interests in lhe net assets (excluding goodwill) ofconsolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Parent's equity. The
interest ofnon-controlling shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share ofthe
fair value ofthe acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice ofmeasurement basis is made on an acquisition to acquisition basis. Subsequent to
acquisition, the carrying amount ofnon-controlling interest is the amount ofthose interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest's
share ofsubsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even ifit results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

2.4 Summary of material accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cunent/non-current classification. An asset is classified as cunent when
it is:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
o Held primarily for the purpose oftrading
o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o Cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period

N DELHI
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A liability is currenl when it is:

o Expected to be settled in lhe normal operating cycle
o held primarily for the purpose oftrading
o Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms ofa liability

that could, at the option ofthe counterpa(y, result in its settlement by the issue ofequity instruments do not affect its classification.

, The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Defened tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition ofassets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has

identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment
Recognilion and measurcmenl
An itim is recognised as an asset, ifand only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
its cost can be measured reliably. Items ofproperty, plant and equipment ('PPE') are initially recognised at cost. Freehold land is carried at historical
cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price, asset retirement obligation and cost directly attributable towards bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the construction ofa qualifring asset are capitalised as part ofthe cost.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item ofproperty, plant and equipment is added to its carrying value only when it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard or period of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and
equipment, including dayto-day repairs, maintenance expenditure and cost ofreplacing pa(s, are charged to the statement ofprofit and loss in the
year during which such expenses are incured.

Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost ofassets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as capital work- in- progress

ccwp').

Advances given towards purchase ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment outstanding as at each balance sheet date are disclosed under other
non-financial assets.

Depreciation
The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful lives using the written down value method (and straight-line method
in respect ofcertain subsidiaries) from the date the assets are available for use.

Useful life

Based on technical assessment, the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the management expects to use these assets.

The estimated useful lives for these assets may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C ofSchedule II ofthe Companies
Act 2013.

The residual values are generally not more than 5% ofthe original cost ofthe asset.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Additions are depreciated on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is available for use till the date the assets are derecognised.

An item ofproperty, plant and equipment and any significant part, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition ofthe asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset) is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

c) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost ofthe asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are canied at cost less any accumulated amo(isation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised software development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

The useful lives ofintangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life on written down value method (or straight line method in respect of
certain subsidiaries) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end ofeach reporting period. Changes in the

of consumption of future embodied in the asset are considered to modiry the
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amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. The assessment ofindefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. Ifnot, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition ofan intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount ofthe asset and are recognised in the statement ofprofit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Goodwill
Goodwill is initially recorded at the amount by which the purchase price for a business or for an ownership interest in a controlled entity exceeds
the fair value attributed to its net assets at date ofacquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions ofsubsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
allocated to cash generating units, and is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently ifevents or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal ofan entity include the carrying
amount ofgoodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose ofimpairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash generating units or groups

ofcash generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or the groups ofunits
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for intemal management purposes, which in our case are the respective entities
carrying out business.

Bmnd name
Brand name is not amortised and tested annually for impairment.

Customet contmcls, cuslon et rclalionship arul non-competilion agrcemenls
Customer contracts, customer relationship and non-competition agreements acquired on an acquisition ofbusiness are recorded at the fair value of
respective assets on the date of acquisition. Customer contracts, customer relationship and non-competition agreements are amortised based on
their useful life.

Software
Costs incuned in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to future period financial
benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems. Costs capitalised include external direct costs of
materials, services, and direct payroll and related costs ofemployees'time spent on the prqect.

License & franchise
Licenses & franchise fees are amortised commencing from the date when license & franchise fees are available for intended use.

d) Investment in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an investee entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable
retums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the entity.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 200lo to 50% ofthe voting rights.

Ajoint venture is a type ofjoint arrangement whereby the parties that havejoint control ofthe arrangement have rights to the net assets ofthejoint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing ofcontrol ofan arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent ofthe parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence orjoint control exist are similar to those necessary to determine control over
the subsidiaries.
The Group's investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group's share ofnet assets ofthe associate orjoint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate orjoint venture is included
in the carrying amount ofthe investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount ofthe investment. The statement ofprofit and loss reflects
the Group's share ofthe results ofoperations ofthe associate orjoint venture. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity ofthe associate orjoint venture, the Group recognises its share ofany changes, when applicable, in the statement ofchanges in equity.
Dividends receivable from associates andjoint ventures reduce the carrying amount ofthe investment.

Ifan entity's share oflosses ofan associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate orjoint venture (which includes any
long-term interest that, in substance, form part ofthe Group's net investment in the associate orjoint venture), the entity discontinues recognising
its share offu(her losses. Addilional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalfofthe associate orjoint venture. Ifthe associate orjoint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its

profits equals the share oflosses not recognised.
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The financial statements ofthe associate or joint venture, for the purpose ofreflecting the Group's share ofthe results of operations ofthe associate
orjoint venture, are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies
in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its
associate orjoint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or
joint venture is impaired. Ifthere is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount ofimpairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
ofthe associate orjoint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as "Share ofprofit of associates /joint ventures" in the statement
ofprofit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount ofthe associate orjoint venture upon loss ofsignificant influence orjoint
control and the fair value ofthe retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

e) Financialinstruments
A financial instrument is any contractlhat gives rise to a financial asset ofone entity and a financial liability or equity instrument ofanother entity
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions ofthe instruments.

Financial assets

Init io I recognit i on and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case offinancial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition ofthe financial asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are

measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales offinancial assets that require delivery ofassets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Su b s eq uenl me a s u re me nl
For purposes ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below categories:
o Financial assets at amortised cost
o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
o Financial assets, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial inslrumenls aI amortised cost
A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(b) Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest (SPPI) on the principal

amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset. When calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayments, extensions call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe EIR. The interest income
based on EIR is included as interest income as a part of other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in profit or [oss. A gain or loss on such financial assets which is not part ofa hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial inslrumenl at FWOCI
A 'financial assets' is classified as at the FVTOCI ifboth ofthe following criteria are met:
(a) The objective ofthe business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised
in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income calculated using the EIR method, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Financial instrumenl at FWPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as

FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However,
such election is made only ifdoing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (refened to as 'accounting mismatch').
Financial asset included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or loss in respect of such
assets that are not part ofa hedging relationship. The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the statement ofprofit and loss within
other gains/losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity inveslments
All equity investments in scope oflnd-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such
election on an Instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irevocable.

If the Group decides to classiS an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling ofthe amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with gain/loss presented in the statement of profit and loss
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets ofan entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Derecogni I i on of fi nqnci al 0s set s

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part ofa financial asset or part ofa group ofsimilar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.

removed from the Group's consolidated balance sheet) when:
r The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full

without material delay to a third party under a 'pass{hrough' arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards ofthe asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, but has

transferred control ofthe asset.

When the Group has not transfered substantially all risks and rewards ofownership ofthe financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Similarly, where the Group retains control ofthe financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent ofcontinuing involvement in
the financial asset.

I mpa i rment of fi nanci a I as set i
The Group recognizes loss allowances on a forwardlooking basis using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognised for trade receivables with no significant financing component. For
all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the l2-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. How the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial statements. The amount ofexpected credit losses (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Findncidl Iiabilities

I nit ial recogni t i on and meas uremenl
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as

derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofbonowings and payables, net ofdirectly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts
and derivative financial instruments.

Subs equent measuremenl
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Finoncial liabilities at.fair value lhrough proft or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading ifthey are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date ofrecognition, and
only ifthe criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit
risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value ofsuch liability are recognised in the statement ofprofit or loss.

Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss also include liabilities arising from forward contracV call and put options for the purpose of
non-controlling interests in subsidiaries and contingent liability acquired in a business combination. The fair value gain/loss arising on such
liabilities is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings
After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net oftransaction costs)

and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period ofthe borrowing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment
ofloan facilities are recognised as transaction costs ofthe loan to the extent it is probable that some or all ofthe facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all ofthe facility will be

drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period ofthe facility to which it relates.

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeemable are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, to the extent such

dividends are mandatorily payable, are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value ofthe liabilig portion ofan optionally convertible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zero-coupon debenture/ bond/ preference

share or compulsorily convertible debenture/preference shares where the price ofconversion ofthe debenture/preference shares into equity share
is not fixed, is determined using a market rate of interest for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an

amodsed cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption ofthe bonds. The remainder ofthe proceeds is attributable to the equity portion
ofthe compound financial instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders' equity, net ofincome tax effects, and not subsequently
remeasured.

When the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instrument to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a liability
(debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount ofthe financial
liability and the fair value ofthe equity instrument issued.

Borrowings are classified as cunent liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement ofthe liability for at least 12 months
after the repodng period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the repodng
period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the repo(ing date, the entity does not classiff the liability as current, ifthe
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval ofthe financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of
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Derccognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount ofa financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets

transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/ losses. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition ofthe original liability and the recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss as other gains/losses.

Reclassifcation of fi nancidl instruments
The Group determines classification offinancial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made
only ifthere is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group's
senior management determines changes in the business model as a result ofextemal or internal changes which are significant to the Group's
operalions. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform
an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day ofthe immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Oflsetting of financifll instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet ifthere is a cunently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course ofbusiness
and in the event ofdefault, insolvency or bankruptcy ofthe Group ofthe counterparty.

f) Trade receivables
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment (allowance for expected credit loss).

g) Current and deferred tax
Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the cunent period's taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by
changes in defered tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Cufient tLx
The cunent income tax charge is calculated on the basis oftax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end ofthe reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
established provisions where appropriate on the basis ofamounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

The net amount oftax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part ofreceivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Defened teY
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
o When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination that, at the time ofthe transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
r In respect oftaxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Defened tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Defened tax assets are recognised to lhe extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
o When the defered tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time ofthe transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
. In respect ofdeductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred

tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allowthe defened tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The effect ofchanges in tax rates on
defened income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment
date.

Deferred tax assets and defered tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set offcurrent tax assets against current tax liabilities.
The net amount oftax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part ofreceivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk ofchanges in
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For the purpose ofthe consolidated statement ofcash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist ofcash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net ofoutstanding bank overdrafts (including cash credit facilities) as they are considered an integral part ofthe Group's cash management. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

i) Equity share capital
Equity shares are classilied as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue ofnew shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net oftax, from the proceeds.

j) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end ofthe financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30-60 days ofrecognition. Trade and other payables are presented as curent liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

k) Provisions and contingencies
Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or a constructive obligation as a result ofpast event and it is probable that an outflow
ofresources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect ofwhich a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are recognised for legal claims
and service waranties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number ofsimilar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
ofobligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even ifthe likelihood ofan outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value ofmanagement's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
ofthe reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments ofthe time
value ofmoney and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage oftime is recognised as an interest expense.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cunent best estimates. In respect oflosses that are covered by insurance,
such losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determination or probability that any portion ofthe loss is not expected to
be settled through insurance or other forms ofrecovery.

Asset rclircntent obligations (ARO)

recogniscdasllanofthccostof-thatparticularassclandamortisedordepreciatedinthesamemannerastheassettowhichitpertains. Ihccstinlatcd

lilrn thc cost o['lhe assct.

Contingent liabilities nntl Contingent assels
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence ofwhich will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle, or a reliable estimate ofthe amount
cannot be made. Contingent asset is not recognised and is disclosed only where an inflow ofeconomic benefits are probable.

Liabilities recognised in a business combination
A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher ofthe
amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

l) Revenue recognition
Revenue towards satisfaction ofa performance obligation is measured at the amount oftransaction price (net ofvariable consideration) allocated
to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various
discounts and schemes offered by the Group as part ofthe contract. Revenue is recognised when the control is transfened to the customer and when
the Group has completed its performance obligations under the contracts.

At the inception ofthe new contractual anangement with the customer, the Group identifies the performance obligations inherent in the agreement.
The terms ofthe conlracts are such that the services to be rendered represent a series ofservices that are substantially the same with the same pattem
ofthe transfer to the customer.

Revenue is recognised as follows:
(i) Revenue from services represents the amounts receivable for services rendered.
(ii) For contract-based business (Expressed or implied), revenue represents the sales value of work canied out for customers during the period.

Such revenues are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.
(iii) Unbilled revenue (contract assets) net ofexpected deductions is recognised at the end ofeach period. Such unbilled revenue is reversed in the

subsequent period when actual invoice is raised.
(iv) Uneamed income (contract liabilities) represents revenue billed but for which services have not yet been performed. The same is released to

the statement ofprofit and loss as and when the services are rendered.
(v) Revenuefromtheuseofassetssuchasrentforusingproperty,plantandequipmentisrecognisedonastraighrlinebasisoverthetermsofthe

related leases unless payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors' expected
infl ationary cost increase.

Sale ofgoods
Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognised when the control ofgoods has been transfened, being when the products are delivered to the buyer,
the buyer having the full discretion over the use ofthe goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer's acceptance ofthe
product. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks ofobsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the buyer, and either the buyer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group
has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale ofgoods is measured at the fair value ofthe
consideration received or receivable, net of retums and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Discounts and rebates are estimated based

on accumulated experience. Certain subsidiaries ofthe Group provide normal wananty provisions for general repairs for one year on all its products
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sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is recognised at the time the product is sold. Revenue is deferred and recognised on a straight line
basis over the extended wananty period in case warranty is provided to customer for a period beyond one year.

Rendering of senices
In contracts involving the rendering ofservices, revenue is measured using the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract outcome cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Estimates ofrevenue, costs or extent ofprogress towards completion are revised ifcircumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the
management.

M a ltip le-e len ent a ft a ngenre nt s
When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as services, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on

each element's fair value.
Reveinue recognition for delivered elemenls is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future dblivery ofproductsorservices,
future performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges.
The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically estimated and compared with the unamo(ised costs. If the unamortised costs
exceed the undiscounted cash flow, a loss is recognised.

Interest income
For all financial asset measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life ofthe
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount ofthe financial asset or to the amortised cost ofa financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms ofthe
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses, Interest income
is included in other income in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and amount ofthe dividend can be measured reliably.

Renlal income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless payments

are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increase and is included
in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

m) Employee Benefits
The Group's employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, defined benefit plans

and share-based payments. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees ofthe
Group.
S hort-te rnt ob I igati o n s
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and compensated absences expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end ofthe period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect ofemployees'services up to reporting date and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for compensated absences is recognised in the provision
for employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as employee benefits payable under other financial liabilities,
current.

Bonus
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences/Leave obligations
The employees of the entities of the Group are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in
nature. The employees can carry forward up to a specified portion ofthe unutilised accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future
periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by
actuarial valuation (using the projected unit credit method) based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused

entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the

statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences occur. Re-measurements arising out ofactuarial gains/losses are immediately taken
into the statement ofprofit and loss and are not deferred.

In respect ofthose employees who are entitled to an encashment ofthe leave at the end ofevery calendar year, a provision is created to account for
the liability.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet ifthe entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months after the reporting date, regardless ofwhen the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Po st-en ry loy nent obligalion s
The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund, employees' state insurance, superannuation funds and central provident fund; and
(b) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

DeJined contfi bution plon
The Group's policy is to contribute on a defined contribution basis for eligible employees, to Employees' Provident Fund, Employees' Pension
Scheme and Employees' State Insurance Scheme towards post-employment benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government
authorities, and has no further obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. The contributions are

accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extenl that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

In respect ofentities ofthe Group not incorporated in India, contributions to superannuation funds are recognised as an employee benefit expense
as they become payable. The Group pays fixed contributions into independent entities in relation to several state plans and insurance for individual
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employees. The central provident fund is an employment based savings scheme with employers and employees contributing a mandated amount to
the Fund. The Group has no fu(her obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Defined Benefit Plon
In Indi4 the Group has a defined benefit plan, viz., Gratuity, for all its employees, and the Group's policy is to determine the liability for this benefit
and to accrue and provide for the same as determined by an independent actuarial valuation. A portion ofthis liability for gratuity is contributed by
some subsidiaries, associates andjoint ventures to Group's gratuity policies administered and operated by reputed insurance companies. The liability
or asset is recognised in the balance sheet in respect ofgratuity plans is the present value ofthe defined benefit obligation at the end ofthe reporting
period less the fair value ofplan assets. The defined benefit is actuarially determined (using the prqiected unit credit method) at the end ofeach
year.

Present value ofthe defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields on
government bonds at the end ofthe reporting periods, that have approximately similar terms to the related obligation.

The Group recognises the followihg changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consblidated statement ofprofit and loss:
. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
. Net interest expense or income

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
. The date ofthe plan amendment or curtailment, and
. The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

The net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance ofthe defined benefit obligation and the fair value ofplan assets. This
cost is included in the employee benefit expense in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising ofactuarial gains and losses, the effect ofthe asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Equiry seltled slock-based compensation
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost ofequity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The
fair value ofoptions granted under various Employee stock option plans is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity (stock option outstanding account).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all ofthe specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end ofeach period, the entity revises its estimates ofthe number ofoptions that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value ofawards, but the likelihood
of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions, if any, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value ofan award and lead to an
immediate expensing ofan award unless there are also service and./or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective ofwhether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect ofoutstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation ofdiluted eamings per share.

n) Borrowing costs
Boffowing costs include interest calculated on the effective interest rate method, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange
differences arising fiom foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific
bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofthe assets that necessarily take a substantial period oftime to
get ready for their intended use or sale ('qualifying assets'), are added to the cost ofthose assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. All other bonowing costs are expensed in statement ofprofit and loss within finance costs in the period in which they
are incurred.

o) Leases

Group as a lessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, vehicles and equipments. For any new contracts, the Group assesses
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as 'a contract, or part ofa contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period in exchange for consideration'. To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations
which are whether:
(i) the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time
the asset is made available to the Group
(ii) The Group has the right to obtain substantially all ofthe economic benefits from use ofthe identified asset throughout the period ofuse,
considering its rights within the defined scope ofthe contract
(iii) The Group has the right to direct the use ofthe identified asset throughout the period ofuse.
The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' the asset is used throughout the period ofuse.

Measuremen! and recognilion ofleases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group a right-of-use asset ('ROU') and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-
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estimate ofany costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end ofthe lease, and any lease payments made in advance ofthe lease commencement
date (net ofany incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets using the written down value method (and straight-line method in respect ofcertain subsidiaries)
from the lease commencement date to the earlier ofthe end ofthe useful life ofthe right-of-use asset or the end ofthe lease term. The Group also
assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

IndASl l6 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period ofa lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the
lease, ifthe use ofsuch option is reasonably certain. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current
economic circumstances.

Extension and termination options are included in a number ofleases across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
ofmanaging the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority ofextension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group
and not by the respective lessor.

At the commencement daie, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value ofthe lease payments unpaid at that date, discouhted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease ifthat rate is readily available or the Group's incremental bonowing rate, Lease payments included in the
measurement ofthe lease liability are comprises offixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate,
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments, When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss ifthe righrof-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases oflow-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead ofrecognising a right-
of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Lease liability and right-of-use assets have been separately presented in the notes to the financial statements under 'Other financial liability' and
'Property, plant and equipment' (except those meeting the definition ofinvestment property) respectively. Lease payments have been classified as
'cash flows from financing activities'.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
The Group has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term oftwelve months or less and leases

of low value assets. The Group recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards ofownership ofan asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term ofthe relevant lease unless payments are structured to increase in
line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under "Other Income" in the statement of Profit
and Loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and ananging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
eamed. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all ofthe risks and rewards ofownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate ofreturn on the net investment outstanding in respect ofthe lease.

p) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently ifevents or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred
tax assets, are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher ofits fair value less cost ofdisposal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. For the purposes ofimpairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent ofthe cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units or CGU).
Impairment occurs when the carrying amount ofa CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount ofthe CGU. For the
purpose ofimpairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Group's CGUs expected to benefit from the
synergies arising from the business combination. Total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount ofgoodwill
allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets ofthe CGU, pro-rata on the basis ofthe carrying amount ofeach asset in the CGU. An impairment
loss on goodwill recognised in the statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent period. Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at the end ofeach reporting period.

q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders ofthe Parent (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction ofan equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully
paidequityshareduringthereportingperiod. Theweightedaveragenumberofequitysharesoutstandingduringtheperiodisadjustedforevents
ofbonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation ofshares).

Diluted Eamings per share amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Parent (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes but after adjusting the after income tax effect ofinterest and other financing cost associated with dilutive
potential equity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the
weighted average number ofequity shares that could have been issued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed conve(ed
potential equity shares are determined independently for each year presented.

as at the beginning ofthe yeaq unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
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r) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiefoperating decision maker.

The Board of Directors of SIS Limited have appointed a Group management committee which assesses the financial performance and position of
the Group and makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Group. Further, inter-segment
revenue is accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between segments which is primarily market based. Revenue and expenses are

identified to segments on the basis oftheir relationship to the operating activities ofthe segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the Group
as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, are included under "Unallocated corporate expenses/income".

s) Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals ofpast or future operating cash receipts or payments and item ofincome or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities ofthe Group are segregated.

t) Businesscombination

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions oflnd AS 103, Business Combinations.

The cost ofan acquisition is measured at the fair value ofthe assets transferred, equity instruments issued, and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transfered to the Group. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any
contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair value on the date ofacquisition.

The interest ofnon-controlling shareholders is initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share ofthe
acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice ofmeasurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of
subsequent changes in equity ofsubsidiaries.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part ofthe consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value ofthe contingent consideration that qualifr as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value ofcontingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is measured at fair value at
subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as

equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted within equity.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition date
fair value, and the resulting gain, ifany, is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination such as finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other
professional and consulting fees are expensed as incured.

2.5 Other accounting policies

a) Investmentproperties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes borrowing costs for long{erm construction projects ifthe recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to
the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and cost
ofsuch expenditure can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. When part ofan
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount ofthe replaced part is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using written down value method over their estimated useful lives of 60 years. The useful life has been
determined based on a technical evaluation performed by the management's expert.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed ofor when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss in the period ofderecognition.

b) Financialinstruments

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature ofthe item being hedged, and the type ofhedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gainV losses.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract - with the effect that
some ofthe cash flows ofthe combined similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all

to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
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commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-
financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Group does not separate embedded derivatives.
Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host
contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value iftheir economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those ofthe host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment
only occurs ifthere is either a change in the terms ofthe contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification ofa financial asset out ofthe fair value through profit or loss.

c) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower ofthe cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs ofcompletion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes cost ofpurchase and other costs incuned in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on
first in, first out basis.

d) Non-current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and discontinued operations
The Group classifies non-cuffent assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution to owners iftheir carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale/distribution rather than through continuing use and where a sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to
complete the sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision to
sell/distribute will be withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distribution being completed within one year from the date of
classification.
Non-curent assets held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower oftheir carrying amount and the fair value
less costs to sell/distribute except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights
under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are
presented separately in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down ofthe asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell/distribute.
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell/ distribute an asset (or a disposal group), but not in excess ofany
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date ofsale/ distribution oflhe non-current asset
(or disposal group) is recognised on the date ofderecognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.
A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed oi or is classified as held for
sale, and:
. Represents a separate major line ofbusiness or geographical area ofoperations,
. Is part ofa single coordinated plan to dispose ofa separate major line ofbusiness or geographical area ofoperations, or
. Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results ofcontinuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the statement ofprofit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

e) Government grants
Grants from the Govemment are recognised at their transaction cost where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income or expenditure / expense are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the expected lives ofrelated assets and presented within other income.

f) Foreign currency transaction and balances
Items included in the financial statements ofeach entity ofthe Group are measured using the currency ofthe primary economic environment in
which the entity operates ('lhe functional curency')

The consolidated financial statements ofthe Group are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also the Parent's functional cunency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the entities ofthe Group at their respective functional currency spot rates prevailing at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cunencies are translated at the functional cunency spot rates prevailing at the reporting date.

Subsequently, differences arising on restatement or settlement of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of monetary
items that are designated as part ofthe hedge ofthe Group's net investment ofa foreign operation or a monetary item for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur in foreseeable future is considered as part ofthe entity's net investment in that foreign operation. These are recognised
in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms ofhistorical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates ofthe
initial transactions and translation differences are recognised in OCI with the accumulation in other equity as foreign currency translation reserve.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign curency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
The gain or loss arising on translation ofnon-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition ofthe gain or loss on the
change in fair value ofthe item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
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The equity items denominated in foreign cunencies are translated at historical cost.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities offoreign operations are translated into INR at the rate ofexchange prevailing at the reporting date and
their statements ofprofit or loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation ofthe cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates ofthe
transactions). The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component ofOCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation ofany net investment in foreign entities, and ofborowings and other financial
instrumenls designated as hedge of such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part ofthe gain or loss on sale.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition ofa foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities arising
on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities ofthe foreign operation and translated at the spot rate ofexchange at the repo(ing date.

g) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders ofthe Parent
The Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to dquity holders ofthe Group when thd distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion ofthe Group. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the carying value ofthe assets to be distributed in case ofdistributions in which all owners ofthe same

class ofequity instruments are treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the
distribution, and at fair value ofthe assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity. For this purpose, a group
ofindividuals shall be regarded as controlling an entity when, as a result ofcontractual arrangements, they collectively have the power to govem
its financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that ultimate collective power is not transitory. Upon distribution
ofnon-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount ofthe liability and the carrying amount ofthe assets distributed is recognised in
the statement ofprofit and [oss.

h) Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer lo items of income or expense within the statement ofprofit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recuning and
are ofsuch size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance ofthe Group.

2.6 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs CMCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, For the year ended March 31,2024,MCA has not notified any new
existing standards applicable to the Group.

Companies (Indian Accounting
standards or amendments to the

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimatesand assumptions
Use of estimales antl jutlgment
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application ofaccounting policies and the reported amounts ofassets, liabilities, income and expenses and other comprehensive income
(OCl) that are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements
In the process ofapplying the Group's accounting policies, management has made variousjudgements, which have the most significant effect on
lhe amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of
these estimates andjudgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis ofcalculation for each affected line item in
the financial statements.

Ctilical eslintflles and judgements
The areas involving critical estimates orjudgements are:

o Estimation ofcunent tax expense and payable - Note 8
. Estimated useful life of intangible assets-Note 2.4.c
r Estimation ofdefined benefit obligation - Note 28
r Estimation of provision for wananty claims - Note 20
o Estimation offair value ofcontingent liabilities and liability towards forward contract or call and put options to purchase non-controlling

interests in a business combination -Note 34
o Whether forward contract or call and put options to purchase non-controlling interests result in transfer ofrisks and rewards ofownership

by non-controlling interests- Note 34
. Recognition ofdeferred tax assets for carried forward oftax losses - Note 8
. Consolidation decisions and classification ofjoint arangements - Note 39
o Impairmentoftradereceivables-Note ll
o Whether assets held for distribution to owners meet the definition ofdiscontinued operations- Note 2.5.d

Impain rent
The Group assess impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific 1o the Group that may lead to impairment ofassets. Where
an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount ofthe asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable
amounts incorporate a number ofkey estimates. During the financial year, the group has recognised an impairment loss relating to its Singapore
Security business by writing down goodwill by an amount ofINR 656.05 million in its statement ofprofit or loss. This was the result ofa revaluation
ofthe business carried out by the management based on changes in the economic conditions in Singapore post covid and also based on the revised
plans and growth outlook for this business. Refer note 5 for further information.
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (TNDIA) LIMITED')

(All.figures in INR million unless stoted otherv)ise)

Shue-based payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination ofthe most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on
the terms and conditions ofthe grant. This estimate also requires determination ofthe most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life ofthe stock option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating
fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 28.

Tates
Defened tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant managementjudgement is required to determine the amount ofdefered tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and the level offuture taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. [refer note 8]

Defined beneJit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination ofthe discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long+erm nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly serisitive to changes in these assumptions- Al[ assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mo(ality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. [refer note 28]

Fair volue measutement ofiinancial ins lruments
When the fair values offinancial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree ofjudgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations ofinputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value offinancial instruments. [refer note l9]

Inltngible qsset undet developmenl
The Group capitalises development costs for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
management's judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed. In determining lhe amounts to be capitalised, management
makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation ofthe project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

lreler note 5l

Leases

IndAS ll6requireslesseestodeterminetheleasetermasthenon-cancellableperiodofaleaseadjustedwithanyoptiontoextendorterminatethe
lease, ifthe use ofsuch option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there
by assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the
Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination ofthe
lease, the importance ofthe underlying asset to SIS'S operations taking into account the location ofthe underlying asset and the availability of
suitable altematives. lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. [refer
note 4 and

(lhis space has been intentionally left blank)



SIS Limited
(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

4. Property, plant and equipment

Year ended March 31,2023

Year ended March 31, 2O24

*Include building on leasehold land.

known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES

*

Net carrying
value as rt
Il{arch 31,

2023

901 98

156.49

838.76

229.9s

732.04

113.51

1 33.1 5

3,105.88

194.93

3,300.81

Accumulated depreciation

As at
March 31,

2023

t.137 .73

229.07

877.98

s22.54

718.41

4t8.32

293.88

4,197.93

4,197.93

Thanslation
adjustments

(l 0.ss)

0.39

(8.00)

(4.67')

(15.23)

0.01

(4.e3)

(42.e8)

(42.e8)

Sale and
adjustments

(41..e2)

6.6s

6.04

2.34

( 188.03 )

(3.s7)

(1.51)

(220.00)

(220.001

Charge for
the year

334.95

s7.26

297.60

45.7 8

262.62

50.53

65.1 8

1,113.92

1,113.92

As at April
1,2022

855.25

164.77

s82.34

479.09

659.05

371 .3s

235.14

3,346.99

3,346.99

Gross block

As at
March 31,

2023

2,039.7 t

385.s6

|,716.7 4

752.49

1,450.4s

531.83

427.03

7,303.81

194.93

7,498.74

Thanslation
adjustments

(2s.04)

(0.73)

(10.42)

(7 08)

(26.24)

0.02

(6.ee)

(76.48)

(1.31)

(77.791

Sale and
adjustments

(53.s3)

(4.s2)

0.99

(221.8s\

(6.8e)

(2.s8)

(288.38)

(8.37)

(296.7s\

Additions
during the

vet r

266.s4

91.71

418.35

48.02

390.32

51 .05

69.06

1,335.05

180.16

1,515.21

Acquired on
business

acnrrisilion
101.85

30.81

38.05

1.55

19.79

2.77

194.42

1.23

196.05

As at April
1,2022

|,749.89

263.77

1,2'ts.28

709.01

r.288.43

487.65

364.77

6,r38.80
)7, 1.'

6,162.02

Description ofessets

Buitdings *#

Leasehold improvement

Plant and Machinery #

Fwnitwe and Fixtwe

Vehicles #

Off,rce equipment

Computer equipment

Capital vork-in-progress

Grand total

Net carrying
value as at
March 31,

2024

I ,l 10.76

164.4s

1,t20.22

221.82

820.05

178.87

I 18.79

3,734.96

22.17

3,157.13

Accumulated depreciation

As at
March 31,

2fl24

1.so4.29

350.s7

1,22r.t9
s60.44

81 5.09

483.43

366.71

5,301.72

5,301.72

Thanslation
adjustments

(s.82)

(0.1 5)

(2.73)

(r.77)
(s.7e)

0.01

(2.2s)

(18.s0)

(r8.s0)

Sale and
adjustments

( 16.e6)

(0.41)

(1 96.8s)
(0.37)

(214.s9)

(2 r4.se)

Charge for
the year

389.34

12t.65

346.35

39.67

299.32

65.47

75.08

r336.E8

1,336.88

As at April
1,2023

1,137.73

229.07

877.98

522.54

718.41

418.32

293.88

4,197.93

4,197.93

Gross block

As at
March 31,

2024
2,61s.0s

515.02

2,341.41

782.26

I,635 .14

662.30

485.50

9,036.68

22.17

9,058.85

Thanslation
adjustments

01.00)
(0.71)

(3.s9)

(2.63\

( 10.s3)

0.01

(2.e0)

(31.3s)

0.s0

(30.8s)

Sale and
adjustments

(21.44)

0.3s

(22s.91)

(2.1 1)

(249.11\

(573.30)

(822.41)

Additions
during the

vetr
607.78

130.17

62',7.9r

32.40

42t.13

132.57

61.37

2,0r333
400.04

2,413.37

Acquired on
business

acouisition

As at April
1,2023

2,039.71

385.56

t.7 t6.7 4

7s2.49

I,4s0.4s

531.83

427.O3

7,303.81

194.93

7,498.74

Description of assets

Buildings *#

Leasehold improvement

Plant and Machinery #

Furniture and Fixture

Vehicles #

Office equipment

Computer equipment

Capital vork-in-propress

Grand total

NEW A-23 & 29
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SIS Limited known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES

(All Jigures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

# Right-of ase asse* included above in building, vehicles and plant und machinery is mmtionetl below:

note of related lease liabilities.

(i) Ageing of Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Year ended March3l,zE3

Year ended March 31, 2024

*Includes plant and machinery pending put to use as per terms ofthe agreements.

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security
Refer to note 15 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Group.

(iii) Contractual obligation

Total

E35.02

101.85

294.70

(r r.64)

(346.261

(1s.e6)

857.71

632.92

(4.s21

(422.39)

(s.79)

1,0s7.93

Plant and
Machinery

0.8s

12.00

(4 38)

(0.03)

4.44

5.00

(4.8e)

(0.07)

E.48

Vehicles

29.05

24.81

(0.01)

(l 1.16)

( r .43)

41.26

6.74

0.03

(19.08)

(0.53)

28.42

Building

805.12

101.85

257.89

(l1.63)

(330.72)

( 14.s0)

808.01

62t.18

(4.ss)

(3e8.42)

(s. I 9)

1,021.03

Particulars

Balance as at April l, 2022

Acquired on business acquisition

Additions during the year

Derecognised/adjustments during the year

Depreciation during the year

T ranslation adjustments

Balance as at March 31,2023

Additions during the year

Derecognised/adjustments during the year

Depreciation during the year

T rahslat ion adjustment s

Balance as at lUarch 31,2024

Total

194.93

194.93

More than 3

vears
2-3 yeers1-2 years

1 3.s6

13.56

<1 year

I 81 .37

181.37

Particulars

- Projects in progress +

Total

Total

22.17

22.17

More than 3

vears
2-3 years1-2 years

8.45

8.45

<1 year

13.72

13.72

NEW

/,':_-.-
Particulars

- Projects in progress *

Totrl t5/ / \ef

fJery De/iii-1

Iel:0

Refer note 34 (a) for disclosure of contractual commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.



SIS Limited
(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

5. Goodwill and Other Intangible assets
Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31,2024

* Computer software consists ofpurchased software licenses and
# Refer note 5 (ii) for impairment testing of goodwill.

known as (SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES

costs of

-tr

*

Net
carrying

value as at
March 31,

2023

I 1.39s.1 I
Other Intangible assets

3t I .12

12.0s

574.29

834.89

36.90

Intan gible assets under development

217.46

13,381.82

Accumulated amortisation / Impairment loss

As at
March 31,

2023

2,778.39

323.ss

2s.98

827.36

216.65

4,171.93

Tlanslation
adjustments

(et.7e)

(r5.32\

(21 .0e)

(r28.20\

Sale and
adjustments

(21.66)

(2r.66\

Charge for
the year

88.27

1.88

103.17

39.57

232.49

As at April
1,2022

2,870.18

250.60

24.10

766 94

177.08

4,088.90

Gross block

As at
March 31,

2023

14,173.50

634.67

38.03

|,40t .65

834.89

253 55

217.46

r7,553.75

Ttanslation
adjustments

(368.0s)

(22.|e)

(24.0e)

( I .20)

(1.02)

(4r6.ss)

Sale and
adjustments

0.64

(170.s9)

(r5e.es)

Additions
during the

year

170 60

7.2s

177.68

355.53

Acquired
on business
acquisition

24.74

236.14

260.88

As at April
t,2022

14,516.81

486.26

38.03

I ,1 81 .71

836.09

253.55

21t.39

17,s23.84

Description of assets

Goodwill #

softraare +

License and franchise

Customer

ContractVrelat ionshio

Brand name

Non-competition
ageements

Computer softqare

Grand total

Net carrying
value as rt
March 31,

2024

10,678.81
O ther intangible assets

358.07

437 60

834.70

6.20

Intangible assets unde r development

328.60

12,543.98

Accumulated amortisation / Impairment loss

As at
ldarch 31,

2024

3,400.6s

475.88

954.48

247.35

5,078.36

Thanslation
adjustments

(33.79\

6.72)

(8.s6)

(49.07\

Sale and
adjustments

(26.44)

(0.51 )

(26.9s\

Charge for
the year

656.05

159.05

0.46

136.19

30.70

982,4s

As at April
t,2023

2,778.39

323.55

2s.98

827.36

216.65

4,171.93

Gross block

As at
luarch 31,

2024

14,o79.46

833 95

1,392.08

834.70

253.55

328.60

11,722.34

Thanslation
tdjustments

(132.63)

(8.28)

(r3.67)

(0.1 e)

(1.31)

(rs6.08)

Sale and
adjustments

(38.03)

(4.62)

(l 86.23)

(228.88)

Additions
during the

vear

207.56

8.72

298.68

514.95

Acquired
on business
acquisition

38.59

38.59

As at April
1,2023

14,173.50

634.67

38.03

|,401 .65

834.89

253.55

217.46

17,553.75

Description of assets

Goodwill #

softuare *

License and frmchise

Customer
ContractVrelat ionshiD

Brand name

Non-competition
ageements

Computer software

Gmnd totrl
Resource Planning @RP) software.



SIS Li[lited Sormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')
(All figures in INR million unless stated othenuise)

Ageing of Intangible assets under development:
Year ended March 2023

Year ended l\tlarch 31, 2024

Total

328.60

328.60

More than 3
vetrs

2-3 ycars

19.69

19.69

1-2 years

69.15

69.1s

<l year

239.76

239.76

Particulars

- Projects in progress

Total

lntangible assets under on the development ofan Enterprise Resource

(i) Refer note 37 for assets acquired under business acquisition.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Total

217.46

217.46

More than 3
verrs

20.60

20.60

2-3 years

24.79

24.79

1-2 years

55.64

s5.64

<1 year

116.43

116.43

Particulars

- Projects in progress

Total

4.28 &29

llelv it
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SIS Limit€d fl'ormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All Jigures in INR million unless statecl otherwise)

(ii) Impairment testing of goodwill and brands with indefinite lives
A summary ofchanges in the carrying amount ofgoodwill is as follows:

# Refer Note 37
* The group has recognised an impairment loss relating to its Singapore Security business by writing down goodwill by an amount of INR 656.05

million in its statement of profit or loss.

The ofallocation of to is as follows:

The entire goodwill relating to acquisition of SLV Security Services Private Limited, Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited and SIS Alarm
Monitoring and Response Services Private Limited has been allocated to the groups ofCGUs which are represented by the Security Services - India
segment.

The entire goodwill relating to acquisition of Southern Cross Protection Pty Ltd, SIS Henderson Holdings fte Ltd, Platform 4 Group Ltd, Triton
Security Limited, Safety Direct Solutions fty Ltd and acquisition ofbusiness assets of BAS Securities Limited, Redfrog Security, Conroy Security
Limited, Guardforce Security Limited, Protection Plus Security and Protective Services Limited has been allocated to the group of CGUs which are

represented by the Security Services - Intemational segment.

The entire goodwill relating to acquisition ofDusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited, Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited
and ADIS Enterprises Private Limited has been allocated to the group ofCGUs which are represented by the Facilities Management segment.

A summary of changes in the carrying amounts of brands with indefinite life as follows:

The break-up ofallocation ofbrands to operating segments is as follows:

Particulars March3l,2O24 March 31,2023

Facilities management 820.99 820.99

International 13.71 13.90

Impairment testing
The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is

determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets/plans approved by management covering a period of five years. Cash flows beyond the period of five years are extrapolated using the

estimated growth rates stated below. These growth rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which
each CGU operates.

The recoverable amount ofa CGU is the higher ofits fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. The value-in-use is determined based on specific
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections for a CGU / group ofCGUs over a period offive years. An average ofthe range of
each assumption used is mentioned below. As ofMarch3l,2024, and March 31, 2023,lhe estimated recoverable amount ofthe CGU exceeded its
carrying amount. The recoverable amount was computed based on the fair value less cost to sell being higher than value-in-use. The carrying amount
ofthe CGU was computed by allocating the net assets to operating segments for the purpose ofimpairment testing.

A.2B 8

a
*

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Carrying value at the beginning ofthe year I 1,395,11 11,646.63

Goodwill on acquisition of Safety Direct Solutions Pty Limited# 38.59 1 1.94

Impairment loss recognised on Cnodwitl attributable to Singapore Security Business 
*

(656.05)

Cnodwitl on acquisition of business assets of Protection Plus Security 12.80

T ranslat ion differences (e8.84) (276.26)

Carrying value at the end ofthe year 10,678.81 I 1,395.1 I

March 31, 2023Particulars March 31,2024

2,174.32Security Services - India 2,174.32

Security Services - International 7,4s9.74 I,176.04

Facilities Management 1,044.7 5 1,044.7 s

10,678.81 I 1,39s.1 I

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Carrying value at the beginning ofthe year 834.89 836.09

Change during the year

T ranslat ion differences (0.1 e) (1.20)

Carrying value at the end ofthe year 834.70 834.89

*

(lhis space has been intentionolly left blank)
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES ONDIA) LIMITED')

(AII figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Key assumptions used for testing impairment of goodwill:
Year ended March 3l 2023

Yea r ended March 31, 2024

TEBIT (%) has been used as key assumptions.

The assumptions used for the curent reporting period may differ from the assumptions in the next reporting period as intemal and extemal
circumstances and expectations change. Ifthe budgeted revenue growth rate used in the value in use calculation for the Singapore Security Business
had been 5olo lower than management's estimates as at 3l March 2024 for all future years, with conesponding adjustment to the working capital
assumptions, the group would have had to recognise a further impairment against the carrying amount ofgoodwill ofINR 194.37 million [AUD 3.57
millionl. Ifthe pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections ofthis CGU had been l% higher than management's estimates (10.61%
instead of 9.61%), the Group would have had to recognise a further impairment against Goodwill of INR 257.52 million [AUD 4.73 million].
Management will continue to monitor the Singapore Security business CGU for these changes and may make further adjustments as the case may be.

(lhis space has been intentionally left blank)

Particulars
Sales (7o

annual growth
rate)

BITDA/
mrl(9/.)

Long term
growth rate (7d

Pre-tax discount
rate (Yo)

Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited t0.00%- 25.00% 4.20%- 5.90% s.00% 10.75%

SLV Security Services Private Limited lO.O0o/o - 20.00o/o 4.7jVo- 5.80o/o 5.00% 10.75%

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited 10.00% - 20.00% 3.30%- 5.90% 5.00% 10.7s%

Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited 3.00o/o - 8.600/o 4 .20o/o - 6.10o/o 5.00% 10.75%

MSS Security Pty Limited* 2.30% 4.03% 2.00% 9.29%

Southern Cross Protection Pty Ltd* 2.00% 4.05%- 6.00% 2.00% 9.29%

SllS Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd* 18.40% 0 .59o/o - 8.45o/o 2.00% 9.640/o

Platform 4 Group Ltd* 2.00% 1.00%- 520% 2.OOYI 11.00%

Particulars
Sales (%o

annual growth
rate)

MITDA/
mIT(%o)

Long term
growth rate (7o)

Pre-tax discount
rate (o/o)

Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited 10.00o/o- 12.00%o 4.20%- s.l0% 5.00% 1t.16%

SLV Security Services Private Limited 8.00% 4.30% - 5.00% 5.00% 11.16%

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited 10.00%- 16.00% 4.70%- 6.10% 5.0OVo I | .160/o

Uniq Security Solutions Private Limited 10.00% 4.00%- 4.90% 5.00% l1.l60/o

MSS Security Pty Limited* 2.30% 4.03% 2.00% 9.83Yo

Southern Cross Protection Pty Ltd* 2.OOYI 4 .05o/o - 6.00o/o 2.00o/o 9.83%

SIS Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd* 12.00% - 32.00% 3.24%- 6.36% 2.00% 9.61%

Platform 4 Group Ltd* 2.00% 1.00%- 5.20% 2.00% t t.s8%



SIS Limited 1f,'ormerly known es'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AIl figures in INR million unless stated othemise)

6. Investments

*During the year ended March 3 l, 2024, current maturity of non-convertible SIS

U) L;

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

Non-current investments

Investments in equity Instruments (Unquoted fully paid)

Investment in joint ventures (at cost unless stated otherwise)
9,708,696 (March 31, 2023: 9,708,696) equity shares in SIS Cash Services Private Limited
ofINR l0/- each fully oaid up

7s3.88 508.89

49 (March 31,2023:49) equity shares in Habitat Security Pty Ltd ofAUD l/- each fully
naid un

3.13 4.60

Total investment in joint ventures (A) 757.01 513.49

Investments in others (at WTPL)

0.1 8 0.1 8
30 (March 31,2023:30) equity shares in Staqu Technologies Private Limited of INR l0/-
each

5,000 (March 31,2023:5,000) equity shares in Saras*at Cooperative Bank LimitedofINR
I 0/- each fullv paid uo

0.05 0.05

Ibtal investments (B) 0.23 0.23

757.24 513.72Total investment in equity instruments {A+B} (C)

Investments in preference shares (Unquoted fully paid)

Investments in others (at WTPL)
17 ,658,153 (March 3 I , 2023: 17 ,658,153) compulsory convertible preference shares in SIS

Asset Manaqement Limitedof INR 10/- each
177.77 177.77

7 ,773 (March 3l ,2023: 7 ,773\ Class-2 compulsory convertible cumulative preference

shares in StaouTechnolosiesPrivate Limitedof INR l0/- each
50.01 50.01

13.26 tf .26
2, I 69 (March 3l ,2023: 2, I 69) compulsory convertible preference shares in $aqu
Technologies Private Limited of INR 5421 each

Total investment in preference shares (D) 241.04 241.04

Investments in debentures or bonds (Unquoted fully paid)

Investments in joint ventures (at amortised cost)

1 25 (March 31,2023:225) Non-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Private Limited
of INR 1.000.000/- each fullv oaid uo*

75.00 12s.00

Total investment in joint ventures (E) 75.00 12s.00

Investments in others (at FVTPL)

3077 (March 31,2023: Nil) compulsory convertible debentures in Entitled Solutions Private

Limitedof INR 11,373/- each
34.99

Total inyestments in others (F) 34.99

Total investments in debentures or bonds {E+F} (G) I 09.99 r2s.00

1,1o8.27 879.76Total non-current investments {C+D+G} (H)

Current investments

Investments in mutual funG (at FVTPL) 5.55 3.22

5.55 3.22fbtal investments in mutual funds (t)

Investments in debentures or bonds (Unquoted fully paid)

Investments in joint ventures (at amortised cost)

50.00 100.00
Non-convertible debentures in SIS Cash Services Private Limited of INR 1,000,000/- each

fully paid up*

Total investments in debentures or bonds (J) s0.00 100.00

Total current investments U+J) (I0 55.15 103.22

Total investments {H+K} 1,163.82 982.98

5.5s 3.22Aggegate value of quoted investments and market value thereof

Aggregate value of wrquoted investments 1,158.27 979.76

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

10020Nery
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SIS Limited (['ormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES flNDIA) LIMITED')

(AII figures in INR million unless stated otheruise)

7. Other financial assets

* Fixed deposits have been pledged as margiir money against bank guarantees.
** All unbilled dues are undisputed and falling under the ageing of less than six months from the date bfcompletion ofdelivery ofgoods/services.
Further, unbilled revenues are classified as financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage oftime.

No other advances are due from directors or other officers ofthe Group either severally orjointly with any other person and from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 40.

Refer note 4l for the Group's policy regarding impairment allowance on other financial assets and Group's credit risk management processes.

7a. Loans

of details:

No loans are due from directors or other officers ofthe Group either severally orjointly with any other person and from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 40.

8. Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 3 l, 2024 andMarchSl,2023 are:

Statement of prolit and loss:
or loss section:

\tuil

(D hlcrv

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Other non-current financial assets

Security deposits (unsecure{ considered good) 29s.94 313.92

Margin money in the form of fixed deposits t I 9l .14 128.28

Fixed deposit maturing after l2 months 90.78 221.20

Other non-current financial assets 33.95 36.10

Total other non-current financial assets 611.81 699.s0

Other current financial assets

Unbilled revenue +* (refer note 23) 7 ,060.57 5,990.05

Security deposits (unsecure4 considered good) 237.68 186.70

Interest accrued on deposits / investments/ loans 7l .05 93.35

Other receivables 143.74 120.78

Total other current financial assets 7,5t3.04 6,390.88

Total financial assets 6,124.E5 7,090.38

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Total non-current loans

Current loens

Loans to related parties 17.00 17.00

Total current loans 17.00 17.00

Total Loans 17.00 17.00

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Loan Receivables considered good - Secwed

Loan Receivables considered good - Unsecured 17.00 17.00

Total 17.00 17.00

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 298.4s 344.35

Adjustments in respect of current income tax expense / (reversal) of previow years 16.31 77.14

Deferred tax:

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (net) 503.99 (t,037 .41)

Income tax expense(credit) reported in the statement ofprofit and loss 818.75 (61s.92)

tei:01i
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SIS Limited lFormerly known es'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

,",u,g*t-w

OCI section:
Tau rclated to items in OCI the

Reconciliation ond lhe lhe tLx tate March 31,2024 and March 31,2023:

The effective tax rate applicable to the Parent for the financial yeat 2024-25 would be 25.17% (including surcharge and cess) based on the law as

it exists on the date ofthese financial statements.

The balance in deferred tcr assas (liabilities) attilbutable to:

in tlrc balance sheel as

(This Space has been intentionally leli blank)

Particulars March 31,2024 Mnrch 31,2023

Tax expense(credit) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans 17.39 31. l8

Income tax charged(credited) to OCI 17.39 31.18

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 2,719 .15 2,849.10

Accounting profit before income tax 2,719.|s 2,849.10

Income tax expense at statutory rate @25.17% (March 31, 2023: 25.17%) 684.36 717 .06

Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous years 16.31 77.14

Additional temporary tax deductible in respect ofcertain benefits under the Income Tax Act,
l96l

(28e.2e) ( 1,628.1 9)

Non- Deductible expenses for tax purposes

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 8.05 6.3s

Donation 0.66 1.73

Other non-deductible expenses 375.17 t24.15

Income taxed at differential rates

Entities taxed at different rates 23.49 85.84

Thx expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 818.7s (61s.92)

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets (343.1 8) (322.17)

Defined benefit obligations |,874.57 I,772.30

Deductions in respect ofcertain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 I ,001 .37 I ,541 .53

Accruals and others (43.s6) 73.25

Allouance for expected credit loss - trade receivables 276.9s 225.50

Unused tax losses 152.t5 185.91

Total deferred tax assets(liabilities) 2,918.30 3,476.32

Particulars March3l,2024 March 31,2023

Deferred tax assets (net) 3,269.46 3,906.72

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 351 .16 430.40

Total deferred tax assets(liabilities) (net) 2,918.30 3,476.32

NEW
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES ONDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Reconciliation tu assels net:

Defened tax assets and liabilities above have been determined by applying the income tax rates applicable to respective entities in the Group.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities in relation to taxes payable by various entities/ under different tax basis have not been offset in the financial
statements.

Unrecognised temporary differences:
Ce(ain subsidiaries ofthe Group have undistributed earnings which, ifpaid out as dividends would be subject to tax in the hand ofthe recipient.
An assessable temporary difference exists but no deferred tax liability has been recognised as the Parent is able to control the timing ofdistribution
from the subsidiaries and the earnings are expected to be utilised for their business expansion.

Income lax assets:

Cu r rent ttr I ia bi I ities :

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities ifand only ifit has a legally enforceable right to set offcurrent tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the defened tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Particulars

Property,
plant and

equipment

Intangible
assets

Delined
benefit

obligations

Deductions
in respect
of certain
benefits

under the
Income Trx
Act, 1961

Accruals
and

others

Allowance
for

expected
credit loss

- trade
receivables

Unused
tax

losses
Total

As at April l,2022 (334.69) 1,7s3.36 647.88 t20.23 r80.81 173.s1 2,s41.10

Tax income(expense) during the period

recomised in orofit or loss
83.82 89.58 893.65 (86.91) 44.87 t2.40 1,037.41

Tax income(expense) during the period

reco$ised in OCI
(31.18) (31.18)

Addition on business combination (78.27) 31.83 (46.44)

Exchange translation 6.97 (3e.46) 8.10 (0.1 8) (24.s7)

As at March 31,2023 (322.r7) 1,772.30 1,541.53 73.25 225.50 185.9r 3,476.32

Tax income(expense) during the period

recosrised in profit or loss
(23.48) 133.67 (540. l 6) (et.7e) 5l .53 (33.76) (s03.99)

Tax income(expense) during the period

recosrised in OCI
(t7.3e) (17.3e)

Other adjustments (28.70) (28.70)

Exchange translation 2.47 ( 14.01) 3.68 (0.08) (7.e4)

As at March 31,2024 (343.18) 1,874,57 1,001.37 (43.s6) 276.95 1s2.15 2,918.30

Particulars Nlarch 31,2024 March 31,2023

Opening balance 2,397.41 2,395.03

Taxes paid 1,309.92 t,117 .40

Refund received (t ,033.77) ( l ,087.97)

Cwrent tax payable for the year (21.64) (27.0s)

Income tax assets 2,651,92 2,397.41

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Opening balance (101.r0) 4.33

Cwrent tax payable for the year 293.7s 3 15.08

Taxes paid (r e5.80) (406.20)

Acquisition ( 10.40)

Exchange translation 6.40 (3 el)

Total tax liabilities(assets) 3.2s (r0r.10)

Ic/.
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SIS Limited lFormerly known es 'SECURITY Al\lD INTELLIGENCE SERVICf,S (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AIl./igures in INR million unless stoted otherwise)

9. Other Assets

with revenue authorities.

10. Inventories

ll. Trade receivables

Break-up of security details:

The amount of loss allowance (lifetime expected credit loss) has been recognised under the simplified approach for trade receivable and hence

break-up oftrade receivable into'significant increase in credit risk' and'credit impaired' has not been disclosed separately.

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade receivables from the due date is given below:
Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31,2023

March3l,2O24 March 31,2023Particulars

0ther non-current assets

Capital advances 43.1s 16.93

43.15 16.93Total other non-current assets

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses 784.72 6s3.58

5.54Cost to obtain/fulfil contract with customers

167.32Security deposits 253.87

Other advances 
*

446.22 so2.2t

Total other current assets 1,484.81 t,328.65

1,527.96 1,345.58Tbtrl other assets

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Stock-in-trade 16.36 23.93

Uniforms 202.09 172.83

Consumables 90.58 117.52

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 309.03 314.28

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Trade receivables 19,989.83 t7 .743.97

Less: Alloraance for expected credit loss 1.131 .37 966.91

Total trade receivables 1E,E58.46 16,777.06

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 18,858.46 t6,777.06

Total 18,858.46 16,771.06

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total

Not due Less than
6 months

6 months
I veer

t-2
veets

2-3
vetrs

More than
3 vears

(i) Undisputed trade receivables 10,131.25 6,747.39 870.42 763.96 486.69 775.02 19,774.73

(ii) Disputed trade receivables 32.12 3.64 14.73 20.96 t43.6s 215.10

Particulars Outsfanding for following periods from due date Total

Not due I-e ss than
6 months

6 months
I vear

I 2

Years
2-3

years
More than

3 venrs
(i) Undisputed trade receivables 9,160.54 5,996.47 790.04 629.73 486.77 s4s.34 17,608.89

(ii) Disputed trade receivables 0.89 6.48 8.03 10.62 109.06 135.08

NEW
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(Allf gures in INR million unless stated othemise)

The movement in allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers ofthe entities ofthe Group either severally orjointly with any other person and from
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 40.

Refer Note 4l for the Group's policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Group's crbdit risk management processes.
For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating lo related party receivables, refer note 40.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of30 to 90 days.

12. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash

amount as money guarantees by banks on behalfofthe Group.
Bank balances lying in various cunent accounts bear no interest.
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end ofreporting period and prior periods.

Otlret bank balances

* Pledged as security/margin money against guarantees issued by banks on behalfofthe Group

13. Equity Share capital
Aalhofised share

Issaed, subscribed and paitl up equit! capital

a /,!J

lhry

Particulars March3l,2024 March 31,2023

Opening balance 966.91 714.63

Additions 244.82 269.31

Write off (net of recovery) (7e.70) ( l6.60)

Exchange differences (0.66) (0.43)

Closing balance I,131.37 966.91

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 4,698.42 5,223.99

- Bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less* I,815.66 1,428.14

Cash on hand 0.7 4 4.05

Total 6,514.82 6,656.18

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Unclaimed dividend accounts 0.94 1.04

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months and having remaining maturity of
less than tuelve months from reDort ins date

433.29 490.60

Restricted balances l5l .01 85.87

Margin money * 30s.17 27 5.99

Total 890.41 8s3.s0

Particu lars (Nos. in million) (INR million)

As at April 1,2022 (F4uily shares of INR 5 each) 270.0O 1,350.00

Increase / (decrease) during the year

As at March 31,2023 (Fquity shares of INR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00

Increase / (decrease) during the year

As at March 31,2024 (F4uity shares ofINR 5 each) 270.00 1,350.00

Particulars (Nos. in million) (INR million)

As at April 1, 2022 (F4tlity shares of IllR 5 each) 147.03 735.16

Issued on exercise of stock options 0.l5 0.76

Buyback of equity shares (r.45) (7.27)

As at March 31,2023 (f4uity shares ofINR 5 each) 14s.73 728.6s

Issued on exercise of stock options 0.01 0.03

Buyback of equity shares (1.64) (8. l 8)

As at March 31,2024 (Equity shares of INR 5 each) 144.10 720.50

(/)
lel:0 1 1
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITYAND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

During the year ended March 31, 2024, pursuant to the approval ofthe Board ofDirectors ofthe Parent at its meeting held on November 30, 2023,
the Parent offered 1,636,363 equity shares offace value ofINR 5 each for buyback to all eligible shareholders, through the tender offer process,
for an aggregate amount not exceeding INR 900 million, equivalent to l. 12% ofthe total paid up equity share capital ofthe Parent as on November
24,2023, at INR 550 per equity share, in accordance with the provisions ofthe Security and Exchange Board oflndia (Buy-back ofSecurities)
Regulations,20l8, as amended and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended. The said shares bought buyback through the tender offer process were
extinguished on January 05,2024. The Parent funded the buyback from its free reserves as required under the said regulations. Consequently,
1,636,363 equity shares offace value ofINR 5 each were extinguished by appropriating a sum ofINR 891.82 million from the securities premium
and an amount of INR 8. I 8 million, equivalent to the nominal value ofthe equity shares bought back through the buyback, have been transferred
to the capital redemption reserve account.

During the year ended March 31,2023, pursuant to the approval ofthe Board ofDirectors ofthe Parent, at its meeting held on June 29,2022, and
the shareholders, by way of a special resolution through postal ballot, on August 12,2022, 1,454,545 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each of
the Parent were offered for buyback by the Parent to all eligible shareholders ofthe Parent, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate
amount not exceeding 800 million, being 0.99% ofthe total paid up equity share capital ofthe Parent as on March31,2022, at INR 550 per equity
share, as per the provisions ofthe Security and Exchange Board oflndia (Buy-back ofSecurities) Regulations 201 8, as amended and the Companies
Act, as amended. The sdid buyback through the tender offer process was completed on November 1l, 2022. The Parent has funded the buyback
from its free reserves as required under the said regulations. As a result of the buyback, |,454,545 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each of the
Parent were extinguished by appropriating a sum of INR 792.73 million from the securities premium and an amount of II.IR 7.27 million, being a
sum equal to the nominal value ofthe Equity Shares bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption resewe
account.

During the year ended March 3 I, 2022, pursuant to the approval ofthe Board of Directors of the Parent, at its meeting held on February 15,2021,
and the shareholders, by way ofa special resolution through postal ballot, on March 20, 2021, 1,818,1 8l equity shares offace value ofINR 5 each
ofthe Parent were offered for buyback by the Parent to all eligible shareholders ofthe Parent, through the tender offer process, for an aggregate
amount not exceeding 1,000 million, being 1.24o/o of the total paid up equity share capital ofthe Parent as on March 3 I, 2020, at INR 550 per equity
share, per the provisions ofthe Security and Exchange Board oflndia (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018, as amended and the Companies
Act, as amended. The said buyback through the tender offer process was completed on June 21,2021. The Parent has funded the buyback from its
free reserves as required under the said regulations. As a result ofthe buyback, 1,818,181 equity shares offace value of INR 5 each ofthe Parent
were extinguished by appropriating a sum of INR 990.91 million from the securities premium and an amount of INR 9.09 million, being a sum
equal to the nominal value ofthe Equity Shares bought back through the buyback have been transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

Notes (pre share sub-division effect ie. foce value of INR I0 per share):
a. 2,210,500 and,62,457 ,240 equity shares were allotted as fully paid Bonus Shares by capitalization of general reserve during the year ended

March 31,2006 and March 31,2017 respectively.
b. Mr. Uday Singh was the holder of 79,000 unpaid shares in SIS International Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary. In terms of a letter

dated December l, 2009, Mr. Singh had the option to exchange these shares for shares ofthe Company in a manner reflecting the fair value
of lhese shares, reduced by the amounts unpaid on them. Subsequently, in lieu of these shares and suitably adjusted for amounts unpaid
thereon, Mr. Singh was allotted 40,565 Equity Shares during the year ended March3l,2017, at a ratio as determined in accordance with a

valuation report prepared by a SEBI registered merchant banker.
c. During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Parent completed an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of its shares consisting of a fresh offer of

4,444,785 equity shares ofINR l0 each at a premium ofINR 805 per share and an offer for sale of 5,120f19 equity shares of INR l0 each
by the selling shareholders. The proceeds ofthe fresh offer component from the IPO amounted to INR 3,410.47 (million) (net ofissue
expenses). The equity shares ofthe Parent were listed on NSE and BSE effective August 10,2017.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Parent has only one class ofequity shares having par value ofINR 5 per share. Each holder ofequity shares is entitled to one vote per share
and to participate in dividends in proportion to the number ofand amounts paid on the shares held. The Parent declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees.

In the event ofliquidation ofthe Parent, the holders ofequity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets ofthe Parent, after distribution
ofall preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number ofequity shares held by the shareholders.

Details shareholders more tlran 594 shflrcs in the Parcnt

Aggregate number ofequity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of
five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

As at March 3L,2024 As at March 31,2023
Name ofthe shareholder

No. in million 94 holdingin the
class

No, in million % holding in the
class

Ravin&a Kishore Sinha 56.62 39.29% 57.16 39.23Yr

Rita Kishore Sinha 23.O9 t6.ozv, 23.31 l6.OOV.

Rituraj Kishore Sinha 15.5 I l0.76Yo t5.66 10.74%

Particulars March 31,
2024

March 31,
2023

March 31,
2022

March 31,
2021

March 31,
2020

No. No. No, No. No.

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of
general reserve

10,480 10,480

Buyback of equity shares 1,636,363 1,454,545 1 ,81 8,1 81

DELHI t0
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMTTED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated othenuise)

Details of promoter shareholding in the parent
Year ended March 31,2024

Year ended March 31,2023

Shares reserved for issue under options : Refer note 28 for details regarding employee stock options issued by the Group.

14. Other

Secufities Premium

General Resene

S. No. Name of the Promoter Equity shares as

on April 1,2023
(in Nos.)

% holding
in the class

Equity shares as
on March 31,2024

(in Nos.)

% holding
in the class

YoChange
during the

vetr

I Ravindra Kishore Sinha 57 ,163,67 | 3923% 56,61 8,087 39.29Yo 0.06%

) Rituraj Kishore Sinha 15,658,482 t0.74yo I s,509,033 to.760h o.o2v"

Total 72,822,153 72,127,12O

S. No. Neme of the Promoter Equity shares as

on April 1,2022
(in Nos.)

% holding
in lhe class

Equity shares as
on March 31,2023

(in Nos.)

% holding
in lhe class

Vo Change
during the

vetr

I Ravindra Kishore Sinha 57,648,582 39.21o/" 57 ,163,67 I 39.23% 0.02Yo

) Ritwaj Kishore Sinha t5,79t,311 lO.74Yo 15,658,482 lO .7 4o/o 0.O0Vo

Totel 73,439,893 72,822,153

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Reserves and surplus

1,946.94Securities premium 1,036.41

creneral reserve 57 4.96 s63.47

20,765.25 19,022.22Retained earnings

22,376.62 2t,532.63Total reserves and surplus (A)

Other reserves

Stock options outstanding account 39t.45 334.87

18t.24 181.24Capital reserve

24.54 t6.36Capital redemption reserve

s32.47Total other reserves (B) s97.23

Foreign currency translation reserve (C) 441 .02 539. I 8

Share application money pendingallotment (D)

23,414.87 22,604.28Total other equity (A+B+C+D)

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 1,946.94 2,736,01

Exercise of stock options 2.61 23.55

Bryback of equity shares (e00.00) (800.00)

Transaction cost related to buyback of equity shares (net of taxes) (13. l4) (t2.62)

Balance at the end of year 1,036.41 1,946.94

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

563.47 560.94Balance at the beginning ofyear

|t.49 2.s3Transferred from stock options outstanding on account of stock options forfeited/lapsed

Balance at the end ofyj.3't- s74.96 563.47

NEW
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(Attf Crr^ t" INR ^tllit m

Retained

Stock Account

tesetve

fesefve

trunslation Reserve

Share application money pending allolntent

Nature and purpose of Reserves
Secufities Prcmium
Security premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares or other securities such as debentures or bonds. The reserve is utilised in
accordance with the Companies Act,2013.

Genernl Reserve
The general reserve is the result of a Group's transfening a certain amount of profit from the account of retained earnings to the general reserve
account. The purpose ofsetting up a general reserve account is to meet potential future unknown liabilities. In other words, the general reserve is a
free reserve which can be utilised for any purpose after fulfilling certain conditions.

Retained edruings
Retained eamings represents the amount ofaccumulated earnings ofthe Group and re-measurement differences on defined benefit plans.

t.j

)k

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 19,022.22 15,623.96

Net Profit / (loss) for the year 1,900.40 3,46s.02

Other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings (net of taxes) 50.39 95.27

Appropriations-

- Stare issue expenses incurred by subsidiary entities (0. l e)

- Tax on buyback ofequity shares (207.76) (l 84.67)

- Transactions with non-controlling interests 22.83

Balance at the end ofyear 20,765.25 19,o22.22

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 334.87 22s.41

Stock option compensation expense 70.68 tls.54

Transferred to securities premiunn on exercise ofstock options (2.6 l ) (23.ss)

Transferred to general reserve on stock options forfeited/lapsed (tt.4e) (2.s3\

Balance at the end of year t9t.45 334.E7

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 181.24 181.24

Increase/ (decrease) during the year

Balance at the end ofyear tat.24 tat.24

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balrnce at the beginning of year 16.36 9.09

Created on buyback of equity shares 8.1 8 7.27

Balance at the end ofyear 24.54 16.36

Particulars March3l,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 539.18 640.69

Translation reserve (e8. r 6) (101.s 1)

Balance at the end ofyear 441.02 539.18

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Balance at the beginning ofyear 0.02

Share application money received during the year 0.02 0.70

Issued on exercise of stock options (0.02) (0 72)

Balance at the end ofyear

ELHI
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SIS Limited g'ormerly known as'SECURITY AliD INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Stock Options outstdnding Account

The stock options outstanding account is used to recognize the grant date fair value ofoptions issued to employees under the Parent's employee

stock option plan. The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value ofequity-settled share-based payments provided to employees,

including key management personnel, as part oftheir remuneration. Refer note 28 for further details.

Capital rcdemption resene
As per the Companies Act, 2013, Capital redemption reserve is created when a company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities
premium. A sum equal to the nominal value ofthe shares so purchased is transfened to capital redemption reserve. This reserve can be utilised un

accordance with the provisions ofsection 69 ofthe Companies Act,20l3. Refer note 13 for further details.

Capild resene
It pertains to capital reserve created pursuant to the scheme of arrangement under the Act accounted under demerger and excess of purchase

consideration over fair value ofnet assets.

Foreign carrency lranslotion Reserve
Translation differences included in the foreign cunency translation reserve arise as a result oftranslating the financial statement items from the
functional currency into the presentational cunency using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, which differs from the rate in effect at the
last measurement date ofthe respective item.

Share application mone! pending flllotntent
Share application money pending allotment represents the exercise price received from employees ofthe Group against stock options on which
allotment is not yet made.

(Ihis space has been lef blank intentionally) 110020
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SIS Limited fi'ormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

15. Borrowings

Particulars Note March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-current borrowings

Secured

Term loans

From banks

- HDFC Bank Limited a 251.90 38.08

- National Australia Bank b 4,607.76 s,s82.33

- Yes Bank Limited c 77.48 108.58

- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited d 67.75

- Standard Chartered Bank e 108.95 254.24

- DBSBank f l7 5.33

- Axis Bank Limited t27.06

- Vehicle Loan from various banks h s78.71 534.56

From other parties

- Axis Finance Limited 942.21 940.12

- Bajaj Finance Limited j 944.14 940.22

- Vehicle Loan from others k 235.08 102.89

Total non-current borrowings 8,048.62 8,568.77

Current maturity of long term borrowings (s,7 48.12) (s36.e3)

Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 2,300.50 8,03r.84

Current borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

From banks

- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited I 19.50

- RBL Bank Ltd m 96 77 67.66

- Axis Bank Limited I 740.00 588.94

- HDFC Bank Limited I 2,370.34 2,569.56

- ICICI Bank Limited I 838.28 701 .03

- $andard Chartered Bank I 950.54 381 .1 8

- Sate Bank of India n 640.00

- Yes Bank Limited I 1,230.59 I,407 .36

- DBSBank I 451.23

- CTBC Bank Co Ltd. o 350.00

Total secured borrowings 7,027.75 6,375,23

Unsecured

I-oans repayable on dernand

From Banks

- HDFC Bank Limited 200.00

From Others

- Borrowings from others p 9.65 79.Ol

Total unsecured borrowings 9.6S 279.O1

Current maturity of long term borrowings 5,7 48.12 536.93

Current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 12,185.52 7,191.17

Aggregate secured borrowings 15,076.37 14,944.00

Aggregate unsecured borrowings 9.65 279.0r



SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All Jigures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Break up ofcurrent Malurilies of long-term borrcwings:

Notes:
Long Term Borrowings - Securetl:

Term loans:
From Banks:

a. HDFC Bank Limited:
(i) Secured by way ofexclusive charge on the movable fixed assets ofthe Parent purchased out ofthe term loan proceeds and second pari passu

charge on curent assets and all movable fixed assets (excluding assets exclusively charged to other term lenders) ofthe Parent both present

and future. The loan is repayable in l8 equal quarterly instalments commenced in the 4m quarter of FY 2023-24 Md last installment
repayment is scheduled in first quarter ofFY 2028-29.

(ii) Secured against an exclusive charge over the fixed assets and cunent assets ofthe SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited.
The term loans are repayable in 54 equal monthly instalments from the date ofrespective draw down, totaling Rs.l.70 million per month
with repayment commencing from January 2020 and are scheduled to be completely repaidby FY 2024-25.

(iii) Secured against the fixed assets ofRare Hospitality and Services Private Limited purchased out ofthe loan and a corporate guarantee from
Parent. The loan carries various repayment schedules ranging from 21 to 55 equal monthly instalments.

b. National Australia Bank:
Secured by all assets ofSIS Australia Group Pty Ltd and its subsidiaries. The loan is scheduled for repayment on its maturity (i.e., November 28,
2024).Theloancaffies interest @ 3.75olo per annum plus margin based on Leverage i3tio (l.75Yo).

c. Yes Bank Limited:
Secured by way of first pari-passu charge over the entire movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the SMC Integrated Facility
Management Solutions Limited. The term loans are repayable in 54 equal monthly instalments after a moratorium period of6 months from the
date of first disbursement, totaling Rs.2.59 million per month with repayment commencing from April 2022 and is schedule to be repaid by FY
2026-27.

d. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited:
Secured by way offirst charge on the movable fixed assets ofthe Parent purchased out ofthe term loan proceeds and second pari passu charge
on receivables/ current assets ofthe Parent both present and future. The loan was repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments commenced from
the end ofthe lst quarter ofFY 2019-20 and has been fully repaid duringFY 2023-24.

e. Standard Chartered Bank:
Secured by way ofexclusive charge over the Monitoring equipment ofParent purchased out ofthe term loan proceeds. The loan is repayable in
l2 equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end ofthe fourth quaner ofFY 2021-22 and last installment repayment is scheduled in third
quarter ofFY 2024-25.

I DBS Bank:
Secured by way ofexclusive charge on the Monitoring equipment ofParent purchased out ofthe term loan proceeds. The loan was repayable in
l8 equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end ofthe 4th quarter ofFY 2023-24 and, last installment repayment is scheduled in first
qtsarter ofFY 2028-29.

g. Axis Bank Limited:
Secured by way of first pari-passu charge over the entire movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the SMC Integrated Facility
Management Solutions Limited. The loan is repayable in l8 equal quarterly instalments after a moratorium period of6 months from the date of
first disbursement, totaling Rs.15.5 million per quarter with repayment commencing from June 2024 and is schedule to be repaid by FY 2027-
28.

h. Vehicle loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased against the loan taken from that Bank. The loans have various
repayment schedules and last instalment repayment is scheduled in FY 2029-30.

The term loans mentioned above except vehicle loans and loan from National Australia Bank ('NAB'), carry interest at quarterly/half-
yearly/yearly MCLR/MIBOR/Repo/T-Bill plus spread margin ranging from 75 bps to 315 bps (March 31,2023: 75 bps to 315 bps). The vehicle
loans carry interest from 7. lOVo lo 10.50V" per annum for India business and 6.00% to 8.00% for intemational business.

From other parlies:

i. Axis Finance Limited:
Secured by way offirst pari-passu charge on current and non-cuffent assets ofDusters Total Solution Services Private Limited & Uniq Security
Solutions Private Limited and l3 % pledge ofshares ofDusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited. The loan is repayable on 5 semi-annual
equal instalments commenced from the end offourth quarter ofF.Y 2024-25 after the moratorium of 1.5 years and last payment ofrepayment is
scheduled on fourth quarter ofFY 2026-27.

j. Bajaj Finance Limited:
Secured by way offirst pan-passu charge on cunent and movable fixed assets ofDusters Total Solutions Sewices Private Limited & UNIQ
Security Solutions Private Limited and, 13 o/o pledge of shares of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited. The loan is repayable on 8
equal quarterly instalments commenced from the end offirst quarter ofF.Y 2024-25 afier the moratorium of I year and last payment ofrepayment
is scheduled on fourth quarter ofFY 2025-26.

Particulers March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Secu red

Term loans

From banks 4,950.36 446.21

From other parties 797.76 90.72

Total current maturities of long term borrowings s,748.12 536.93
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SIS Limit€d (F'ormerly known as'SECURITYAND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All Jigures in INR million unless stoted otherwise)

k. Vehicle Loan from others are secured by hypothecation of the respective vehicle(s) purchased against the loan taken from that respective

financer(s). The loans carry interest from 7.50Yo to 10.50% per annum for India business and 6.000/o to 8.00% for international business. The
loans have various repayment schedules and the last instalment repayment is scheduledinFY 2027-28.

Shoil Tem Botowings - Secared Loans repayable on denand:
I (D Secured by first pari passu charges over the current assets and second pari passu charge over movable fixed assets ofthe Parent.

(ii) Secured by first charge over all current assets and fixed assets ofSMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited.
(iii) Secured by first pari passu charges over the current assets and second pari passu charge over movable fixed assets ofthe SLV Security

Services Private Limited and corporate guarantee from the Parent.
(iv) Secured by first pari passu charge on curent assets ofDusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited.
(v) Secured against stocks and book debts (both present and future) ofRare Hospitality and Services Private Limited and Corporate Guarantee

from Parent.
(vi) Secured by an exclusive charge on current assets and movable fixed assets ofTech SIS Limited and corporate guarantee from the Parent.
(vii) Secured by an exclusive charge on entire cunent assets and movable fixed assets of Terminix SIS India Private Limited both present and

future.
(viii) Secured by the pari passu charge on the entire assets ofSIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Pvt. Ltd., both present and future;

and an unconditional and irevocable corporate guarantee ofthe Parent,

m (D Cash Credit facility from RBL Bank Limited is secured by the pari passu charge on the entire assets of SIS Alarm Monitoring and
Response Services Pvt. Ltd., both present and future; and an unconditional and inevocable corporate guarantee ofthe Parent.

(ii) Secured by first pari passu charge on current assets ofDusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited.
(iii) Secured by first pari passu charge on current assets ofADIS enterprises Private Limited both present and future.

n. Secured by first pari passu charges over the current assets and movable fixed assets (both present and future) and second pari passu charge is
with other working capital lenders ofthe Parent.

o. Secured by pari passu charge over the current assets ofthe Parent both present and future.

The short-term borrowings charges are excluding assets specifically charged to term lenders, ifany.
The loans repayable on demand mentioned above except loan from Commonwealth bank ofAustralia, carry interest at quarterly/halfyeaily/yearly
MCLR./MIBOR/Repo/ T-Bill plus spread margin ranging from 15 bps to 209 bps (l\4arch 3l,2023 25 bps to 209 bps) for cash credit facility and
ranging from 6.00Vo p.a. to ll.0OTo p.a. for WCDL facilities.

p. The loan represents an invoice discounting facility with a non-banking lender. This caries Interest at BBSY plus 4% spread plus L2% margin.

There has been no default in the payment ofinterest or repayment ofprincipal in respect ofthe above loans/borrowings.

16. Lease Liabilities

Movement of lease liabilities the

Refer note 4# for disclosure of related Right ofUse Assets.
The Group does not expect potential exposure to variable lease payments, extension / termination options, guaranteed residual value and lease
commitments.

17. Trade payables

There are no disputed dues during the year ended March3l,2024 and March 3 l, 2023.
The terms and conditions ofthe above financial liabilities are as follows:
a. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30-90 days which vary by vendor and type of

service.
b. For outstanding balances, terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 40

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-current lease liabilities I,l0l .12 92t.26

Current lease liabilities 393.21 330.66

Total lease liabilities 1,494.33 1,251.92

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

Finance cost accrued during the year I14.05 I14.12

(4e1.64) (409.s7)Payment of lease liability

Rent expenses related to short-term leases and lowvalue assets 616.6s 553.24

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-current

Current

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 97.02 53.23

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 749.87 585.85

Total current trade payables 846.89 639.08

Total trade payables 846.89 639.08

29
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SIS Limited p'ormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES flNDIA) LIMITED')

(Allfigures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade payables where due date is given below:
Yea r ended lvlarch 31, 2024

Year ended March 31,2023

18. Other financial liabilities

*Includes unbilled dues, having ageing of less than one year.

(fhis space has been intentionally left blank)

*

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total

Not due <l year 1-2 years 2-3 yerrs More than 3

vetrs

(DMSME 87.92 9. l0 97.02

(ii)Others 126.94 577.48 2s.12 10.64 9.69 749.87

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total

Not due <1 year l-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

vetrs
(i)MSME 32.98 20.25 s3.23

(ii)Others 225.15 326.64 21.98 5.40 6.68 585.85

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Non-current

Contingent consideration (refer note 34) 52.69

Other non-current financial liabilities 4.4&

Total other non-current financial liabilities 4.48 52.69

Current

Capital creditors 2s.34 100.60

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 72.23 236.14

Unclaimed/unpaid div idends 0.94 1.04

Employee benefits payable 4,908.44 4,612.04

Contingent consideration (refer note 34) 54.25 2.47

Other payables and accruals * 4,71s.68 3,569.19

Total other current financial liabilities 9,776.88 8,521.48

Total other financial liabilities 9,781.36 8,574.17



SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All fgures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

19. Financial instrum€nts

Fair value hierarchy
The assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the basis for that measurement is as below:

Va luation met hotlo I og ies

Investments in equity / preference instruments: The Group's investments consist primarily ofinvestment in equity / preference shares ofunquoted
companies. Management has considered cost to be approximating to the fair value of certain investments and valued other investments using fair
valuation techniques as mentioned below.

All ofthe resulting fair value estimates are included in Level 3 as the fair values have been determined based on present values and discount rates

used are adjusted for counter party or own credit risk.

(This space has been intentionally Iefi blank)

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Particulars

FyTPL IVIOCI Amortised
cost

rvTPL FVTOCI
Amortised

cost

Financial assets:

Investments

-Equity instrunents 0.23 0.23

-Preference shares 24t.04 241 .04

-Bonds and debentures 34.99 12s.00 225.00

3.22-Mutual funds 5.55

Trade receivables 18,858.46 16,777.06

Cash and cash equivalents 6,514.82 6,6s6.1 8

Other bank balances 890.41 853.50

Loans 17 00 l7 00

Other financial assets 24.66 8,1 00. 1 9 24.66 7,065.72

Total financial assets 306.47 34,s0s.88 269.|s 31,594.46

Flnancial liabilities:

Trade payables 846.89 639.08

Borrowings 15,086.02 15,223.01

Lease liability 1,494.33 1,2st.92

55.16 8,519.010ther financial liabilities 54.25 9.727.11

Total fi nancial liabilities 54.25 27,154.35 55.16 2s,633.02

Particulars
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Level I
innills

l*vel 2
in nlls

Level 3
i nnrrts

Irvel I
inn[ls

I*veI 2

inmr ts
Level 3

in nu ls

Flnancial assets:

Investments carried at FVTPL 5.55 276.26 ).zz 241.27

Other financial assets 24.66 24.66

Total financial assets 5.55 300.92 3.22 26s.93

Other financial liabilities 54.25 55. t6

Total fi nancial liabilities 54.25 55.16



SIS Limited 1X'ormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICF,S (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AIl ligures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

The table the in l-evel 3 items for the ended March 31, 2O24 and March 31, 2023:

([his space has been intenrionally lqft blank)

Particulars
Unquoted

Investments
Indemnificatio

n asset

Liability for
forward

contract for
purchase of non.

controlling
interests

Contingent
consideration

As at April 1,2022 177.82 24.66

Additions 63.4s 56.60

Unwinding of present value discount 0.40

(1.84)Translation adjustments

As at March 31,2023 241.27 24.66 55.16

Additions 34.99

2.20Unwinding of present value discount

Discharge of liability (4.51)

T ranslation adjustments 1.40

As at March 31,2024 276.26 24.66 54.25

Unrealised fair value (gains) / losses recognized in statement of profit and loss related to assets and liabilities held as
nn renorfinq defe:

March 31,2024

March 31,2023

110020
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES flNDIA) LIMITED')

(Allf gures in INR million unless slated otheruise)

Fair Values of assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs are as follows:

Particulars
Fair value
hierarchy

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets:

Investments Level2 125.00 126.38 225.00 232.s9

Trade receivables 18,8s8.46 18,858.46 16,777.06 16,777 06

Cash and cash equivalents 6,sl4.82 6,s14.82 6,6s6.18 6,656. l8

Other bank balances 890.4 t 890.41 853.50 85 3. s0

Loans 17.00 17.00 17.00 17.00

Other financial assets 8, I 00.1 9 8,1 00. 1 9 7,065.72 7,065.72

Total financial assets 34,505.88 34,507.26 31,s94.46 31,602.05

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 846.89 846 89 639 08 639.08

Borrowings - floating rate 14,272.23 14,272.23 1 4,585.56 I 4,585.56

Borrowings - fixed rate Level 2 8t3.79 801 .23 637.45 628.23

Lease liability I,494.33 1,494.33 1,251.92 l,2st .92

Other financial liabilities 9,727.11 9,727.11 8,519.01 8,s 19.01

Total fi nancial liabilities 27,154.35 27,141.79 2s,633.02 25,623.80

The Group assessed that fair value ofcash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, bank overdrafts, lease

liability and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities ofthese instruments.

The fair value of investments and fixed rate borrowings are calculated based on fixed cash flows discounted using weighted average cost ofdebt
as on balance sheet date and accordingly classified under level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of significant observable
inputs.

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair valae

The following table summarises the quantitative infbrmation about the significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements.

Particulars
Fair value as at Significant

unobservable
inputs

Sensitivity
March 31,2O24 March 31,2023

Unquoted Investments 276.26 241 .27 Fair Value / Cost

Management has considered fair value /
cost to be approximating to fair value of

such investments.

Indemnification asset reco gnised on

business combination
24.66 24.66

Probability of
outcome of
litigation

Change in estimates by 10% results in

increase/decrease in fair value by:

March 31,2024: INR2.47 million
March 31.2023: INR2.47 million

Contingent consideration 54.25 55.1 6

Probability of
achieving

financial
proiections

Change in estimates by 5olo results in

increase/decrease in fair value by:

March 31, 2024: INR2.71 million
March 31, 2023: INR2.76 million

Valuation ptocesses
The finance department ofthe Group includes team that performs the valuations offinancial assets and liabilities required for financial repo(ing
purposes, including level 3 fair values. The team reports directly to the chieffinancial officer (CFO). Discussions ofvaluation processes and results
are held between the CFO and the valuation team atleast once every 3 months, in line with the Group's quarterly reporting period. External valuer's
assistance is also taken for valuation purposes whenever required.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:
. Discounts rate are determined using a capital asset pncing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects curent market assessments ofthe time

value ofmoney and the risk specific to the asset.
o Risk adjustments specific to the counter pa(ies (including assumptions about credit default rates) are derived from credit risk grading

determined by the Group's intemal credit risk management group.
o Volatility used for option pricing model is based on historical volatility ofcomparable companies.
. Contingent consideration - estimated based on expected cash outflows arising from the forecasted sales and the entities; knowledge ofthe

business and how the curent economic environment is likely to impact it.
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SIS Limit€d (Formerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated othemise)

20. Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Non-current Current Non-current Cu rrent

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 28)

Gatuity 1,482.73 432.61 I,297 .46 361.80

Compensated ahences 455.13 3,558.60 432.53 3,504.44

Other provisions

IBNR 61.t2 61 87

Others 33.47 38.7 0 19.65 30.10

Total 1,971.33 4,091.03 t,749.64 3,9s8.21

IBNR
The IBNR, which is the abbreviated form of incurred but not reported (IBNR), are the reserves for claims that become due with the occurrence of
the events covered under the insurance policy but have not been reported yet. The sum ofIBNR losses plus reported losses yields an estimate of
the total eventual liabilities the insurer will cover, known as ultimate losses.

21. Other liabilities

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Other non-current liabilities

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable I ,955.92 I ,953.09

Unearned income (refer note 23) 1.90 3.0 8

Others 9.68 8.69

Ibtal other current liabilities 1,967.50 t,964.86

Total other liabilities 1,967.s0 1,964.86

22. Government grants

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

As at the beginning ofthe year

Received during the year L32 3.13

Released to the statement of profit and loss (1.32) (3 13)

As at the end ofthe year

Current

Non-current

During the year ended March 3 l, 2023, one ofthe subsidiaries avail the benefit under National Apprenticeship Promotion Scheme (NAPS) launched
on August 19, 2016 wherein the Government oflndia provides the financial support to establishments undertaking the apprenticeship training in
the following ways:

l. Reimbursement of 25% of prescribed stipend subject to a maximum of Rs. 1500/- per month per apprentice by the Government of India to all
employers who engage apprentices.

2. Reimbursement ofcost ofbasic training (up to a limit ofRs. 7500/- for a maximum of500 hours: Rs. lSlhour) by the Government oflndia to
Basic Training Providers (BTPs) in respect ofapprentices who come directly ior apprenticeship training without any formal training

Accordingly, such Govemment Grant is taken to profit or loss when the conditions are met.

(l'his space has been intentionally left blank)
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR nillion unless stated othenaise)

23. Revenue from

*Includes revenue from the sale ofuniforms lo employees.

Di sagg regnte reven u e i nfo rmalion
The following table presents the disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended March3l,2024

The following table the revenue from contracts with customers for the ended March 31.2023.

(This space has been intentionolly left blank)
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Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Sale ofproducts (traded goods)

228.78Revenue from sale of electronic security devices s39.66

Total (A) s39.66 228.78

Rendering ofservices

Security services

From guarding and other security services I 00,1 03.70 92,996.2s

Facility management services

From Housekeeping Cleaning Facility operation & managernent services 20,507.36 18,569.7s

From pest control services f24.47 322.28

Other services

From training fees t24.03 122.29

Total rendering ofservices (B) 121,059.s6 I 12,010.57

Other operating revenues* 1,015.03 I,2t8.4s

Total (C) 1,015.03 1,2r8.4s

I 13,457.80Revenue from operations (A+B+C) 122,614.2;,5

Particulars Secu rity
Services - India

Security
Services -

fn te rn ali on al

Facility
Management

Inter-segment
eliminations

Total

Revenue by time of recognition

At a point in time (sale of equipments) 523.14 16.52 539.66

Over the period of time 5l,061 .60 s0"673.84 20,921.02 (581.87) 122,074.59

Total 51,584.74 s0,690.36 20,92t.02 (s81.87) 122,614.25

Revenue by geographical markets

India 51,584.7 4 20,921.02 (s8 1 87) 71,923.89

Outside India 50,690.36 50,690.36

Total 51,584.14 50,690.36 20,921.O2 (s8r.87) 122,614.25

Particulars Security
Services - India

Secu rity
Services -

Infernational

Facility
Management

In te r-se gm en t
eliminations

Total

Revenue by time of recognition

At a point in time (sale of equipments) 201 .74 27.04 224.74

Over the period of time 46,059.29 48,732.13 18,998.28 (s60.68) 113,229.O2

Total 46,261.03 48,759.17 18,998.28 (s60.68) I 13,457.E0

Revenue by geographical markets

India 46,261.03 18,998.28 (560.68) 64,698.63

Outside India 48,7 59.17 48,1s9.17

Total 46,261.03 48,759.17 18,998.28 (s60.68) l 13,4s7.80
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES flNDIA) LIMITED')

(All Jigures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Contract balances:
The following table provides information about unbilled revenue and uneamed income from contract with customers:

Cost to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer

24. Other income

*lncludes interest income on income tax refund

25. Other / (loss)

* Includes gain(loss) on derecognition ofRight of Use assets.

26. Cost of materials consumed

27. tn

([his space has been inrenrionally leli blank)

\

I'jeu( [,]

,- L.

Particulars
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Unbilled
reven Ie

Unearned
incnme

Unbilled
reven lte

Unearned
incnme

Opening balance 5,990.05 3.08 4,867.30 tt.7l
Revenue recognised that was included in unearned income

at the beginning of the year (24.76) (46.s7)

Increase due to cash received excluding amounts recognised

as revenue during the year 23.s8 37.94

Transfers from unbilled revenue, recognised at the

beginning of the year, to receivables (5,990.05) (4,867.30)
Increase due to revenue recognised during the year,

excluding amounts billed during the year 7,060.57 5,990.05

Closing balance 7,060.57 1.90 5,990.05 3.08

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance 5.54 17.73

Costs incwred and deferred 3.97 29.45

Less: Cost amortised (e.s l ) (4t.64)

Closing balance 5.54

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Interest income * 399.50 264.68

Total 399.50 264.68

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Net gain / (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment* 36.37 38.64

Foreign exchange gain(loss) (4.61) 23.s4

Other items (4.5e) 0.56

Total 27.17 62.74

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Purchases of chemicals, consumables, and others 572.35 506.88

Uniforms and related inventories 39.78 7 6.50

Total 6t2.13 583.38

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Inventory at the beginning ofthe year 314.28 340.25

Inventory transferred to property, plant and equipment 1.26

Inventory at the end of the year 309.03 314.28

Changes in inventory - (increase)/decrease 5.25 24.71

NEW ELHI
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Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

89,7t5.63 82,076.t',?Salaries, raages and bonu

7 .984.10Contribr:tion to provident and other funds 8,656.82

Cnvernment grants (Note 22) (1.32) (3. 1 3)

70.68 135.54Employee share-based payment expense

421.t4Gratuity expense 49s.53

Leave compensation 702.26 569.85

Staff u,elfare expenses 835.89 828.'12

100,495.49 92,0t2.39Total

SIS Limited (F'ormerly known ss 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES flNDIA) LIMITED')

(AIlfigures in INR million unless stated othemise)

a)

28. Employee trenefits expense

benefits include

b) Unfunded Scheme- leave obligations
The below leave obligations cover liability for sick and earned leave in certain subsidiaries ofthe Group located in India.
The provision for leave obligations is presented as cunent, since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement ofany ofthese
obligations. However, based on past experience, the Group does not expect all employees to take the full amount ofaccrued leave within the next

l2 months. The following amount reflects leave that is not expected to be taken within the next 12 months:

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Leave obligation not expected to be settled within next 12 months 124.15 72.31

Unfunded Schenes:

Particulars March3l,2024 March 31,2023

Present value of unfunded obligations 245.60 182.32

Expenses to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss 702.26 569.85

Discount rate (per annum) 7 .15o/o 7.20%

Salary escalation rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00o/o

The liability for earned and sick leave is recognised and measured at the present value ofthe estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of
allemployeesatthereportingdate. Indeterminingthepresentvalueoftheliability,attritionratesandpayincreasesthroughpromotionandinflation
have been taken into account.

c) Defined contribution plans
The entities ofthe Group have certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of
12Vo of lhe salary (subject to a limit of INR 15,000 salary per month) as per regulations. For entities in India, the contributions are made to the

statutory provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further
contractual or constructive obligation in this regard.

Further contributions are made in respect ofEmployees' State Insurance Scheme, for specified employees, at the rate of3.25% ofthe gross pay as

per regulations. The contributions are towards medical benefits provided by the Government to the employees. The contributions are made to
employees' state insurance authorities administered by the Govemment. The obligation ofthe Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has

no further contractual or constructive obligation in this regard.

In outside India, the entities ofthe Group provide post-employment benefits through accumulation fund and central provident fund. The entities of
the Group pay a fixed contribution at the rate of 9.5% ofthe basic salary into employee nominated independent superannuation (annuity) funds in
relation to several state plans and insurance for individual employees. The central provident fund is an employment-based savings scheme with
employers and employees contributing a mandated amount to the Fund at the rate from 7.5%o lo l7o/o. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay contributions in addition to its fixed contributions.

Contributions to provident fund/ employees' state insurance/ superannuation funds are recognised as an expense as they become payable which
coincides with the period during which relevant employee services are received. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

d) Defined benefit plans
In accordance with the Payment ofGratuity Act, 1972, applicable for Indian companies, the entities ofthe Group provide for a lump sum payment
to eligible employees, at retirement or termination ofemployment based on the last drawn salary and years ofemployment with the entities ofthe
Group subject to completion of five years of service and other conditions. The gratuity plan is a partly funded plan for the Parent and certain
subsidiaries in the Group, and those entities make contributions to Group's gratuity policies managed by insurance companies. The gratuity plan is
an unfunded plan for certain subsidiaries in the Group. The Group does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level offunding to be

maintained over a period oftime based on estimations ofexpected gratuity payments.

Gratuity is applicable only to
Group have invested the plan

employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no foreign defined benefit plans. Certain entities ofthe

Plrase-1,
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Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Expense recognised during the period toraards defined contribution plans 8,656.82 7 ,984.10

assets in the
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and
amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

to be ilte

Change ln present value of defined benefit obligalion ls summtrised below:

Reconciliation offab value of plan assets:

Reconciliation oflair valae ofAssets and Obligations:

The present value ofdefined benefit obligation relates to active employees only.
The Group has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one-offcontributions. The
Group intends to continue to contribute to the defined benefit plans to achieve target level of funding to be maintained over a period oftime based

on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Particulars l[Iarch31,2024 March 31,2023

Current service cost 386.34 348.84

Interest cost 109.19 72.30

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 495.53 421.t4

Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income (8.04) (5. ls)

Loss / (gin) from changes in financial assumptions ?.s3 (126.e3)

Experience loss / (gain) (64.s6) 8.20

Total loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income (69.07) (r23.88)

Reconciliation ofopening and closing balances ofDefined Benefit Obligation March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 1,844.48 1,655.68

Current service cost 386.34 348.84

Interest cost I 13.00 76.40

Remeasurements (61 .03) (118.73)

Benefits paid (170.6e) (117.71)

Liabilities assumed / (settled) 0.12

Defined benefit obligation at the end ofyear 2,112.22 1,844.48

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets March3l,2O24 March 31,2023

Fair value ofplan assets at the beginning ofthe year 185.22 174.82

Interest income 3.81 4.10

Remeasurements 8.04 5. l5

Contribution by employer 170.50 118.86

Benefits paid (t70.6e) (t t7 .7 t)

Fair value of plan assets at the closing of the year 196.88 tas.22

Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Fair value ofplan assets 196.8 8 185.22

Present value of obligation (2,112.22) (t,844.48)

Asset / (liability) recognized in balance Sheet (1,9rs34) (1,6s9.26)



SIS Limited 1f,'ormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AIl figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Group's plans are shown below:

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Assumptions March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Discount rate

0.5olo increase (r.e2%) (t.eo%)

0.57o decrease 2.00% 1.98%

F\rture salary increases

0.502 increase 1.92v" 192%

0.5o% decrease (1.86%) (1.86%)

The ona constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur
and changes in some ofthe assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity ofthe defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value ofthe defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected credit unit method at the end ofthe
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types ofassumptions used in preparing lhe sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number ofrisks, the most significant ofwhich are market volatility, changes in inflation,
changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment and regulatory changes.

The Parent and ce(ain entities ofthe Group have selected a suitable insurers to manage the funds in such a manner as to ensure that the investment
positions are managed with an asset-liability matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which are in line with the

obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the asset-liability matching objective is to match assets to the obligations by
investing in securities to match the benefit payments as they fall due.

The insurers, on behalfofthe entities ofthe Group, actively monitor how the duration and the expected yield ofthe investments are matching the
expected cash outflows arising from employee benefit obligations. The entities ofthe Group has not changed the processes used to manage its iisks
from previous periods. Investments are well diversified, such that failure of any single investment should not have a material impact on the overall
level ofassets.

Delined beneJit litrbility and employet contfibutions
The
is as

weighted average duration ofthe post-employment benefit plan obligations and expected maturity analysis ofundiscounted gratuity benefits
follows:

U,): ruc;,r I==j
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March 31,2024 March 31,2023Principrl rctuarial assumptions

7.t5% 720%Discount rate

Future salary increase

- Non-billing / indirect employees 8.00% 8.00%

5.00-7 .00o/a 5.00-7.00%- Billing /direct employees

All,rition rdle

Billing employees

39-52o/o 39-52%- Age from 21-30 years

28-42%- 3l-40 28-42%

4l-50 28-40% 28-40o/o

28-43o/o 28-43%5l & above

Non billing employees

- Age from 2l-30years 24-27o/o 24-27o/o

l6-2lo/o t6-21%- 31-40

12-24%- 4t-50 t2-24%

- 5l & above l1 -l60/o 1t-t6%

Particula rs March 31,2024 March 31,2023

5.5) 3.38The raeighted average duation ofthe post-employment benefit plan obligations (in years)

Expected contribut ion to the fund du:ing the next year 377.31 271.52

Maturity prolile March 31,2024 March 31,2023

626.35 543.83Less than a year

477.65 417.31Bet\een l-2 years

924.54 800.62Bet\ een 2-5 years

C)ver 5 Years 752.23 684.01

Total /<;Fi::- 2,780,77 2,445,77

DELHI



SIS Limited 1f,'ormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

e) TheCodeonWages,2019andtheCodeonSocialSecurity,2020havebeennotifledthroughGazetteoflndiaafterassentofHon'blePresident
oflndia which govem, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the Group towards certain employee's benefits. Notification of rules ofthese
codes are pending. The effective date ofimplementation ofthese Codes has not yet been notified and the Group will assess the impact ofthese
codes as and when they come into effect and will provide for the appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code

becomes effective.

f) Share-basedpayments
The Parent has Employee Stock Option plan namely ESOP 2016 as on March 31,2024 andMarch3l,2023.

a) Under ESOP 20 I 6, the Parent has granted 2,432,000 options, 64,830 options, 2 1,000 options in the financial year 2016,2018 and 2019,
respectively. All such options granted, have been either exercised or lapsed in accordance with the terms ofthe respective plan as on

March3l,2O23.
b) During the year ended March 31, 2022,the Parent issued afurther 1,421,973 options to eligible employees which will vest over next

four financial years and be eligible for exercise, subject to certain conditions, after June 1, 2025, except as approved otherwise. Out of
such options;

i. 207,379 options have been forfeited/lapsed till March31,2024
ii. 18,51I options have been exercised up till March31,2024
iii. 478,433 options have been vested and not exercised/exercisable as on March3l,2024

c) During the year ended March 3l,2}z3,theParcnt issued a further 35,700 options to eligible employees which will vest over next three

financialyearsandbeeligibleforexercise,subjecttocertainconditions,afterJunel,2025,exceptasapprovedotherwise. Outofsuch
options:

i 21,800 options have been forfeited/lapsed on account ofthe respective employees no longer in employment till March 31,

2024.
ii I 1,300 options have been vested and not exercised/exercisable as onMarch3l,2024

d) During the year ended March 31,2024, the Parent issued a further 10,000 options to eligible employees which will vest over next two
financialyearsandbeeligibleforexercise,subjecttocertainconditions,afterJunel,2025,exceptasapprovedotherwise. Outofsuch
options:

i No options have been forfeited/lapsed till March 31,2024.
ii No options have been vested and not exercised/exercisable as on March3l,2O24

Options granted under the aforesaid plans carry no dividend or voting rights,

Moven ents duing the leat

Year ended March 31,2023

Year ended March3l,2O24

*The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options during the year ended March 31,2024 was INR 440.23 (March 31, 2023: INR
458.09)

i

UCIT
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Particulars

ESOP 2016

TotalESOPs granted in

2016-17 2017-t8 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Outstanding stock options as on April l,2022 131,044 13,680 1,360,116 1,504,840

Exercise price INR 5/- INR5/. INR 5/- INR 5/. INR5/.

Options granted during the year 35,700 35,700

Options exercised during the year* 129,400 13,680 9,8s6 1s2,936

Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 1,644 55,972 1,800 59,4t6

Outstanding stock options as at March 31,2023 1,294,288 33,900 1,328,188

Bercisable stock options as at March 31,2023

Particulars

ESOP 2016

TotalESOPs granted in

2016-11 2017-18 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Outstanding stock options as on April 1,2023 1,294,288 33,900 1,328,188

Exercise price INR 5/. INR 5/- INR 5/- INR 5/-

Options granted during the year 10,000 10,000

Options exercised during the year* 7,312 7,312

Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 90,893 20,000 l 10,893

Outstanding stock options as at March 31,2024 1,196,083 13,900 10,000 1,219,983

NEW ELHI
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Stock options outstanding at the end of the year have the following details:

Fair value of options gmnled

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the

market price being the latest available closing price prior to the date ofthe grant and expected price volatility ofthe underlying share, the expected
dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term ofthe option as detailed below:

Total from share-based transactrons or loss as of benefit were as follows:

29. Finance costs

*Includes commitment charges, loan processing charges, guarantee ancillary costs incuned in connection
with borrowings other than finance costs that do not meet the definition oftransaction costs.

30. Depreciation and amortization expense

Grant Thanche
Grant
date

Vesting
dete

Bpiry
date

&ercise
price
(NR)

Fair
value
(NR)

Stock
options

outstanding
March 31,

2024

Stock
options

outstanding
March 31,

2023

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V I 20-Apr-21 0l-hxt-22 01-lw-27 5.00 357.19 239,217 258,858

Plan II (ESOP 2016): C:rant V II 20-Apr-21 0 1 -Jun-23 0 I -Jun-27 5.00 357.19 239,216 258,858

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crrant V III 20-Apr-21 0 I -Jun-24 0l-Jlm-27 s.00 357.19 35 8,825 388,286

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crrant V IV 20-Apr-21 0 I -Jun-25 0l-Jwt-27 s.00 3s7.19 358,82s 388,286

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crant V I 20-Oct-22 2l-Oct-23 0l-Im-27 5.00 411.65 4,633 1t,299

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Crrant V II 20-OcI-22 0l-Iw-24 01-Jw-27 5.00 411.65 4,633 I |,299

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V III 20-Oct-22 0 I -Jun-25 0 I -Jun-27 5.00 411.65 4,634 tt,302

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Gant V I l2-Dec-23 12-Dec-24 0 I -Jun-27 5.00 450.98 5,000

Plan II (ESOP 2016): Grant V II 12-Dec-23 0 I -Jun-25 0 I -Jun-27 s.00 4s0.98 5,000

Total 1,219,983 1,32E,188

Grant date
l

vbtatitity Market price (INR) Average life ofthe
ontions (in vears)

Risk-free interest
rate

Dividend yield

20-Apr-21 46.O2Yo f60.9s s.l2 5.5504 0.00%

20-Oct-22 39.02% 415.60 3.62 7.39o/o 0.00o/o

l2-Dec-23 34.06% 455.35 2.21 7.28o/a 0.00%

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Employee stock option plan 70.68 t35.54

70.68 135.54Total employee share-based payment expensc

March 31,2O24 March 31,2023Particulars

Interest expenses 1,350.28 I,006.63

Interest on lease liability I14.05 114.12

17.26 28.16Other finance costs *

Total 1,481.59 I,148.9 I

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment including ROU (Note 4) 1,336.88 1,113.92

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 5) 326.40 232.89

Total 1,663.28 1,346.81

I
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTf,LLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AIlfigures in INR million unless stated othemise)

31. Other expenses

+ Refer note 16.

32. Earnings per share (EPS)
A reconciliation ofprofit for the year and equity shares used in the computation ofbasic and diluted eamings per equity share is set out below:

33. Distributions made and

Proposed dividends on
date.

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Training expenses l7l .l 8 223.84

Uniform and kit items 163 .7 5 190.43

Selling expenses 162.30 150.77

Administrative expenses:

Travelling and conveyance I,027 .17 I .012.88

Postage and telephone 280.90 291.18

Rent 616.65 553.24

Rates & taxes t16.73 82.56

Insurance 280.07 299.13

Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings 12.87 17.87

- Machinery 76.87 98.06

Others 206.20 150.70

Vehicle hire charges t7l .2s 160.05

Payments to auditors 38.1 8 46.42

Legal and professional fees 709.28 571 .31

Allo*ance for expected credit loss 244.82 269.31

Expense to\iards corporate social responsibility 31.99 25.23

Direct operating cost 9,684.42 10,699.98

Other adrninistration and general expenses 831.22 618.52

Total 14,825.85 15,461.48

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders ofthe Parent

Continuing operations I,900.40 3,463.89

Profit attributable to equity holders ofthe Parent for basic earnings 1,900.40 3,463.89

Profit attributable to equity holders ofthe Parent adjusted for the effect ofdilution 1,900.40 3,463.89

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Numbers) 145,344,093 t46,537,510

F,ffect of dilution

Stock options (Numbers) 1 ,20s,991 1,312,489

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution r46,ss0,084 147,849,999

Nominal value of equity shares (INR) s.00 5.00

Earnings per share

- Basic (INR) 13.08 23.64

Diluted (INR) 12.97 23.43

March 31,2024 March 31,2023Particulars

Cash dividends on Fquity shares declared and paid:

Final dividend @ INR Nil per share (March 3l , 2023: INR Nil per share)

Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend
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SIS Limited 1!'ormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (IIYDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated othenuise)

34, Commitments and contingencies
a) Capital commitment

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital
advances) and not orovided for

15.44 7.31

b) Commitment towards forward contract/ put and call option to purchase non-controlling interests

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Sntry Security 0.83

Fortitude Security 1.65

Security One 2.03

Safety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd 54.25 s0.6s

Total 54.25 55.16

liabilities

Group when it is both probable that a loss has been incuneda
is required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Group these provisions
accordingly to reflect the impact ofnegotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated information. The Group believes that the
amount or estimable range ofreasonably possible loss, will not, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial position, results ofthe Group, or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at March 3 l, 2024.

Disputed claims against the Group, including claims raised by the tax authorities (e.g. Service tax) and which are pending in appeal /court and for
which no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, are not provided for in the accounts. However, the present obligation, if
any, as a result ofpast events with a possibility ofoutflow ofresources, when reliably estimable, is recognised in the accounts as an expense as and
when such obligation crystallises.

35. f,vents occurring after the Balance Sheet date
There were no significant events that occurred after the Balance Sheet date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Claims against the Crroup not acknowledged as debt:

- Litigation matters with respect to direct taxes 7ll.3l s92.33

- Litigation matters with respect indirect taxes 167.50 1s2.68

Other money for which the Crroup is contingently liable 67.81 69.27

Total 946,62 814.28
pnificant irr(
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SIS Limited (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND II{TELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(Allfigures in INR million unless staled othemise)

36. Segmentinformation
The Group is currently focused on three business groups: Security Services (India), Security Services (Intemational) and Facility Management. The
Group's organizational structure and governance processes are designed to suppo( effective management ofmultiple businesses while retaining
focus on each one of them. The Operating Segments have been reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Group
Management Committee, which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM).

The Group operates primarily in 4 geographies, viz., Indi4 Australi4 Singapore and New Zealand. Outside India the Group's business consists
only ofManned Guarding and the risk and returns are similar to the business and geography in which they operate, hence segment results ofthese
geographies are presented as Intemational segment. Given the risks and returns ofeach business and geography in India and outside India in which
they operate are different, the segment results ofthe Group are presented geographically for each the Group's business across India and Intemational
to enable better appreciation ofthe risks and retums ofthe Group across its various businesses and geographies in which they operate.

The business groups comprise the following:
. Security Services (India) - Guarding, Electronic security and home alarm monitoring and response services
. Security Services (Intemational) - Guarding, Mobile patrols, Emergency medical response and rescue, Loss prevention and allied services
r Facility Management - Housekeeping, Cleaning, Facility operation & management and Pest cbntrol services

rExcluding other income and other gain(loss).

Particu la rs
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

kternal Inter-
sesment

Total External
Inte r-

sesment
Total

Revenue

Secwity services - India 5l,173.57 4lt.l7 5t ,584.7 4 45,87 6.26 384.77 46,261 .03

Security services - International 50,690.36 50,690.36 48,7 59.17 48,7 59.17

Facility Management 20,750.32 170.70 20,921.02 18,822.37 17 5.91 18,998.28

122,614.2s 581.87 123,196.12 1 13,4s7.80 560.68 I 14,018.48

Inter.co / inter-segment elimination (s8 l .87) (s60.68)

122,614.2s I 13,457.80

Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (BITDA)*

Secwity services - India 2,838.61 79.54 2,918.15 I,935 .37 183.s0 2,118.87

Security services - International 2,061.88 2,061.88 1,980.09 1,980.09

Facility Management 947.91 (82.87) 865.04 1,004.86 (187.04) 817.82

5,848.40 (3.33) 5,84s.07 4,920.32 (3.s4) 4,9t6.78

Inter.co / inter-segnent elimination (0.54) (l.sr)

5,844.53 4,915.27

Finance costs (t ,47e.39) (1,148.s 1)

Depreciation and amortisation (1,s64.27) (t,271.37)

Other income and gains 426.67 327.42

Share of profit(loss) from associates4oint

ventures
248.87 t02.13

Prolit before tax reported to CODM 3,476.41 2,924.94

Other gains/ (losses) and effect of entries

resulting from consolidation and business

combination accounting

(r0l.2l) (75.84)

Impairment of goodwill (6s6.0s)

Profit before tax 2,719.15 2,849.10

Other information

Trade receivables 18,858.46 16,777.06

C;ross debt 16,580.35 16,47 4.93

Net debt 8,893.20 8,615.77

Capital expenditure I ,53 5.8 8 I,s67 .67

NEW
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SIS Limited fi'ormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES ONDIA) LIMITED')

(All Jigures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

The total ofnon-current assets other than financial instruments and defened tax assets by location:

37. Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests
I. Acquisition ol Sdlety Direct Solutions Ptl Ltd ('SDS)

On I September 2022, SIS Australia Group Pty Limited, a subsidiary ofthe Group acquired 85% ofthe voting shares of Safety Direct Solutions Pty
Limited (SDS), a non-listed company based in Australia and New Zealand specializing in providing critical risk, medical, training and security
services to a diversified portfolio ofcustomers comprising the defence, mining and resource sectors for cash consideration ofINR 270.50 million
(AUD 4.95 million). The Group acquired SDS because ofthe continue building along with SMR the largest Paramedic business in Australia, and to
increase the SIS Group's overall margin profile. The Group has puVcall options to buy the remaining l5% ofthe shares ofSDS on or before 30 June
2024.

Details ofthe net assets acquired and purchase consideration as follows:

consideration - cash outflow

Transaction costs of INR 9.90 million have been expensed and are included in other expenses.

(fhis space has been intentionally left blank)

Particulars March 31,
2024

March 31,
2023

India 9,086.20 8,047.95

International 10,766.99 ll ,663.61

Total 19,8s3.19 19,711.56

Particulars SDS

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 181.53

Cash and cash equivalents 599

Trade and other receivables 174.s4

Defened tax assets 10.90

Other assets 96 47

Total Assets (A) 469.39

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 13 86

Cunent tax liability 542

Borrowings 76.32

Provisions 46'78

Other Liabilities 204 65

Total liabilities (B) 347.O3

Total identifiable net assets at fair value (A-B) 122.36

Goodwill arising on acquisition 50.53

Acquired contracts on acquisition 148.74

Purchase consideration transferred 321.63

Purchase Consideration SDS

Amount settled in cash 270 SO

Contingent consideration payable 51.13

Total consideration 321.63

4"23
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AIl figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

IL Asset Acquisition of Sentry Securily, Fortitude Secwig, Protection Plus Secufity and Security One

the ended March 3l the

Particulars (amounts in INR) Sentry Security Fortitude Security Protection Plus Security Security One

Acquiring entity
Southern Cross

Protection
Southem Cross

Protection
Southem Cross

Protection
Platform 4

Grouo

Effective date of acquisition December 20,2022 February 01, 2023 September 29,2022 August 15,2022

Nature ofbusiness Patrols Patrols Cash-in transit Monitoring

Fair value of consideration transferred

Amount settled in cash 2.50 6.80 10.74 20.57

Defened consideration 0.84 1.70 2.05

Total fair value of
consideration

3.34 8.50 10.74 22.62

Identifiable net assets

Property, plant and equipment 10.1 5

Employee entitlements (4.4s)

Lease liabilities (e.14)

Customer contracts 4.77 12.14 1.97 3l .38

Deferred Tax liability on above ( 1.43) (3.64) (0.se) (8.76)

Identifiable net assets 3.34 8,50 (2.06) 22,62

Goodwill on purchase 12.80

III. Acquisition of Termilix SIS India Pfivate Limiled ('Termhix')
During the year ended March 31, 2023,the Parent acquired the entire remaining shareholding of 49.99% in Terminix, a subsidiary of the Parent,
for an aggregate consideration of INR 7 .77 million which resulted in Terminix becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent.

STa.Assets and Litrbilities clnssified as held for distribution to shareholders of sabsidiary

As per the Shareholders' Agreement between SIS and the existing shareholders of SLV Security Services Private Limited ('SLV'), the Training
Center business will be transfened from the SLV to a separate legal entity (owned and controlled by Promoters), by way ofslump sale under a
business transfer agreement. The assets and liabilities mentioned in below table represent assets and liability in the training center business:

Particulars ls|.zrch3l.2O24 March 31.2023
Assets:
Advance to Sunoliers 060 060
Other 16, 16)
Total assets classified as held for distribution to shareholders ofsubsidiarv 2.22 2.22
Liabilities:
Trade navable I ts I ls
Other 167 1 6'7

Total liabilities classilied as held for distribution to shareholders ofsubsidiarv 2,82 2,82

fv,;l
space has been intentionally left blank)
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SIS Limited Gormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')
(All.figures in INR million unless stated othem,ise)

38. Group information
Info rmati on a b o ut s u b s i di a fi e s
The subsidiaries with SIS Limited, the Parent, constitute the considered in the of these Consolidated Financial Statements tre:

PhaseJ,

A-28 & 29

March 31,
2023

O.OOYT

0.00%

o.oov"

0.00Yo

0.00%

0.OOYo

0.00%

0,OOY,

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

o.oov"

0.00%

0.OOo/o

0.o0%

NA

o.oov"

O.OOYT

O.OOYy

o oof.

o.odys

oo{

Owne rship interest held
by the non-controlling

inte rest

March 31,
2024

0.00%

o.00%

0.oooA

o.ooo/"

0.00%

0.00%

O.O0Yo

0.00Yo

0.00%

o.oov"

0.jOYo

0.00%

O.00Yo

0.OOYo

o.oov"

0.OOo/o

o.00%

o.oo%

O.0OYo

0.00%

O.OOYI

0.00%

March 31,
2023

100.00%

100.00%

r00.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.OOYo

100.00%

NA

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Ownership interest held
by the Group

March 31,
2024

100.00%

I 00.00%

I 00.00%

100,00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.oooA

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Principal activities

Providing facility management services

Trading and installation of electronic secwity devices
and systems

Pest Control Management Services

Providing facility management services

Rendering business support services including
guarding parking services. Dest control services
Rendering secr.rity and related services in areas of
manned grmrding

Providing manned guarding facilities management

and business process outsourcing.

Providing facility management services.

Providing Secwity Services.

Providing Secwity Services.

Providing Security Services.

Providing facility management services.

Alarm Monitoring and Response Services

Providing facility management services

Providing Security Services, facility management,
pest control, alarm monitoring and response services

Providing Security Services, facility management,
pest control, alarm monitoring and response services

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Provision of paramedic and emergency response

serv lces

Principal place
of business and

country of
incorporation

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

Singapore

Singapore

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

SI\4C Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited (formely
knorain as Service Master Clean Limited) *

Tech SISLimited

Terminix StrS India Private Limited

Dusters Total Solrtions Services Private Limited

SIS Business $rpport Services and Solutions Private Limited

SIS Slnergistic Adjacencies Ventures Private Limited

SLV Secuity Services Private Limited

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

Uniq Secwity Solutions Private Limited

Uniq Detective and Security Services (AP) Pvt. Ltd * +

Uniq Detective and Secwity Services (Tamilnadu) Private Limited **

Uniq Facility Services Private Limited * *

SS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private Limited

ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

ONE StrS Solutions Private Limited

ONE StrS Residential Solutions Private Limited $

StrS Sectrity International Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly knou,n as SitrS

Internat ional Holdings Limited)

StrS Secwity Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Limited (formerly knovn as

SISAsia Pacific Holdings Limited)

SSAustralia Holdings Pty Ltd -.<rTih.
SISAustralia Croup Pty Ltd ,{&r-7-\%\
SISCroup International Holdings rty I-ta /$/ /( ,., \t-]
Mss $ratesic Medical and Rescue rtv I-ta\i{ Nf *" 

lg/

Name

I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1l

t2

l3

14

l5

l6

t7

l8

l9

20
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SIS Limited Gormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LII\{ITED')
(Allfigures in INR million unless stated othemise)

Ownership interest held
by the non-controlling

inte rest
lllarch 31,

2023

O.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.OOo/o

0.OOo/o

0.o0%

0.0oo/o

0.0oo/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

15.00o/o

15.0oo/o

March 31,
202A

0.00%

0.0oo/o

O.00o/o

0.0oo/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.O0o/o

o.00%

0.00%

15.0oo/o

15.00%

0wnership interest held
by the Group

March 31,
2023

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

85.00%

85.0002

ilturch 31,
2024

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

10O.00o/o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

85.00%

85.00olo

Principal activities

Holding company

Provision of services relating to all aspects of
physical secwity
Provision of services relating to all aspects of
phvsical secwity
Loss prevention, asset protection and security
sewices

Loss prevention, asset protection and security
services

Loss prevention, asset protection and secwity
services

Gnrd serviceq patrols and monitoring services and

event services

Alarm Monitoring and Response Services

Holding company

Manned Guarding Serv ices

Building a building mechanical & electrical services

Provision of emergency services personnel, industrial
safety, fire rescue and medical traininq
Provision of emergency services personnel, industrial
safety, fire rescue and medical training

Principal place
of business and

country of
incorporation

Australia

ArDtralia

Australia

Australia

Arutralia

Australia

NewZealand

NewZealand

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Australia

NewZealand

Name

SIS MSS Security Holdings Pty Ltd

MSS Secwity Pty Ltd

Australian Security Connections Pty Ltd

Southern Cross Protection Pty. Ltd

Askara Pty Ltd + * +

Charter Security Protective Services Pty Lt4 ***

Platform 4 Croup Limited

Triton Security Services Limited

SS Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd

Henderson Security Services Pte Ltd

Henderson Technologies Pte Ltd

gfety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd

Safety Direct Solutions Pty Ltd NZ

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Pty Ltd, Australia, a the Parent.
* *Wholly owned subsidiaries
*** Wholly owned subsidiaries of Southem Cross Protection Pty Lirnited.
$ Incorporated during the year ended March31,2024.

t-j )
LJ
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SIS Limited (Formerty nnown as'SECLRITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')
(AIl figures in INR million unless stated. othemise)

Ioint vmtures in which the Grcup is a joint ventuter
The ventures considered in the preparation ofthese Consolidated financial statements are:

* Wholly owned subsidiary of SIS Cash Sewices Private Limited
** Wholly owned subsidiary of SIS Prosegur Holdings Private Limited
$ lncorporated during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(f)

Qhis space has been intentionally lef blank)
*

March 31,
2023

49.00%

49.00o/o

49.00o/o

NA

49.00o/o

Ownership interest held
by the Group

March 31,
2024

49.00o/o

49.00%

49.00o/o

49.00%

49.00%

Principal activities

Cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities
and secue transportation of precious items and

bullion
Cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities
and secwe transportation of precious items and

hrllion
Cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities
and secwe transportation of precious items and

hlllion
Cash-in-transit, ATM cash replenishment activities
and secure transportation of precious items ard
hilion
Provision of services relating to all aspects of
ohvsical securitv

Principal place
of business and

country of
incorporation

India

India

India

India

Australia

SS Cash Services Private Limited

StrSProsegun Holdings Private Limited *

SIS Prosegur Cash Logistics Private Limited * *

SSProsegw Cash Services Private Limited *s

Habitat &curity Pty Ltd

Name

I

2

3

4

5

NEWa



SIS Limited Oormerly tnown as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LTMTTED,)

(All figures in INR million unless stated otheruise)

Additional information under General Instructions for Preparation ofConsolidated Financiat Statements to Schedule III to the Acl 2013:

Share in total
comprehensive income(loss)

for the year ('ICI')

Amount
(INR million)

1,873.49

58.67

(7.0e)

(72.78)

2t3.23

3.90

(0.01)

s9.09

2.54

67.51

0.64

(0.61)

3.67

(r 1.38)

1.70

(1.e1)

As a ToofTCI

l01.lYo

3.2o/o

(0.4"/")

(3.9o/o)

11.5o/o

0.2%

(0.0"/")

3.2o/o

0.1%

3.6%

0.0o/o

(0.07o)

0.2o/o

(0.6y0

0.r%

(0.1y")

0.0o/o

Share in other
comprehensive income(loss)

for the vear ('OCI') .

Amount
(INR million)

2.60

Subsidiaries - Indian

3.27

004

0.48

12.8s

(0.02)

20.62

(0.8e)

10.11

1.20

0.02

1.44

0.04

(0.07)

(0.01 )

As a Toof
consolidated

OCI

(s.4%)

(6.8%\

(0.1y")

(t.0v")

(26.9o/o)

O.OYr

0.0o/o

(43.2%)

1.9o/o

(2t.2yo)

(2.5o/o)

(0.0o/o\

(3.0%)

(0,1%)

0.lYo

o.0%

0.0%

Share in profit(loss) for the
year (iPAT)

Amount
(INR million)

Parent

1,870.89

55 40

(7.r3')

(73.26\

200.38

3.92

(0 01)

38.47

3.43

57.40

(0.56)

(0.63)

2.23

(tt.42)

1.77

( l.e0)

As a Toof
consolidated

PAT

98.4%

29%

(0.4o/o)

(3.9o/o)

10.5o/o

0.2o/o

(0 0olo)

2.0%

0.2o/o

3.0%

(0.0%)

(0.0%\

O.lVo

(0.60/o)

0.1%

(0.10lo)

0.0o/o

Net assets i.e.
total assets minus total

liabilities

Amount
(INR million)

10,289.82

1,685.68

3t.20

(6.00)

2,557.37

4.98

0. l4

187.70

t51.12

695.78

6.97

(2.7 r)

17.62

(10.51)

13.10

)14

0.10

As a VooI
consolidated

net assets

42.6%

7.0%

0.t%

(0.0%)

10.60/o

0.0%

0.0o/o

0.8o/o

0.6%

2.9o/o

0.0o/o

(0.0%)

0.lo/o

(0.0y")

0.1%

0.0%

0.0%

Name

$SLimited

SvIC Integated Facility Management Solutions Limited
(formely knowr as Service Master Clean Limited)

Tech SIS Limited

Terminix SltrS India Private Limited

Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

SIS Business $pport Services and Solutions Private Limited

SIS Synergistic Adjacencies Ventures Private Limited

SLV Security Services Private Limited

Rare Hospitality and Services Private Limited

Uniq Secwity Solutions Private Limited

Uniq Detective and Secwity Services (AP) Pvt. Ltd
Uniq Detective and Security Services (Tamilnadu) Private
Limited

Uniq Facility Services Private Limited

StrS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private Limited

Adis Enterprises Private Limited

One SIS Solutions Private Limited

ONE StrS Residential Solutions Private Limited

I

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1l

t2

l3

t4

l5

l5

l6

*
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SfS Limited F'ormerly t<nown as 'SECIIRITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LTMTTED')

(All Jigures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

(INR million)
Amount

56.49

56.43

91.86

286.3t

(s86 87)

20.84

4t7.70

83s. I 3

t96.56

(11.e0)

(14.93)

25.42

29.O1

47.31

13.07

(s.e3)

(2o.se)

(s.2s)

Share in total
comprehensive income(loss)

for the year (ilCI')

As a ToofTCI

3.0%

3.0%

5.0o/o

15.5%

(31.7%)

t.1%

22.5o/o

45.1%

0.0o/o

10.60/o

(0.6"/"\

(0.89lo)

1.4Yo

1.6%

2.6%

O.7o/o

(0.3%)

(r.1y")

(03v4

(INR million)
Amount

Share in other
comprehensive incorne(loss)

for the vear ('OCI')
As a Yoof

consolidated
ocr

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0o/o

0.0o/o

0.o%

0.0%

0.0o/o

0.0%

0.0o/o

o.0%

o.0%

0.0o/o

0.0%

0.0%

0.0o/o

0.0%

o.0%

0.0o/o

Amount
(INR million)

56.49

56.43

91.86

286.31

(s86 87)

20.84

417.70

83 s.1 3

196.s6

(11.90)

( 14.e3)

2s.42

29_01

47.31

13.07

(s.e3)

(20.se)

(s.2s)

Share in profit(loss) for the
year ('PA.f)

As a Toof
consolidated

PAT

3_0%

3.0%

4.8o/o

15.1%

(30.9yo)

1.1%

22.0o/o

43.9o/o

0.0%

10.3%

(0.6n

(0.870)

1.3o/o

0.7%

(0.3v")

(r.lw
(0 3V")

1.5%

2.s%

(INR million)
Amount

217.55

217.56

351.53

2,128.00

(1,586.21)

210.13

1,448.62

8,362.02

0.54

I ,882.1 5

(33.s0)

I 85.80

124.44

208 15

2,787.26

26t.91

46.3t

I 0l .39

4.83

Net assets i.e.
total assets minus total

liabilities
As a Toof

consolidated
net rssels

09%

0.9o/o

1.s%

8.8%

(6.6%)

0.9o/o

6.0o/o

34.60/o

0.0%

7.8%

(0.1%)

0.8o/o

0.5o/o

0.9%

ll.5o/o

t.1%

0.2o/o

0.4o/o

0.0o/o

NEW

SIS Security International Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly knov,n
as StrS International Holdings Limited)
SIS Security Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Limited (formerly
kno*n as SISAsia Pacific Holdins Limited)

SISAustralia Holdings Pty Ltd

SIS Australia Crroup Pty Ltd

SS Crroup International Holdings Pty Ltd

MSS Srategic Medical and Rescue Pty Ltd

SIS MSS Security Holdings Pty Ltd

MSS Secwity Pty Ltd

Australian Secwity Connections Pty Ltd

Southern Cross Protection Pty. Ltd

Askara Pty Ltd

Charter Secwity Protective Services Pty Ltd

Platform 4 Goup Limited

Triton Security Services Limited

SIS Henderson Holdings Pte Ltd

Henderson Security Services Pte Ltd

Henderson Technologies Pte Ltd

Safety Direct Soluions Pty Ltd

Safety Direct Sohfrions Pty Ltd NZ

Name

Subsidiaries - Foreign

l7

l8

t9

20

21

22

23

24

2s

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

55

34

35

I

\Jt'n



SfS Limited (Formerly known as 'SECLRITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')
(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Share in total
comprehensive income/(loss)

Amount
(INR million)

182.03

6t.o2

1.97

(0.03)

?{o

(2,016.27)

1,8s2.63

As a ToofTCI

9.8%

3.3o/o

0.1%

(0.0vi")

0.lv.

Share in other
comprehensive income(loss)

Amount
(INR million)

(l.se)

0.s6

(0.26)

(e8. l6)

(47.77)

As a Toof
consolidated

ocr

3.3o/o

(1.2y,)

0.5v"

0.0%

0.Oo/o

Share in profit/(loss) for the
vear ('PAT)

Amount
(INR million)

Joint veDtures - Indian

r83.62

60.46

2.23

(0.03)

Joint ventures - Foreign

2.59

Others

(1,918.11)

1,900.40

As a %oof
consolidated

PAT

9.7%

3.2%

0.1%

(0.0%)

O.lYo

Net assets i.e.
total assets minus totrl

Amount
(INR million)

997.23

677.72

294.17

0.01

4.09

(10,380 96)

24,135.37

As a Toof
consolidated

net assets

4.lo/a

2.8o/a

1 .2o/a

0.0%

O.0o/o

Name

SIS Cash Services Private Limited

SIS Prosegur Holdings Private Limited

SIS Prosegur Cash Logistics Private Limited

$9Prosegur Cash Services Private Limited

Habitat Security Pty Ltd

Adjustments arising out of consolidation/translation
adiustments

Non-controlling interests

Total

I

2

3

4

5

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

*NEW

4.23 & 29
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(Allfigures in INR million unless stated othenuise)

39, Interests in other entities

a) Non-controllinginterests(NCI)

note 37

b) Interest in joint ventures

Joint ventwes
The Group holds 49% interest in SIS Cash Services Pvt. Ltd., SIS Prosegur Cash Logistics Pvt. Ltd, SIS Prosegur Holdings Pvt. Ltd, Sls-Prosegur
Cash Services Pvt. Ltd and Habitat Security Pty Ltd. SIS Cash Services Pvt. Ltd is holding/ultimate holding company of SIS Prosegur Cash

Logistics Pvt. Ltd., SIS Prosegur Holdings Prt. Ltd. and Sls-Prosegur Cash Services Pvt. Ltd. The Group's interest in these entities are accounted

for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

Name of entity
Place of
business

ohof

ownership
interesl

Relationship
Accounting

method

Carrying amount

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

SIS Cash Services Private
Limited

India 49.00% Joint venture Equity method 753.88 508.89

Habitat Security Pty Ltd. Australia 49.00% Joint ventue Equity method 3.13 4.60

Ibtal equity accounted investments 757.0t 513.49

The share ofprofits from joint ventures recognised by the Group is given below:

Aggregate amount of share ofjoint ventures
.Ioint ventures

lldarch31,2024 March 31,2023

(a) Profit or loss from continuing operations 248.87 t02.13

(b) Other comprehensive income (1.2e) 2.57

(c) Total comprehensive income 247.58 104.7 0

(This space hos been intentionally left blank)

sii

{,t ) i";

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Share capital / investment

Other equity

Total non-controllin g interests

DELHI

1100?.0
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(AII fgures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

40. Related party transactions
Note 38 above provides the information about the Group's structure.
Names ol related pailles

Key Management Personnel and their relatives Joint Venture entities

Enterprises owned or significantly
influenced by group of individuals or
their relatives who have control or
siqnificenf inflrrence over lhe Grorrn

- Mr. Ravindra Kishore Sinha (Chairman)

- Mr. Rituraj Kishore Sinha (Managing Director)

- Mr. Uday Singh (Appointed as Independent director
and ceased to be non executive director w.e.fJuly 26,
2022)

- Mr. Arvind Kumar Prasad (Director - Finance)

- Mrs. futa Kishore Sinha - Non-Executive Director

- Mr. Amrendra Prasad Verma - Independent

Director (retired w.e.f. September 24, 2022)

- Mr. T C A Ranganathan - Independent Director

- Mr. Devdas Apte - Independent Director (retired

we.f. September 24, 2022)
- Mr. Rajan Krishnanath Medhekar - Independent

Director (retired w.e.f. Scptember 24,2022)

- Ms. Renu Mattoo - Independent Director (retired

we.f. January 28,2023)

- Mr. Rajan Verma - Independent Director (appointed

w.e.f. July 28,2021)
Mr. Upendra Kumar Sinha - Independent Director
(appointed w.e.f. Itur:,e 29, 2022)
- Ms. Rivoli Sinha - Non-Executive Director
(appointed w.e.f. November 2, 2022)

- Mr. Sunil Srivastav - Independent director

- Ms. Vrinda Sarup - Independent Director (appointed

w.e.f. June 20,2023)

- Mr. Brajesh Kumar (Chief Financial Officer - India)

- Mr. Devesh Desai (Chief Financial Officer)

- Ms. Pushpalatha Katkuri (Company Secretary)

- SIS Cash Services Private Limited

- SIS Prosegur Holdings Private

Limited

- SISProsegur Cash Logistics

Private Limited

- S$Prosegur Cash Services

Private Limited

- Habitat Security Pty Ltd.

- &ksham Bharat Skills Limited

- Security Skills Council India Limited

- SitrS Group Enterprises Limited

- Sunrays Overseas Private Limited

- Vardan Overseas Private Limited

- SSAsset Management Limited

- Lotus Learning Private Limited

- The Indian Public School Educational

Foundation Society

- International Institute ofSecurity &
9fety Management

- Annapurna S.P, Sinha Wellare Activities &
Social Awareness Reforms Charitable Trust

- RSYA Dhanbad Auto Private Limited

- RSYA Durgapur Private Limited

- Adi Chitragupta Finance Limited

NEW
a) 1....1

(This Space has been intentionally lef blank)



Particulars
Joint venture

Key management
personnel and their

re I atives

Erterprises owned or
significantly in fl uenced
by group of individuals
or their relatives who

have control or
significant influence

over the GrouD

Total

March
31.2024

March
31. 2fi23

March
31.2024

March
31 - 2fi23

March 31,
2fi24

March 31,
2023

March
3t - 2024

March
31 - 2023

Property, plant and equipment
purchased/ Intangible assets acquired

8.72 102.38 3.27 I I 1.10 3.27

Purchase of goods / receiving of services

/ expenses reimhrsed to related parties
3.50 2.72 8.75 8.03 12.25 10.75

Sale of goods / rendering of services /
expenses reimbursed @ related parties

t7 5.90 151.64 120.61 130.02 296.51 2E1.66

Redemption of investment in

bonds/debentwes
100.00 147.00 100.00 147.00

Interest income on bonds or debentures

or loans
18.54 39.57 1.70 t.70 20.24 41.27

&lary & remuneration paid'd 92.29 86.80 92.29 86.80

Rent paid 18.34 17.16 100.7 4 79.06 119.08 96.22

Contribution to CSR expenditure 18.41 16.07 18.41 16.o7

SIS Limit9d (Formerly known as 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR nillion unless stated otherwise)

The following table provides the total amount oftransactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial

* Post-employment benefits/other long term employee benefits are actuarially determined for the Company as a whole and hence not separately provided.
Compensation towards share based payments are being disclosed in the year ofexercise ofoptions.
# Includes sitting fees and commission paid.

Baldnces outstanding at end of the year

Particulars
Joint venture

Key management
personnel and their

re I atives

Enterprises owned or
signifi cantly infl uenced
by group of individuals
or their relatives who

have control or
significant influence

over the Grouo

Tbtal

March
31.2024

March
31 - 2023

March
31 - 2024

March
31.2023

March 31,
2024

March 31,
2023

March
31.2024

March
3t- 2023

Trade payables / Other payables 8.74 0.31 2.s0 6.80 1.46 18.04 1.77

Trade receivables / Other receivables 50.1 3 91.70 100.00 83.81 150.13 175.51

Loans to related party 17.00 17.00 17.00 17.00

Investment in bonds / debentures 125.00 225.00 125.00 225.00

Tems and conditions of tronsactions with related parlies
Transactions relating to dividends paid, subscription for new equity shares were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other shareholders.

The sales to, and purchases from, related parties are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. Outstanding balances at the
year-end are unsecured and carry interest equivalent to markbt rate, where specified, in terms ofthe transactions and settlement occurs in cash. For the
year ended March 3 l, 2024, the Group has not recorded any impairment ofreceivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 3 l, 2023: INR
Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position ofthe related party and the market in which the related
party operates.

There is no allowance account for impaired receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised in respect ofimpaired
receivables due from related parties.

(n i(This space has been intentionally left blank)



SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES flNDIA) LIMITED')

(All figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Information transactions

SNo Particulars Relationship March 31,2024 March 31,2023

a)
Property, plant and equipment purchased/
In f lnoihle nssets lcou ired

RSYA Dhanbad Auto Private Limited Others* 60.30 3.27

RSYA Durgapw Private Limited Others* 42.08

b)
Sale ofgoods /rendering ofservices /expenses
reimhursed hv related nerties

SIS Cash Services Private Limited Joint Venture 14.57 19.35

Habitat Security Pty Ltd. Joint Venture 156.77 129.10

Security Skills Council India Limited Others* 95.43 tts.27

c) Redemption of investment in bonds/debentures

SIS Cash Services Private Limited Joint Ventue 100.00 l47.OO

d) Interest income on bonds / debentures / loans given

SIS Cash Services Private Limited Joint Venture 18.54 39.57

e) Salary & remuneration

Ravindra Kishore Sinha KMP ** 25.27 22.71

Devesh Desai KMP ** 1 5.13 14.94

Rituraj Kishore Sinha KMP ** 12.77 9.69

Arvind Kumar Prasad KMP ** 7.03 5.68

Brajesh Kumar# KMP ** 8.97 t1.52

Pushpalatha Katkuri KMP ** 4.67 4.45

Director sitting fees KMP ** 8.90 12.00

0 Rent paid

SIS Asset Management Limited Others* 79.31 58.38

s) Contribution to CSR expenditure
Annapurna S.P, Sinha Welfare Activities & Social

Avareness Reforms Charitable Trust Othersr 18.41 16.07

# Includes an amount of Ni[ (March 31, 2023: INR 2.86 million) towards share based payments for the options exercised during the year.
*Others represent Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by group ofindividuals or their relatives who have control or significant influence
over lhe Group.
** Key management personnel and their relatives.

The details of loans and advances as required by Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015
are given in the table below:

(This space has been intentionally lef blank)

-{

Pa rticu la rs

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

O utstanding
balance

Maximum amount
outstanding during
the vear

O utstanding
balance

Maxinrum amount
outstanding during
the vear

Lotus Learning Private Limited 17.00 17.00 17.00 l7.00

Ibtal 17.00 17.00 17.00 17.00



SIS Limited lFormerly known es 'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(All Jigures in INR million unless stated othemise)

41. Financial risk management
The Group's principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and bonowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main
purpose ofthese financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support the financing ofthe operations ofits
subsidiaries,joint ventures and associates. The Group's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations and loans, security and other deposits.
The Group's operations expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's focus is to reduce volatility in financial statements while
maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Group's business plan along with reasonable participation in market movement. It is
the Group's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Mtrket risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value offuture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because ofchanges in market prices. Market
risk mainly comprises cunency risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, loans and
deposits given, FVTOCI investments and derivative financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign cunency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuate because ofchanges in foreign exchangb rates
which arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency ofthe respective entities and foreign currency
revenue and cash flows. The Group's exposure to the risk ofchanges in foreign cunency exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating
activilies (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign curency) and the Group's net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Group has
limited foreign currency transactions and has limited exposure to foreign cunency assets and liabilities resulting in the foreign curency risk being
low.

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the future.
Consequently, the results ofthe Group's operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

The Group's exposure to foreign cunency risk at the end oflhe reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to change in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign exchange denominated financial instruments are as

follows:

Intetest mte fisk
Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate bonowing, including various revolving and other lines ofcredit. Interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because ofchanges in market interest rates.

The exposure ofthe Group's bonowing to interest rate changes atthe end ofthe reporting period are as follows:

rate are at cost. are not to rate ass

neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because ofa change in market interest rates.

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result ofchanges in interest rates.

Particulars
Flnancial liabilities

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Foreign currency risk in INR

USD 1.94 s.36

EURO 0.03 0.06

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 1.97 5.42

Particulars Impact on prolit after tax

March 31,2O24 March 31,2023

Sensitivity

Increase by 5% 0.10 0.27

Decrease by 5% (0. l o) (0.27\

Particulars lvlarch 31,2024 March 31,2023

Variable rate borrowings:

- Loan repayable on demand 7,037.40 6,654.24

- Term Loans 7,234.83 7 ,931.32

Flxed rate borrowings

- Vehicle loan 813.79 637.4s

Total 15,086.02 ts,223.01

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Interest rates - increase by 25 basis points t 35.68 36.46

Interest rates - decrease by 25 basis points * (35.68) (36.46)

Itl:011-4

+Holding all other variables constant



SIS Limit€d (Formerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

(Allf;gures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

Cretlil risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed resulting in a financial loss. The
primary exposure to credit risk arises from Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue (refer note I I & 7 respectively). These are unsecured and are

managed by the Group through a system ofperiodically assessing the financial reliability ofcustomers, taking into account the financial condition,
current economic trends, and analysis ofhistorical bad debts and ageing ofaccounts receivables. No single customer accounted for more than l0olo

ofthe accounts receivable as ofMarch3l,2024 andMarch3l,2023, respectively and revenues for the year ended March3l,2024 and March 31,
2023, respectively. There is no significant concentration ofcredit risk. The Group uses the expected credit loss ("ECL") method to assess the loss
allowance for Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue taking into account primarily the historical trends and analysis ofbad debts. The Group does
not expect any credit risk or impairment in respect ofamounts lent to its subsidiaries, associates andjoint ventures, ifany.

The credit risk for financial assets other than bank balances and trade receivables are considered low.

SigniJicant eslimflles and judgenrcnls

Imp ai mtent of finan ci al a ssets

The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk ofdefault and expected loss rates. The Group
usesjudgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history and existing
market conditions. The Group estimates loss arising on trade receivables as a percentage of sales based on past trends and such loss is directly
debited to revenue instead ofcreating a provision for impairment ofreceivables.

Financial instruntenls ancl cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with the Group's
policy. Surplus funds are invested in bank fixed deposits or used to temporarily reduce the balance ofcash credit accounts to optimize interest costs.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Group
consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources offunding to meet its financial obligations and
maintain adequate liquidity for use.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans,
debentures, shareholder equity, and finance leases.

The below table summarises the Group's long-term debt that will mature in less than one year based on the carrying value ofborrowings reflected
in the financial statements.

The Group has assessed the concentration ofrisk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient
variety of sources of funding and significant portion of short{erm debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. The
Group believes that it has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe Group 3' financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year endetl March 3 I, 2024

Year entled Mnrch 31,2023

As a matter ofpolicy, the Group does not carry out any hedging activities.
There has been no default in servicing borowings and/ or breaches in loan covenants.

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Group's long-term debt 8,048.62 8,568.77

Group's long-term debt that will mature in less than one year from reporting period 5,7 48.t2 536.93

71,42o/a 6.27o/o

Particulars On demand
Irss than 3

months
3to12

months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Borrowings 7,037.40 470.91 s,728.33 2,298.10 0.05 t5,534.79

Lease liabilities 125.7 4 384.30 1,209.30 r99.32 1,918.66

Other financial liabilities 9,582. I I 68.29 4.48 9,654.88

Trade payables 846.89 E46.E9

Contingent consideration 54.25 54.25

Particulars On demand
I-e ss than 3

monlhs
3to12

months I to 5 years > 5 years Total

Borrowings 6,654.24 231.48 709.70 8,296.72 3.2s 15,895.39

Lease liabilities t04.6t 3 10.0s |,072.17 9t.93 t,s78.76

Other financial liabilit ies 8,120.72 t62.ts 8,282.87

Trade payables 639.08 639.08

Contingent consideration 2.47 s2.69 55.16

1-el:011
ni
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SIS Limited lFormcrly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES flNDIA) LIMITED')

(AIl figures in INR million unless stated otherwise)

The Group has the following financial assets which are subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109. On assessment of the future cash
flows arising from these assets, the Group believes that there is no provision required to be made for impairment losses on these assets.

Particulars March 31,2O24 March 31,2023

Flnancial Assets:

Investments 125.00 22s.00

Loans t7.00 17.00

Other financial assets 8,1 00. 1 9 7 ,06s.72

Total 8,242.19 7,307.72

Reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the statement of cash flows:

Year ended March 31, 2O24

Year ended March 31,2023

*Excluding borrowings considered as cash and cash equivalents for the purpose ofstatement ofcash flows.

42. Additional capital disclosures
For the purpose ofthe Group b capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders ofthe Group. The primary objective ofthe Group's capital management is to maximise shareholder value and support its strategies
and operating requirements. The key objective ofthe Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with a
focus on total equity to uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development ofits business. The Group determines
the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long{erm and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements for the
Group's operations are generally met through operating cash flows generated and supplemented by long-term and working capital borrowings from
banks.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to:
a) safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,

and
b) maintain an optimal capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light ofchanges in economic conditions and the requirements ofthe financial
covenants to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Group defines
Net Debt as borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents including bank balances and deposits inespective oftheir duration /
maturity.

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Borrowings (Note l5) 1s,086.02 1s,223.0t

Lease liabilities (Note I 6) 1,494.33 1,25t.92

Cash and cash equivalents (Note I 2), other bank balances and deposits (including margin
monev)

(7,687.1s) (7,8s9. l 6)

Net Debt 8,893.20 8,615.77

IEIIDA 5,E44.53 4,915.27

Net debt to EBITDA ratio 1.52 1.7 5

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it simultaneously meets
financial covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
bonowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants ofany borrowing in the cunent period.

Divitlends
The Parent declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. According to the Companies Act,2013 any dividend should be declared only out of
accumulated distributable profits. A company may, before the declaration ofany dividend, transfer a percentage of its profits for that financial year,
as it may consider appropriate, to the reserves.

The Parent's Board, at its meeting dated May 0l,2024, has not proposed final dividend for the year ended March 3l,2024 (March 31, 2023: INR

l1

'J

Balance sheet caption As at April I,
2023

Cash flow
Finance/
Thansaction
cost/othe rs

kchange
translation

As at
March 31,
2024

Borrowings* 8,568.77 (380.63) (7 r.24\ (68.28) 8,048.62

Interest accrued 236.14 ( l.405.02) 1,244.92 (3.81) 72.23

Balance sheet caption As at April I,
2022

Cash flow
Iinance/
Transaction
cost/othe rs

kchange
tran slation

As at
March 31,
2023

Borrowings* 8,394.84 I 90.83 8l .14 (98.04) 8,568.77

Interest accrued 231.97 ( l.06s.73) 1,075.27 (s.37) 236.t4

l{er'; Delhi-

lel:011*i

Nil per share).
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SIS Limited lFormerly known as'SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED')

ffiur"r irr lNR^illion rnl^u stated otheruise)

43. Additional regulatory disclosures

a) Relationship with Struck offCompanies:

b) The disclosures required under Division II ofSchedule III have been given to the extent applicable to the Group.

As per our report ofeven date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on

no. - 000756N/N50044

Partner
Membership No. - 094380

Place: NewDelhi
Date: May 01,2024

tA,'r,t^l*P*ar*J.
Kishore

Chief Financial Officer

Arvind Kumar Prasad
Director - Finance
(DIN: 02865273)(DrN 004rys6)

,,^M-
Chief Financial Officer
(India)

T^rfre=
Pushpalatha I$tkuri
Company Secretary

* *

w /Vely

Tel:011

I

Relationship with
struck off comnanies

Nature of
transactions

Name of Struck off Companies March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Companies with outstanding balance

Customers Receivables

Bateshuarnath Construction and

Developers (Opc) Private Limited; Brij
Packaging; Knorr-Bremse India Private

Limited; MGF Developers Private

Limited; Orient Micro Abrasive Limited;
K M Memorial Hospital and Research

Centre Private Limited; B. P. Food

Products Private Limited; Koppal Steels

Private Limited; Neel Industries P- Ltd;

Protectron Electromech Pvt Ltd; Rudra

Alloys Privite Limited; S<y Automobiles;

CG Foods India Private Limited; Panacea

Biotec Limited; Jubilant Biosys Limited;

Knorr-Bremse India Private Limited;
Bennett Coleman And Company Limited;

&hwing Stetter (India) Private Limited;

Panacea Biotec Limited;Amtek Packaging

Pvt Ltd; OSG India Pvt Lrd; Faith

Machines Pvt Ltd; Transtel Engineering

Pvt Ltd; Interface Microsystems

9.96 1.44

Companies with Nil outstanding balance
Customer Receivables Nirmal Industries Ltd.

Supplier Payable Johnson Controls India Pvt. Ltd

NEW DELHI


